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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549

Form 10-K

™ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission file number: 001-35637

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant Specified in its Charter)

Delaware 22-3388607
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization Identification No.)
210 Sylvan Avenue, Englewoo 07632
Cliffs, NJ (Zip Code)

(Address of principal executive office
Issuer’s telephone number, including area code: (2) 567-5648
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b}teé Exchange Act:
Title of each Class Name of Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, par value $.01 per st NASDAQ Global Select Marke
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g}teé Exchange Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edBdturities Act  Yes] No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act Yes[]
No M

O Indicate by check mark whether the registréijthas filed all reports required to be filed gcBon 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wejuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementstHe past 90 days. Ye&l No ¥

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lhsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥eb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted auntsio Rule 405 of Regulation Seliring the preceding 12 months (or for such shqréeiod
that the registrant was required to submit and poch files). YesO No ¥

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is aontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowtedig definitive proxy or information statementsamporated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K4

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fileid] Accelerated filer 4 Non-accelerated filer I Smaller reporting company
(Do not check if a srealteporting company
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes [ No ™

The aggregate market value of voting and nonvatorgmon equity held by non-affiliates of the registrwas approximately
$72,888,000 as of the last business day of thetragt’'s most recently completed second fiscal tguar

As of June 25, 2015, the registrant had 13,060s828es of Common Stock issued and outstan
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Caution Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaimfard-looking statements within the meaning of Bhivate Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. All statements other than stagets of historical facts included or incorpordbgdeference in this Annual Report on F
10-K, including without limitation, statements rediag our future financial position, business &gyt budgets, projected revenues, projected
costs and plans and objectives of management fiorefoperations, are forward-looking statementswiBad-looking statements generally can
be identified by the use of forward-looking ternmigy such as “may,” “will,” “expects,” “intends,”plans,” “projects,” “estimates,”
“anticipates,” or “believes” or the negative thereoany variation there on or similar terminologryexpressions.

We have based these forward-looking statementsipowrent expectations and projections about &uavents. These forward-looking
statements are not guarantees and are subjecvtmnkand unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptiout us that may cause our actual
results, levels of activity, performance or achieeats to be materially different from any futureuks, levels of activity, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forwaolihg statements. Important factors which couldemally affect our results and our
future performance include, without limitation, ability to purchase defaulted consumer receivasie@gppropriate prices, changes in
government regulations that affect our ability edlect sufficient amounts on our defaulted consumaeeivables, our ability to employ and
retain qualified employees, changes in the crediapital markets, changes in interest rates, ie&tion in economic conditions, negative
press regarding the debt collection industry whitty have a negative impact on a debtor’s willingrtespay the debt we acquire, and
statements of assumption underlying any of thegireg, as well as other factors set forth undeitlA. Risk Factors” beginning on page 19
of this report and “Item 7—Management's Discussiand Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkration” below.

All subsequent written and oral forward-lookingtstaents attributable to us, or persons acting arbehalf, are expressly qualified in
their entirety by the foregoing. Except as requingdaw, we assume no duty to update or revisefamyard-looking statements.
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Part |
ltem 1. Business
Overview

Asta Funding, Inc., together with its wholly owngidnificant operating subsidiaries Palisades Ctted_LC, Palisades Acquisition XV
LLC (“Palisades XVI"), VATIV Recovery Solutions LLCVATIV”), ASFI Pegasus Holdings, LLC (“APH"), Fuh Pegasus, LLC (“Fund
Pegasus”), GAR Disability Advocates, LLC (“GAR Dislity Advocates”) and other subsidiaries, notvafiolly owned (the “Company”, “we”
or “us”), has been engaged in the business of purchasinggimgnfor its own account and servicing distressmatsumer receivables, includi
charged off receivables, and semi-performing reddgas since 1994, as well as more recent busiegssents discussed below. The primary
charged-off receivables are accounts that have Wweéen-off by the originators and may have beesvipusly serviced by collection agencies.
Semi-performing receivables are accounts wherédhtor is currently making partial or irregular ntdg payments, but the accounts may
have been written-off by the originators. Distressensumer receivables are the unpaid debts ofithdils to banks, finance companies and
other credit providers. A large portion of our déstsed consumer receivables are Master€ard ®Visd other credit card accounts which
were charged-off by the issuers or providers far-payment. We acquire these and other consumer eddeiportfolios at substantial discot
to their face values. The discounts are based@nhhracteristics (issuer, account size, debtatilmt and age of debt) of the underlying
accounts of each portfolio. Litigation related rigables are semi-performing investments wherebyQbmpany is assigned the revenue strear
from the proceeds received. GAR Disability Advosatea social security disability advocacy firm. BM®isability Advocates assists claimants
in obtaining long term disability benefits from thecial security administration.

We own 80% of Pegasus Funding, LLC (“Pegasus”)ctvimivests in funding personal injury claims an@®86f CBC Settlement
Funding, LLC (“*CBC"), which invests in structuredtdements.

Pegasus provides funding for individuals in needhadrt term funds pending insurance settlementisedf personal injury claims. The
funds will be recouped when the underlying insueasettiements are paid. The long periods of tirkertdy insurance companies to settle anc
pay such claims resulting from lengthy litigatiamdathe court process is fueling the demand for $ucting.

CBC provides liquidity to consumers by purchasiegain deferred payment streams including, butinoted to, structured settlements
and annuities. CBC generates business from diragdteting as well as through wholesale purchases fnmkers or other third parties. CBC
has its principal office in Conshohocken, Pennsyi@aCBC primarily warehouses the receivablesiginates and periodically resells or
securitizes those assets on a pooled basis. Thawsid settlement marketplace is regulated byréé@dad state law, requiring that each
transaction is reviewed and approved by court order

We operate principally in the United States in foeportable business segments.

Financial Information About Operating Segments

The Company operates through strategic business thiait are aggregated into four reportable seggn@unsumer receivables, personal
injury claims, structured settlements and disgbbinefits. The four reportable segments consittiefollowing:

» Consumer receivablesegment is engaged in the business of purchasigagng for its own account and servicing distrésse
consumer receivables, including charged off and-gamiorming receivables. The charged-off receiealdre accounts that have been
written-off by the originators and may have beesvusly serviced by collection agencies. Semiguenfng receivables are accounts
where the debtor is currently making partial oegular monthly payments, but the accounts may baea written-off by the
originators. Distressed consumer receivables @enipaid debts of individuals to banks, finance ganies and other credit providers.
A large portion of our distressed consumer recdesmbre MasterCar®dl , Visa and other credit cardaus which were charged-off
by the issuers or providers for npayment. These receivables were acquired at sutagtdiscounts to their face values. The discol
are
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based on the characteristics (issuer, accountadddor location and age of debt) of the underlydngounts of each portfolio.
Litigation related receivables are semi-performimgestments whereby the Company is assigned trentevstream from the proceeds
received. The business conducts its activities ariignunder the name Palisades Collection, L

» Personal injury claim— Pegasus Funding, LLC , an 80% owned subsidiangh@ases interests in personal injury claims from
claimants who are a party to personal injury liiga. Pegasus advances to each claimant fundsion-aecourse basis at an agreed
upon interest rate, in anticipation of a futurdleaetent. The interest in each claim purchased lya&es consists of the right to receive,
from such claimant, part of the proceeds or redesexhich such claimant receives by reason oftlessnt, judgment or award with
respect to such claimés claim.

 Structured settlementOn December 31, 2013 the Company purchased arir@8#ést in CBC Settlement Funding, LLC. CBC
purchases periodic structured settlements and gnpalicies from individuals in exchange for a lusym payment

» GAR Disability Advocateis social security disability advocacy group, whatftains and represents individuals in their clafions
social security disability and supplemental seguntome benefits from the Social Security Admirasion.

Three of the Company’s business lines accountetid®s or more of consolidated net revenue durincpfigear 2014. In fiscal year 2013
two of the Company’s business lines accounted @t dr more of consolidated net revenue. In fis€dl2there were two segments of the
business, one of which accounted for less than 40#te revenue. The following table summarizesnéerevenues by percentage from the
lines of business for the fiscal years 2014, 20182012:

Years Ended September 3C

2013 2012
(As (As
2014 Revised Revised

Finance income (consumer receivables) 61.7% 83.1% 96.1%
Personal injury claim 22.1% 16.% 3.£%
Structured settlemen 16.2% —% —%
GAR Disability Advocate: —% —% —%
Total revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

The Company has no segment information from int@nal operations that needs to be reported.

Information about the results of each of the Comfsareportable segments for the last three fisealry and total assets as of the end of
the last three fiscal years, reconciled to the olidated results, is set forth below. For additidnéormation, refer to the information set forth
under the caption “Segment Results from Contin@pgrations” in “Management’s Discussion and AnalysfiFinancial Condition and
Results of Operations,” below.

Persona

GAR

Fiscal Consumer Injury Structured Disability Total
(Dollars in millions) Year Receivable Claims Settlement: Advocates Corporate Company
Revenues 201¢ $ 19.€ $ 7.2 $ 5.2 $ — $ — $ 32z

201z 31.¢ 6.4 — — — 38.2

201z 40.¢ 1.6 — — — 42.4
Other income 201¢ 26.1 — — 0.4 1.4 27.¢

2013 — — — — 1.6 1.€

201z — — — — 2.3 2.3
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Persona
GAR

Fiscal Consumer Injury Structured Disability Total
(Dollars in millions) Year Receivable Claims Settlement: Advocates Corporate Company
Income before income taxes 201¢ $ 18.¢ $ 23 $ 0.4 $ (29 $ (7.9 $ 11.C

2012 10.1 2.C — (1.2) (7.€) 3.2

2012 23.1 0.1 — — (6.9 16.€
Total asset 2014 30.t 34.C 38.t 1.C 113.1 217.1

201z 65.4 36.¢ — 0.2 109.1 211t

2012 96.: 21.F — — 119.¢ 237.¢

Principal Markets and Methods of Distribution
All of the Company’s lines of business are printlijpaonducted in the United States, with some itweEsts overseas.
Consumer receivables

Prior to purchasing a portfolio, we perform a quaive and quantitative analysis of the underlyiegeivables and calculate the purchase
price which is intended to offer us an adequaternedn our investment after servicing expensesrAftirchasing a portfolio, we actively
monitor performance and review and adjust our ctile and servicing strategies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from credit grantors aherstthrough privately negotiated direct saleskémed transactions and auctions in
which sellers of receivables seek bids from sevyamiqualified debt purchasers. We fund portfotla®ugh a combination of internally
generated cash flow and bank debt, if needed.

Our objective is to maximize our return on investiria acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Aesult, before acquiring a portfoli
we analyze the portfolio to determine how to beakimize collections in a cost efficient manner @edide whether to use our internal
servicing and collection department, third-partilexion agencies, attorneys, or a combinationlidhaee options.

When we outsource the servicing of receivables noamagement typically determines the appropriatd-gharty collection agencies and
attorneys based on the type of receivables purdh&sece a group of receivables is sent to thirdypaollection agencies and attorneys, our
management actively monitors and reviews the thary collection agencies’ and attorneys’ perforogan an ongoing basis. Based on
portfolio performance considerations, our managemdheither (i) move certain receivables from ahéd-party collection agency or attorn
to another, or (i) sell portions of the portfohacounts. Our internal collection unit, which cathg employs approximately five collection-
related staff, including senior management, asasia benchmarking our third-party collection agjes and attorneys, and provides us with
greater flexibility for servicing a percentage ofr @onsumer receivable portfolios in-house.

We are a Delaware corporation whose principal etvezwffices are located at 210 Sylvan Avenue, Englod Cliffs, New Jersey 07632.
We were incorporated in New Jersey on July 7, 1@8#ftwere reincorporated in Delaware on Octobef 395, as the result of a merger with a
Delaware corporation. We were formed as an aféil@tAsta Group, Incorporated (the “Family Entitydh entity owned by Arthur Stern, our
Chairman Emeritus, Gary Stern, our Chairman, Peesgidnd Chief Executive Officer, and other memloéthe Stern family, to purchase, at a
small discount to face value, retail installmeriesaontracts secured by motor vehicles. We be@améblic company in November 1995. In
1999, we capitalized on our management’s almosteads of experience and expertise in acquiringraadaging consumer receivable
portfolios for the Family Entity. As a result, weased purchasing automobile contracts and, withshistance and financial support of the
Family Entity and a partner, purchased our firghBicant consumer receivable portfolio. Since thiéve Family Entity ceased acquiring
consumer receivable portfolios and, accordinglyesdoot compete with the Company.

5
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Personal injury claims

Pegasus conducts its business solely in the UBitetts. Pegasus obtains its business from extaemlatrs and internal sales
professionals soliciting individuals with persoirglry claims. Business is also obtained from tlegdsus web site and through attorneys.

Structured settlements

CBC purchases structured settlement and annuitgigethrough privately negotiated direct consupechases and brokered
transactions across the United States. CBC furelpuichases primarily from cash and its line oflitre

Social security benefit advocacy

GAR Disability Advocates provides its disabilitywatacy services throughout the United Stateslidg@ipon search engine optimizat
(“SEQ”) to bring awareness to its intended market.

Industry Overview
Consumer receivables

The purchasing, servicing and collection of chargBdsemi-performing and performing consumer reables is an industry that is
driven by:

* increasing levels of consumer de

 increasing defaults of the underlying receivabéex]

* increasing utilization of thi-party providers to collect such receivab
Personal injury claims

The funding of personal claims is driven by thevgioof the market for financing personal injuryioia. Individuals with personal injury
claims incur current cash obligations which wilk e recouped until insurance settlements are péiel.demand for providing financing to
individuals in need of short term funds pendinginasice settlements of their personal injury claigrdriven by the long periods of time taken
by the insurance industry to settle and pay sugimg, due to lengthy litigation and the court pssce

Structured settlements

The investment in structured settlements is drivethe direct-to-consumer model. The structuretieseent market became organized
under the Model Act in 2001 and now 47 states abjdthe guidelines. The underlying basis for actted settlement transaction is a court
order.

Social security benefit advocacy

The disability advocate industry is driven by thereasing number of disability applicants who findifficult to obtain such benefits
without the aid of third party assistance.

Strategy
Consumer receivables

Although we are in a challenging economic period an enhanced regulatory environment, our primbjgative remains to utilize our
management’s experience and expertise by idengifygaaluating, pricing and acquiring consumer nesiglie portfolios and maximizing
collections of such receivables in a cost efficimainner. Our strategies include:

* managing the collection and servicing of our consuraceivable portfolios, including outsourcing ajarmity of those activities to
maintain low fixed overheau
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» selling accounts on an opportunistic basis, gelyandien our efforts have been exhausted througtittoaal collecting methods, or
when we can capitalize on pricing during times winerfeel the pricing environment is high; &

 capitalizing on our strategic relationships to idfgrand acquire consumer receivable portfoliopasing, financing and conditions
permit.

Because our purchases of new portfolios of consueuaivables have been reduced, we have experiencedesponding reduction in
finance income which we expect will continue inuitet quarters and future years, to the extent we havreplaced our receivables acquirec
liquidation. Instead, we have focused on reducimgdebt and being highly disciplined in our poridgburchases. We continue to review
potential portfolio acquisitions regularly and willly at a price that we believe will yield our desglirate of return.

Personal injury claims

Pegasus intends to maintain its business throsgittiirneys, brokers and sales contacts.
Structured settlements

The success of CBC is tied to its ability to eHiaily deploy marketing expenditures, negotiatepiimehase of deferred cash flows at
attractive yields and obtain asset based finangircpmpetitive rates.

Social security benefit advocacy

GAR Disability Advocates intends to expand its bess through the substantial use of the interiyafydreasing consumer awareness of
its existence on various government websitesst aitends to explore expansion into related bssimpportunities.
Consumer Receivables Business
Receivables Purchase Program

We have purchased in bulk receivable portfolios ielude charged-off receivables, semi-performieceivables and performing
receivables. These receivables consist primariMadgterCarc® , Vis& and private label credit card accounts, among difpers of receivable

In the past we have acquired, directly and indiyetiirough the consumer receivable portfolios tatacquire, secured consumer asset
portfolios, consisting primarily of receivables sesd by automobiles.

We identify potential portfolio acquisitions on angoing basis through:

 our relationships with industry participants, fisél institutions, collection agencies, investansl @ur financing source
» brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabée portfolios; anc

» other sources

Historically, the purchase prices of the consureeeivable portfolios we have acquired have rangad fess than $100,000 to
approximately $15,000,000; however, we acquiredgroep of portfolios in March 2007 for $300 milli¢the “Portfolio Purchase”). As a part
of our strategy to acquire consumer receivablef@ars, we have, from time to time, entered intartizipation and profit sharing agreements
with our sources of financing and our third-partyiection agencies and attorneys. These arrangsmasy take the form of a joint bid with
one of our third-party collection agencies, coil@ttattorneys, or financing sources that assigtténacquisition of a portfolio. This joint bid
provides us with more favorable non-recourse filmagnterms or a discounted servicing commissionréhirparticipation agreements include
an approximate 50% sharing arrangement after we resouped 100% of the cost of the portfolio pusehalus the cost of funds.

7



Table of Contents

We utilize our relationships with brokers, thirdrfyacollection agencies and attorneys, and setleéportfolios to locate portfolios for
purchase. Our senior management is responsible for:

» coordinating due diligence, including, in some sasgg-site visits to the sell’s office;
« stratifying and analyzing the portfolio charactgcss,

* valuing the portfolio

» preparing bid proposal

* negotiating pricing and term

* negotiating and executing a purchase cont

 closing the purchase; ai

» coordinating the receipt of account documentat@rttie acquired portfolio

The seller or broker typically supplies us wittheita sample listing or the actual portfolio besiodd, through an electronic form of
media. We analyze each consumer receivable partioldetermine if it meets our purchasing criteviee may then prepare a bid or negotiate
purchase price. If a purchase is completed, managemonitors the portfolio’s performance and usésihformation in determining future
buying criteria including pricing. An integral paot the acquisition process is the oversight bylouestment Committee. This committee,
established in January 2008, must review and appathinvestments above $1 million in value. Vottrgeria are more stringent as the size of
the investment increases. The current membersedhtlestment committee are the the Chief Exec@iffieer, the Chief Financial Officer, the
Senior Vice President, Vice President of Businesgdlbpment/Support and the General Counsel and Chimpliance Officer. As the
Chairman Emeritus, Chief Executive Officer and $eMice President are related family members, attlene other officer must approve
transactions.

After determining that an investment should yiatdsalequate return on our acquisition cost aftarigeg fees, including court costs, we
use a variety of qualitative and quantitative fagto calculate the estimated cash flows. The ¥atig variables are analyzed and factored into
our original estimates:

» the number of collection agencies previously attiémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
» the average balance of the receivat
» the age of the receivables (as older receivablghtne more difficult to collect or might be lesssteffective).

* past history of performance of similar assets —wagpurchase portfolios of similar assets, we beli@e have built significant history
on how these receivables will liquidate and castvf

* number of months since cha-off;
* payments made since chg-off;
« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

 the locations of the customers as there are statiedetter regulatory environments, better coltathistories, which are better suited
to attempt to collect in and, ultimately we havétdrepredictability of the liquidations and the exped cash flows, all of which factor
into our cash flow analysi:

» financial wherewithal of the selle

» jobs or property of the customers within portfol— this is of particular importance. Customers vjiths or property are more likely
to repay their obligation and, conversely, custanvethout jobs or property are less likely to replagir obligation; ant

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromdtiginal issuer

8
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We obtain and utilize, as appropriate, input inodgd but not limited to, monthly collection projémts and liquidation rates from our th
party collection agencies and attorneys, as fusthigtentiary matter, to assist us in developindeotion strategies and in modeling the
expected cash flows for a given portfolio.

Once a receivable portfolio has been identifiedpfotential purchase, we prepare various analysssiban extracting customer level dats
from external sources, other than the issuer, &yaa the potential collectability of the portfalid/e also analyze the portfolio by comparing it
to similar portfolios previously acquired by us.dddition, we perform qualitative analyses of otimatters affecting the value of portfolios,
including a review of the delinquency, charge pfacement and recovery policies of the originatowall as the collection authority granted
the originator to any third-party collection agess;iand, if possible, by reviewing their recoveifgrés on the particular portfolio. After these
evaluations are completed, members of our senioagement discuss the findings, decide whether terntae purchase and finalize the price
at which we are willing to purchase the portfolio.

Once a consumer receivable portfolio is identifieel purchase is primarily directly from originatansd other sellers including, from time
to time, our third-party collection agencies anom@eys, through (i) privately negotiated diredesaand (ii) through auction-type sales in
which sellers of receivables seek bids from sevyaeiqualified debt purchasers. We also, from timgéme, use the services of brokers for
sourcing consumer receivable portfolios. We consideariety of factors in determining whether paigrseller may be a source of receivables
a variety of factors are considered. Sellers mastahstrate that they have:

» adequate internal controls to detect fre
 the ability to provide po-sale support; an
 the capacity to honor g-back and return warranty reque:

Generally, our portfolio purchase agreements pethichit we can return certain accounts to the seltéin a specified time period.
However, in some transactions, we may acquire dghorwith few, if any, rights to return accouritsthe seller.

After acquiring a portfolio, we conduct a detailblysis to determine which accounts in the padfshould be returned to the seller.
Although the terms of each portfolio purchase agwea differ, examples of accounts that may be netito the seller include:

» debts paid prior to the cutoff da

 debts in which the consumer filed bankruptcy ptiothe cutoff date
 debts in which the consumer was deceased priarttdfaate; anc
 fraudulent account:

We have determined that all accounts returnedltersdor fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012 are iteni@. Our purchase agreements
generally do not contain any provision for a litida on the number of accounts that we may retoithe seller.

We generally use third parties to determine bartkang deceased accounts, allowing us to focusemaurces on portfolio collections.
Under a typical portfolio purchase agreement, #ikeisrefunds the portion of the purchase pricetattable to the returned accounts or deliver:
replacement receivables to us. Occasionally, weasduire a well-seasoned or older portfolio ae@duced price from a seller that is unable to
meet all of our purchasing criteria. When we acgginch portfolios, the purchase price is furthecalinted beyond the typical discounts we
receive on the portfolios we purchase.

VATIV, our wholly-owned subsidiary located in Houston, Texas, pravizEnkruptcy account servicing. VATIV provides u#winterna
experience and proprietary systems in supportrefgag our own bankruptcy accounts, while alsamedfng us the opportunity to enter new
markets for acquisitions in the bankruptcy accdighd.
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Receivable Servicing

Our objective is to maximize our return on investinen acquired consumer receivable portfolios. Assalt, before acquiring a portfol
we analyze the portfolio to determine how to beakimize collections in a cost efficient manner dedide whether to use a third-party
collection agency or an attorney.

Therefore, if we are successful in acquiring thefptio, we can promptly process the receivables there purchased and commence the
collection process. Unlike collection agencies tipically have only a specified period of timerézover a receivable, as the portfolio owner,
we have significantly more flexibility and can ddtsh payment programs.

We presently outsource a significant amount ofreaeivable servicing to third-party collection ages and attorneys. Our senior
management typically determines the appropriate-jpérty collection agency and attorney based erytpe of receivables purchased. Once a
group of receivables is sent to a third-party atite agency or attorney, our management activelpitors and reviews the third-party
collection agency’s and attorney’s performance momrgoing basis. Our management receives detailaigses, including collection activity
and portfolio performance, from our internal seiicdepartments for the purpose of evaluating dsalts of the efforts of the third-party
collection agencies and attorneys. Based on partparformance guidelines, our management will siggiscertain receivables from one third-
party collection agency or attorney to anotheréflyelieve such change will enhance collections.

At September 30, 2014, approximately 37% of outfplio face value was serviced by five collectiaig@anizations. We have servicing
agreements in place with these five collection pizmtions as well as all other third-party colleatiagencies and attorneys. These servicing
agreements cover standard contingency fees anitiggrof the accounts.

Litigation Funding Business

On December 28, 2011, the Company purchased anr@@#ést in Pegasus. Pegasus Legal Funding (“Phéigs the other 20% interest.
The Company is committed to loan upk&2.4 million per year to Pegasus for a term of {fvgyears, all of which is secured by the asskts o
Pegasus. These loans will provide financing forgliesonal injury litigation claims and operatingperses of Pegasus.

Pegasus is actively managed by personal injugalitbn funders who rely upon strict underwritingemia to provide legal funding to
personal injury plaintiffs prior to the settlemeittheir claims or their resolution in court. Theg@sus business model entails the outlay of no
recourse advances to a plaintiff with an agreedaupe structure to be repaid from the plaintifésovery. Typically, such advances to a
plaintiff approximate 10-20% of the anticipatedaeery. These funds are generally used by the fffdfiot a variety of urgent necessities,
ranging from surgical procedures to everyday livixgenses.

Pegasus’s profits and losses will be distributeBi0ds to the Company and 20% to PLF. These distdbstwill be made only after the
repayment of the principal amount loaned, plusranunt equal to advances for overhead expensese\Wigiloverall returns to the joint
venture are currently estimated to be in exce@0% per annum, The Company reserves the rightitainate the Pegasus Operating
Agreement if returns to the Company for any rollinmglve (12) month period, after the first yeaiopkrations, do not exceed 15%. The
Company has an invested value of approximately4s8tllion in personal injury cases as of Septen8ir2014.

The success of Pegasus is tied to several issube -ability to obtain cases directly or throughkms, as well as the ability to carefully
assess the viability of each case in accordandewmidlerwriting guidelines established by the manmagd of Pegasus. See Risk Factor- We ar
subject to various risks in connection with oughtion funding business.

On May 18, 2012, we announced the formation of BBeOManagement, LLC (“Balance Point”), a joint veat(the “Venture”) with
California-based Balance Point Divorce Funding, L{Balance Point
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Management”). The Venture provides non-recoursdifighto a spouse in a matrimonial action wherentlagital assets exceed $2,000,000.
Such funds can be used for legal fees, expert ensthecessary living expenses. The Venture reseinegreed percentage of the proceeds
received by such spouse upon final resolution efcthse. Balance Point’s profits and losses willisgibuted 60% to us and 40% to Balance
Point Management, after the return of our investroena case by case basis and after a 15% prefetigh to us. Our initial investment in the
Venture consists of up to $15 million to fund digerclaims to be fulfilled in three tranches of $#lion. Each investment tranche is contingent
upon a minimum 15% cash-aa&sh return to us. At our option, there could baduditional $35 million investment in divorce clarm tranche

of $10 million, $10 million, and $15 million, alseith a 15% preferred return and such investmentg even exceed a total of $50 million, at
our sole option. Should the preferred return be tean 15% on any $5 million tranche, the 60%/408ftitpand loss split would be adjusted to
reflect our priority to a 15% preferred return. 8sptember 30, 2014 we have invested $2.4 milliazases managed by this Venture.

In 2012, we provided a $1.0 million revolving linécredit to partially fund Balance Point Managet'®operations with such loan
bearing interest at the prevailing prime rate, vaithinitial term of twenty-four months. In SeptemB814 the agreement was revised to extenc
the term of the loan to August 2016, increase thditline to $1.5 million and include a personahgantee of the principal of Balance Point
Management. The revolving line of credit is coltatzed by Balance Point Management’s profits sliratbe Venture and other assets. At
September 30, 2014, the balance on the revolvirggdf credit was approximately $1.5 million.

Structured Settlement Business

On December 31, 2013, the Company acquired 80% rshipeof CBC and its affiliate, CBC Management $egs, LLC for
approximately $5.9 million. In addition, the Companill provide financing to CBC of up to $5 million

CBC purchases periodic payments under structurtdérsents and annuity policies from individualseixchange for a lump sum paym:
The operating principals of CBC, William J. SkyrEgg. and James Goodman, have over 30 years comiipedence in the structured
settlement s industry and remain as the managenh€®C.

CBC has a portfolio of structured settlements whscfinanced by approximately $32.3 million of delbcluding a $22.0 million line of
credit from an institutional source (approximat®B:4 million of the line was unused as of Septen3®2014) and notes issued by CBC to
third party investors. At September 30, 2014 thenGany has an invested value of $42.1 million inctired settlements.

Operations
Consumer Receivables

The Operations Servicing Division of consumer regkies consists of the Collection Department, whiahdles disputes and
correspondence, and the Accounting and Financerbegat.

Collection Department

The Collection Department is responsible for malkingtact with and receiving calls from consumerslfie purpose of collecting upon
the accounts contained in our consumer receivalugfolios. Collection efforts are specific to aoots that are not yet being serviced by our
network of external agencies and attorneys. Thée€@bn Department uses a friendly, customer sergjaproach to collect receivables and
utilizes collection software, a dialer and teleplegstem to accomplish this goal. Each collectoesponsible for:

Initiating outbound collection calls and handlimg@ming calls from the consumer;

Identifying the debt and iterating the benefitpafing the obligation;

Working with the customer to develop acceptablemaed satisfying the obligation; and

Offering (if necessary, and based upon the indadidituation) an obligor a discount on the oveoaligation.
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Additionally, the Collection Department utilizeseries of collection letters, late payment reminderd settlement offers that are sent
at specific intervals or at the request of a menolbéne Collection Department. If the Collectionfg2etment cannot contact the customer by
either telephone or mail, the account is skip-tateough an automated process to obtain the reostit contact information for the customer.
This process employs usage of data supplied byietyaf third party databases. Once new contdotination is obtained, the account is
referred back to the Collection Department andeotibn activity is once again initiated.

Other members of the Collection Department areaesiple for:

Coordinating customer inquiries and assisting thikection agencies in their processes, if needed,;

Handling the repurchase process of ineligible antoreceived from a seller that may be includea purchased portfolio;
Working with buyers during the transition periodigyost-sale process;

Handling any issues that may arise once a purchaseilable portfolio is sold; and

Reading incoming correspondence for accounts tieatwarently assigned to the Collection Departmensuring the account is handled
properly, taking the initial action required anaviiarding to a collector and/or manager for follopvaction.

Other responsibilities of the Collection Departmieiciude media requests, dispute resolution ancespondence activities.
Accounting and Finance Department

In addition to the customary accounting activitib® Accounting and Finance Department is respanii:

Making daily deposits of customer payments;

Posting payments to customers accounts; and

Providing senior management with daily, weekly amahthly receivable activity and performance reports

Accounting and finance employees assist colledepartment employees in handling customer dispetating to payment and balance
information and handling the repurchase requesta frompanies to whom we have sold receivables.

Additionally, the Accounting Department reviews tiesults of the collection of consumer receivaldgfplios that are being serviced by
third party collection agencies and attorneys. Abeounting and Finance Department also participatdise internal auditing of all business
segments.

Personal Injury Claims

The operations structure of the personal injuryncdaunit of Pegasus Funding, LLC includes:
Sales — the sales group is responsible for busiieaslopment and generating leads for possibleifignof personal injury cases.

Underwriting — The underwriting group is responsiidr analyzing the merits of the personal injugiras presented for possible
funding.

Accounting — The accounting group is responsibtetie reporting of all the financial operationsioé personal injury claims unit.
Structured Settlements
The operations structure of the structured setttegnenit of CBC Settlement, LLC includes:

Operations — Underwriting/Collections — The Operat Department is responsible for underwritingcpesing and collecting
structured settlement and annuity transactions.
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Marketing — The Marketing Group is responsibler@searching various court records to secure infoamao follow up for possible
structured settlement cases.

Sales — The Sales Group is responsible for thes salategy and advertising campaigns of CBC.

Accounting — The accounting group is responsibtelie reporting of all the financial operationstioé structured settlement unit.
Social security benefit advocacy

GAR Disability Advocates consists of the followidgpartments:

Intake — The Intake Department is responsible fient development, including screening leads anclibping information on
individual cases.

Case Management — The Case Management Departnoeeisges approved cases through the Social Sebisébility process.

Consumer Receivables — Collections Represented by@ount Sales

Certain collections represent account sales taralélet buyers to help maximize revenue and castsfloVe believe that our business
model of not having a large number of collectomjpied with a legal strategy which is focused darapting to perfect liens and judgments
against obligors, allows us the flexibility to saicounts at prices that are attractive to us, jastlas important, sell the less desirable aceount
within our collection portfolios. There are mangtiars that contribute to the decision as to whateivable to sell and which to service,
including:

» the age of the receivabl
« the status of the receivat— whether paying or ne-paying; anc
 the selling price

Net collections represented by account sales ffisical years ended September 30, 2014, 2013@tRI\Rere $0.1 million, $2.4 million
and $0.1 million, respectively. Collections représel by account sales as a percentage of tota&latiolhs for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was 0.3%, 4.584).2%, respectively.

Marketing

Consumer receivables

Our consumer debt portfolio purchases were fivéfplas purchases in fiscal year 2014; however, \agehmaintained our established
relationships with brokers who market consumerivatde portfolios from banks, finance companies atiter credit providers. In addition, we
subscribe to national publications that list consuneceivable portfolios for sale. We also direciytact banks, finance companies or other
credit providers to solicit consumer receivablesstle.

Personal injury claims

Pegasus does not invest in a formal marketing progat this time. It relies on external brokersginal sales professionals and attorneys
to maintain its market share.

Structured settlements

CBC purchases deferred cash flow receivables throeigil and wholesale channels. CBC invests iealito consumer marketing,
including, but not limited to, on line, televisiamd direct mail.

Social security benefit advocacy
GAR Disability Advocates utilizes search engineimjation (“SEQ”) to bring more awareness to pragje clients.
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Competition
Consumer receivables

Our business of purchasing distressed consumeivaddes is highly competitive and fragmented, ardexpect that competition from
new and existing companies will continue. We corapeth:

» other purchasers of consumer receivables, incluttiing-party collection companies; al
« other financial services companies who purchassuwosr receivable:

Some of our competitors are larger and more estadddi and may have substantially greater finarntei@hnological, personnel and other
resources than we have, including greater accebe toredit and capital markets. We believe thandovidual competitor or group of
competitors has a dominant presence in the market.

We compete in the marketplace for consumer rectvadrtfolios based on many factors, including:
» purchase price

» representations, warranties and indemnities reqdg

 timeliness of purchase decisions; ¢

* reputation

Our strategy is designed to capitalize on the niarkeck of a dominant industry player. We beli¢kiat our management’s experience
and expertise in identifying, evaluating, pricingdaacquiring consumer receivable portfolios and agarg collections, coupled with our
strategic alliances with thirgarty collection agencies and attorneys and ourceswof financing, give us a competitive advant&tmvever, we
cannot assure that we will be able to compete ssfay against current or future competitors @tttompetition will not increase in the
future.

The litigation funding business is highly competitiand fragmented, and we expect that competitimm hew and existing companies
will continue. We compete in the litigation fundingarketplace based on many factors, including:

cost of funds lent;
application Fee costs;
broker's commissions and bonuses paid;
reputation; and
direct and on-line marketing.
Personal injury claims

We believe that the managements of Pegasus hagpleetise and experience in identifying, evaluatpricing and acquisition of
litigating funding cases. However, we cannot asfumeour litigation funding businesses will beaats compete against current or future
competitors or that competition will not increasdhe future.

Structured settlements

CBC competes with brokers and other direct puraisasiedeferred consumer receivables. We competeeimarketplace for the purchi
of structured settlement and annuity cash flowsnany factors, including purchase price, reputatidfectiveness of marketing message and
reach. We expect competition from new and existimgpanies to continue. Some of our competitordaaiger and more established and may
have substantially greater financial, technologipatsonnel and other resources than we havedinglgreater access to credit and capital
markets. We believe that one of our competitors aw@punt for 50% or more of the industry volume #rat the remaining competitors are
fragmented.
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Social security benefit advocacy

The social security benefit advocacy environmewbispetitive. We believe our GAR Disability Advoeatmanagement has the
knowledge to compete in this environment. Nevedbglwe can offer no assurance that the busindsgmain competitive against current :
future competitors.

Seasonality and Trends

Consumer receivables

Our management believes that our operations magrte extent, be affected by high delinquency ratelsby lower recoveries on
consumer receivables acquired for liquidation dyion shortly following certain holiday periods atharing the summer months.

Personal injury claims

There are no discernable trends to indicate seligoimathe personal injury claims business.
Structured settlements

The purchase of deferred payment obligations isigptificantly impacted by the time of year and samer demand for advance funding
remains reasonably constant.

Social security benefit advocacy

There is no indication that seasonality has aniceable impact on GAR Disability Advocates.

Technology
Consumer receivables

We believe that a high degree of automation is &y to enable us to grow and successfully compigtieother finance companies.
Accordingly, we continually look to upgrade ourhieclogy systems to support the servicing and regoeconsumer receivables acquired for
liquidation. Our telecommunications and technolegstems allow us to quickly and accurately protagge amounts of data necessary to
purchase and service consumer receivable portfahicesddition, we rely on the information technaofagf our third-party collection agencies
and attorneys and periodically review their systéonsnsure that they can adequately service theutoer receivable portfolios outsourced to
them.

Due to our desire to increase productivity throagtomation, we periodically review our systemsgossible upgrades and
enhancements. We installed a new collection sysiamng fiscal year 2014.

Personal injury claims

Pegasus is dependent on its website to maintaiimanease its business and, therefore, must recuarent with technology.
Structured settlements

CBC recognizes that a high level of automatioregpuired to continue to grow and compete withinititistry. CBC has invested
significantly in technology since its inception goatticularly in its customer relationship managetr(ECRM”) system in order to maximize
large quantities of information. This technologpyides CBC management with the necessary tool im@e its processes to improve its
efficiency. CBC will continue to invest in technglp

Social security benefit advocacy

GAR Disability Advocates relies on substantial of¢éhe internet and, therefore, endeavors to remairent technologically.
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Government Regulation
Consumer receivables

Our businesses are subject to extensive federadtatel regulations. The relationship of a consuaneéra creditor is extensively regulated
by federal, state and local laws, rules, regulatiand ordinances. These laws include, but arémied to, the following federal statutes and
regulations: the Federal Truth-In-Lending Act, fraér Credit Billing Act (‘FCBA”), the Equal Cred®pportunity Act and the Fair Credit
Reporting Act (“FCRA”), as well as comparable stafuin states where consumers reside and/or whedé@ars are located. Among other
things, the laws and regulations applicable tootegicreditors impose disclosure requirements réggtte advertisement, application,
establishment and operation of credit card acconndgher types of credit programs. Federal lavwieg a creditor to disclose to consumers,
among other things, the interest rates, fees, gradeds and balance calculation methods assoacidthdheir accounts. In addition, consumers
are entitled to have payments and credits appliebeir accounts promptly, to receive prescribeticas and to request that billing errors be
resolved promptly. In addition, some laws prohdattain discriminatory practices in connection vitib extension of credit. Further, state laws
may limit the interest rate and the fees that ditsemay impose on consumers. Failure by the tweslio comply with applicable laws could
create claims and rights of offset by consumerswiuald reduce or eliminate their obligations, whizould have a material adverse effect on
our operations. Pursuant to agreements under wiegburchase receivables, we are typically inderadiéigainst losses resulting from the
failure of the creditor to have complied with applle laws relating to the receivables prior tomunchase of such receivables.

Certain laws, including the laws described abovay fimit our ability to collect amounts owing withspect to the receivables regardles:s
of any act or omission on our part. For exampleleurthe FCBA, a credit card issuer may be subgecettain claims and defenses arising out
of certain transactions in which a credit cardsediif the consumer has made a good faith attesrgditain satisfactory resolution of a problem
relative to the transaction and, except in casesravthere is a specified relationship between #regn honoring the card and the credit card
issuer, the amount of the initial transaction edse®50 and the place where the initial transadourred was in the same state as the
consumer’s billing address or within 100 milestwdttaddress. Accordingly, as a purchaser of defduticeivables, we may purchase
receivables subject to valid defenses on the faheoconsumer. Other laws provide that, in certagtances, consumers cannot be held liable
for, or their liability is limited to $50 with resggt to, charges to the credit card credit acccuattwere a result of an unauthorized use of the
credit card account. No assurances can be givéenain of the receivables were not establistsea @esult of unauthorized use of a credit
card account, and, accordingly, the amount of sackivables may not be collectible by us.

Several federal, state and local laws, rules, egguis and ordinances, including, but not limitedthe Fair Debt Collection Practices Act
(“FDCPA") and the Federal Trade Commission Act anthparable state statutes, regulate consumer didtton activity. Although, for a
variety of reasons, we may not be specifically sabjo the FDCPA or certain state statutes thaégothird-party debt collectors, it is our
policy to comply with applicable laws in our coltem activities. Additionally, our third-party celttion agencies and attorneys may be subjec
to these laws. To the extent that some or all eé¢Haws apply to our collection activities or third-party collection agencies’ and attorneys’
collection activities, failure to comply with sutdws could have a material adverse effect on us.

In order to comply with the foregoing laws and regions, we provide a comprehensive developmemtitig program for our new
collection/dispute department representatives anrgaing training for all collection/dispute depaemt associates. All collection and dispute
representatives are tested annually on their krdyeef the FDCPA and other applicable laws. Accaoaptesentatives not achieving our
minimum standards are required to complete a FD€Ri#ew session and are then retested. In addiiomyal supplemental instruction in the
FDCPA and collection techniques is provided tmall account representatives.

On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refard Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, wasoée@ There are significant
corporate governance and executive compensatiateteprovisions in the Dodd-Frank Act that reqtiire SEC to adopt additional rules and
regulations in areas such as corporate governance,
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“say on pay"and proxy access. Our efforts to comply with theespiirements have resulted in, and are likely t@tiooe to result in, an increa
in expenses and a diversion of managensdittie from other business activities. We are stilifechanging rules and regulations of federal
state governments, the Public Company Accountingr€ight Board (“PCAOB”), the Financial Industry Réatory Authority, Inc. (“FINRA")
and NASDAQ, all of which have issued a significantber of new and increasingly complex requiremantsregulations over the course of
the last several years and continue to develogiadédl regulations and requirements in respongavis enacted by Congress.

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act will subjectausubstantial additional federal regulation, amdcannot predict the effect of such
regulation on our business, results of operatiocash flows or financial condition. Through the Deditink Act, Congress established the
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the “CFP®Mhich has regulatory, supervisory and enforcematitaity over entities involved in
consumer financial markets. The CFPB has the aityttorconduct periodic examinations of “larger fp@pants” in each market, and we
believe it is likely that we will be subject to aramination.

The CFPB published a final rule on October 24, 2042t allows the agency to federally superviseldihger consumer debt collectors.
The CFPB also released the field guide that exarmiwél use to ensure that companies and banksgemgan debt collection are following the
law.

The consumer debt collection market covered byuleeincludes three main types of debt collectfirst, firms that may buy defaulted
debt and collect the proceeds for themselves; skdwms that may collect defaulted debt owned bgther company in return for a fee; and
third, debt collection attorneys that collect thghditigation. A single company may be involvedainy or all of these activities.

The CFPB’s supervisory authority over these estitiegan when the rule took effect on January 2320mder the rule, any firm that has
more than $10 million in annual receipts from cansudebt collection activities will be subject letCFPB’s supervisory authority. This
authority will extend to about 175 debt collectashich, according to the CFPB, account for ovepéfcent of the industry’s annual receipts ir
the consumer debt collection market.

Pursuant to the CFPB’s supervisory authority, exans will be assessing potential risks to consurmedswhether debt collectors are
complying with requirements of federal consumeaficial law. Among other things, examiners will baleating whether debt collectors
provide required disclosures; use accurate infaonamaintain a consumer complaint and disputelugism process; and communicate with
consumers in the manner required by law.

The CFPB’s general Supervision and Examination Maras well as its examination manual specifih®debt collection market,
provide guidance on how the Bureau will be conahgrtts monitoring of debt collection activities. &riners will evaluate the quality of the
regulated entity’s compliance management systeengew practices to ensure they comply with fedeasdsumer financial law, and identify
risks to consumers throughout the debt collectimtg@ss. The CFPB can seek relief that includesiggisn or reformation of contracts,
restitution, disgorgement of profits, payment oimdaes, limits on activities and civil money peredtof up to $1 million per day for knowing
violations.

As a company that engages in debt collection, veel ne be prepared for the heavy oversight thaCtReB will bring. Preparing for a
CFPB audit will cost time and money. Additionalflge CFPB has the power to bring an enforcememacti cause a required settlement.
Another large concern is the amount of privilegad aonfidential information the CFPB could releagkich can lead to private lawsuits —
including class and mass actions — as well as ctfa¢e and federal agency oversight.

The CFPB is expressly charged with prohibiting imféeceptive or abusive acts or practices. Thrdatgyhroad powers to regulate and
enforce federal consumer financial laws, the CFB@dplace restrictions on our business, the bssieeof our customers and the business o
our affiliates, if the CFPB were to determine thlgbuulemaking, supervisory or enforcement actiémsexample, that particular acts or
practices were unfair, deceptive or abusive to gcomss.

The CFPB will thus exercise supervisory authoritgrous. At this time, it is not possible or praatito attempt to provide a
comprehensive analysis of how these new laws aquatons may impact debt collectors.
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Additionally, the Dodd~rank Act empowers state attorneys general (oetjuévalent thereof) to bring civil actions in fededistrict cour
(or a state court that is located in that statethathas jurisdiction over the defendant), to esédTitle X of the Act or regulations issued by the
CFPB thereunder. Therefore, we could also be thgsuof investigations and enforcement actionshieyFederal Trade Commission or by
state agencies (e.g., state attorneys generalywitlers to enforce CFPB regulations and the FCRA.

The Dodd-Frank Act authorized the CFPB to presanitbes interpreting the FDCPA. On November 12, 2@8 CFPB signaled its
intention to promulgate substantive rules undeiRREPA by publishing an Advance Notice of PropoRetemaking (ANPR) with regard to
debt collection practices. The ANPR requested comisneith regard to a wide array of issues relatindebt collection. The comment period
closed on February 28, 2014. The CFPB is contintormgview the comments and has not yet issuedpoged rule.

The Company has and will continue to have a subgtaoompliance program and maintain procedurenture that the law is followed
and that consumer complaints are dealt with ingprapriate fashion.

Additional laws or amendments to existing laws, rhayenacted that could impose additional restnstion the servicing and collection
of receivables. Such new laws or amendments magraely affect our ability to collect the receivable

We currently hold a number of licenses issued uagelicable consumer credit laws or other licensitagutes or regulations. Certain of
our current licenses, and any licenses that welmeagquired to obtain in the future, may be sulijggteriodic renewal provisions and/or other
requirements. Our inability to renew licenses otalee any other required action with respect tddisenses could have a material adverse
effect upon our results of operation and financaidition.

Personal injury claims

Numerous states have recently introduced legisiatith respect to the litigation funding busineskijch, up to now, has been largely
unregulated. According to the National ConfererfcBtate Legislatures, 14 states had legislatiordpgnregarding litigation financing
transactions during the 2014 legislative sessind,ta/o states enacted legislation during calendar 2014. While the legislation varies from
state to state, these proposed laws generally wesiliblish requirements for contracts relatingtigaltion funding, including setting maximum
amounts of interest, fees and other charges thatmamposed.

Structured settlements

With respect to the structured settlement busing&states have enacted regulations commonly esféoras Structured Settlement
Protection Acts (“SSPA’s"). The statutes generadigiuire certain consumer disclosures as well agitiag that each transaction be filed in
court and receive judicial approval. In additiortlie state SSPAs, U.S. Code 5891, passed intal2@02, imposes a 40% excise tax of 40%
on any transactions not approved in compliance thighapplicable SSPA.

Social security benefit advocacy

The liquidity of funds available to pay Social Setudisability benefits could have a material inspan the GAR Disability Advocates
business.
Employees

As of September 30, 2014, we had 80 full-time eypds. We are not a party to any collective barggiaigreements.

Additional Information

Our web address is www.astafunding.c@opies of our Form 10-Ks, 10-Qs, 8-Ks, proxy statets, amendments thereto, and other SE
reports are available on our website as soon asmehly practical after filing electronically withe Securities and Exchange Commission . N
part of our web site is incorporated by referemte this report.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.
Note Regarding Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risk factors kelo evaluating us. In addition to the followingks, there may also be risks that we do
not yet know of or that we currently think are inter&l that may also impair our business operatiofiny of the following risks occur, our
business, results of operation or financial coratitcould be adversely affected, the trading priceww common stock could decline and
stockholders might lose all or part of their invesint. The risk factors presented below are thosehade currently consider material.
However, they are not the only risks facing our pany. Additional risks not presently known to usybich we currently consider immateri
may also adversely affect us. There may be risksatiparticular investor views differently from @as\d our analysis might be wrong. If any of
the risks that we face actually occur, our businésancial condition and operating results coule materially adversely affected and could
differ materially from any possible results suggddby any forward-looking statements that we haadeamr might make. In such case, the
trading price of our common stock could declined &ou could lose part or all of your investmdecept as required by law, we expressly
disclaim any obligation to update or revise any ¥gard-looking statements.

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refoand Consumer Protection Act subjects us to subsiradditional federal
regulation, and we cannot predict the effect of $uegulation on our business, results of operatiqreash flows or financial condition.

On July 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refarmd Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, wasoted There are significant
corporate governance and executive compensatiateceprovisions in the Dodd-Frank Act that reqtive SEC to adopt additional rules and
regulations in these areas such as “say on paypend access. Our efforts to comply with thesaunements have resulted in, and are likely
to continue to result in, an increase in expenadsadiversion of management’s time from other iess activities.

Given the uncertainty associated with the mannartiich the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act will imeplemented by the various
regulatory agencies and through regulations, theftent of the impact such requirements will haweour operations is unclear. The changes
resulting from the Dodd-Frank Act may impact thefjtability of business activities, require changesertain business practices, or otherwise
adversely affect our business. In particular, thteptial impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our oprenag and activities, both currently and
prospectively, include, among others:

* increased cost of operations due to greater regylatersight, supervision and compliance with ecmnsr debt issuance and collect
practices; an

« the limitation on the ability to expand consumeawdarct and service offerings due to anticipateatgriconsumer protection laws and
regulations

The Dodd-Frank Act establishes the CFPB, whichtdnaad regulatory powers over debt collectors anaily all other “covered
persons” who have any connection to consumer fiahpooducts or services. The CFPB has exclusileemaking authority with respect to all
significant federal statutes that impact the coitecindustry, including the FDCPA, the FCRA, arttlars. This means, for example, that the
CFPB has the ability to pass rules and regulatibasinterpret any of the provisions of the FDCPBAtentially impacting all facets of the
collection channel. Federal agencies, including@R®B, have been given significant discretion iaftilng the rules and regulations that will
implement the Dodd-Frank Act. Consequently, manghefdetails and much of the impact of the Doddikract may not be known for some
time. In addition, this legislation mandated mué#iptudies and reports for Congress, which cowddItén additional legislative or regulatory
action.

The CFPB has the authority to conduct periodic érations of “larger participants” in each marketdave believe it is likely that we
will be subject to an examination.

We cannot predict the requirements of the regulatidtimately adopted under the Dodd-Frank Act,gfiect such regulations will have
on financial markets generally, or on our businesgecifically, the additional

19



Table of Contents

costs associated with compliance with such reguratior any changes to our operations that mayebessary to comply with the Dodd-Frank
Act, any of which could have a material adverseafbn our business, results of operations, castsfbr financial condition.
Government regulations may limit our ability to rewer and enforce the collection of our receivables.

Federal, state and local laws, rules, regulatiomsaadinances may limit our ability to recover ardorce our rights with respect to the
receivables acquired by us. These laws includeatmnhot limited to, the following federal statutasl regulations promulgated thereunder anc
comparable statutes in states where consumergrasdior where creditors are located:

» The Fair Debt Collection Practices A
* The Federal Trade Commission A

e The Trutt-In-Lending Act;

e The Fair Credit Billing Act

e The Equal Credit Opportunity Ac

e The Fair Credit Reporting Ac

» The Financial Privacy Rult

» The Safeguards Rul

» Telephone Consumer Protection A

» Health Insurance Portability and Accountability A4tIPAA”)/Health Information Technology for Econdoal and Clinical Health
Act (“HITECH");

» U.S. Bankruptcy Code; ar
» Credit Card Accountability Responsibility and Disslire Act of 200€

We may be precluded from collecting receivablepuwehase where the creditor or other previous ownéhmird-party collection agency
or attorney failed to comply with applicable lawdriginating or servicing such acquired receivablesvs relating to the collection of
consumer debt also directly apply to our busin@ss.failure to comply with any laws applicable t® including state licensing laws, could
limit our ability to recover on receivables and kebsubject us to fines and penalties, which coaltlice our earnings and result in a default
under our loan arrangements. In addition, our thady collection agencies and attorneys may b@stio these and other laws and their
failure to comply with such laws could also matkyiadversely affect our finance income and earsing

Additional laws or amendments to existing laws rbayenacted that could impose additional restristiom the servicing and collection
receivables. Such new laws or amendments may adyeffect the ability to collect on our receivaflevhich could also adversely affect our
finance income and earnings.

Because our receivables are generally originatddsarviced pursuant to a variety of federal, sta@/or local laws by a variety of entit
and may involve consumers in all 50 states, thé&ridif Columbia, Puerto Rico and South Amerid¢gre can be no assurance that all
originating and servicing entities have, at alldenbeen in substantial compliance with applic&de Additionally, there can be no assurance
that we or our thirgearty collection agencies and attorneys have bearillacontinue to be at all times in substantiahgpliance with applicab
law. Failure to comply with applicable law could texdally adversely affect our ability to collectroneceivables and could subject us to
increased costs, fines and penalties.

We are subject to changing rules and regulatiorieddral and state government as well as the swckange on which our common
stock is listed. These entities, including PCAQ#R: SEC and the NASDAQ Global Market, have issusigi@ificant number of new and
increasingly complex requirements and regulatiores the course of the last several years and aontio develop additional regulations and
requirements in response to laws enacted by Congres
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We have identified a material weakness in our imaf control over financial reporting, specificallyelated to our revenue recognition
process, and our business and stock price coulcabeersely affected if we do not adequately addtegsweakness, or if we have other
material weaknesses in our internal control ovenéincial reporting.

Management identified a material weakness in cwrival control over financial reporting relatedtfte revenue recognition process in
consumer receivables portfolios, specifically retbto the application of the interest method obaoting as promulgated ccounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 310-30, ReceivablesLoans and Debt Securities Acquired with DetetiedaQuality. As a result of this
material weakness, our Chief Executive Officer @mief Financial Officer concluded that, as of tinel ®f the period covered by this report,
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures wateffiective. The existence of this material weasneould result in errors in our financial
statements, and substantial costs and resourcebenayuired to rectify any internal control dediaties. If we cannot produce reliable
financial reports, investors could lose confideimceur reported financial information, the marketp of our stock could decline significantly,
we may be unable to obtain additional financingperate and expand our business, and our busindggancial condition could be harmed.

We are subject to various risks in connection wihr structured settlement funding business.

Risks of the structured settlement funding busimedside the potential regulation that could steomf the Dodd Frank Act, state
regulation and/or any other change in statutoryase law which may limit or restrict the abilityadir structured settlement business to: make
investments; the effectiveness of our marketinggmms; and our ability to continue to grow the woduof structured settlements. Our failure
or inability to execute any element of our busirgsategy could materially adversely affect ouribess, financial position and results of
operations.

We are subject to various risks in connection wihr litigation funding business.

Risks of the litigation funding business include fiotential regulation or limitation of interestes and other fees advanced by our
litigation funding subsidiaries under federal amdtate regulation, a change in statutory or casenhich limits or restricts the ability of our
litigation funding subsidiaries to charge or callees and interest at anticipated levels, claismietng unsuccessful in whole or in part in the
personal injury claims or divorce settlement updmol our funds are provided, the continued servideghe senior management of our
litigation funding subsidiaries to source and amalgases in accordance with the subsidiaries’ otispeunderwriting guidelines.

We are subject to various risks in connection wihr structured settlement funding business.

Risks of the structured settlement funding busimedside the potential regulation that could steomf the Dodd Frank Act, state
regulation and/or any other change in statutoryase law which may limit or restrict the abilityadir structured settlement business to: make
investments; the effectiveness of our marketingms; and our ability to continue to grow the woduof structured settlements. Competition
in the marketplace could drive up the purchasespicstructured settlement and annuity receivalfidditionally, the fact that one company
controls at least 50% of the marketplace meansothat players, including us, may be negativelydotpd by strategic decisions employed by
this competitor. Our failure or inability to exeeudny element of our business strategy and/orasexcompetition in the marketplace could
materially adversely affect our business, finanp@dition and results of operations.

We are subject to various risks in connection toralisability advocacy business.

We have recently entered the disability advocaain®ss and are subject to all of the risks inhareatnew business. We are incurring
substantial start-up costs and there can be noaagsithis business segment will become profitabtbe future. Risks of the disability
advocacy business include the competition of adldeocacy firms, statutory cut backs on the Fed@isdbility program and stricter guidelines
in qualifying for disability benefits.
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We may not be able to purchase consumer receivabl¢folios at favorable prices or on sufficientia¥orable terms if at all.

Our success in this business segment depends lip@ontinued availability of consumer receivabletfptios that meet our purchasing
criteria and our ability to identify and financesthurchases of such portfolios. The availabilitgofisumer receivable portfolios at favorable
prices and on terms acceptable to us, if at giedds on a number of factors outside of our controluding:

» the growth in consumer del

» the volume of consumer receivable portfolios avdddor sale

 availability of financing to fund purchase

» competitive factors affecting potential purchaserd sellers of consumer receivable portfolios;

» possible future changes in the bankruptcy lawse $éa&vs and homestead acts which could make it whiffieult for us to collect

Our future operating results will be negatively irapted as we have not replaced our defaulted consuraeeivables at historic levels.

To operate profitably, we must continually acquaeinvest in a sufficient level of various typdseceivables to generate continued
revenue. Our investment in charged off consumegivables during fiscal year 2014, 2013, and 20k2dt@awved dramatically. As the economic
environment deteriorated, we felt that pricing oftfolios had not fallen enough to offset the deelin ultimate collections. Accordingly, our
investment in portfolios was $5.1 million in 2018.4 million in 2013, and $2.5 million in 2012 coampd to $8.0 million in 2010 and
$19.6 million in 2009. In part, this led to our metsh collections in fiscal 2014 decreasing $13l%om, or 25.8%, from $54.1 million in fiscal
year 2013 to $40.2 million in fiscal year 2014. thermore, of those collections, $26.7 million fmchl year 2014 and $33.2 million for fist
year 2013 came from zero basis portfolios (whoseyitey value has been reduced to zero). Our deecelevel of buying new portfolios durir
fiscal years 2014, 2013, and 2012 will likely résalfuture reduced net cash collections in figezdr 2015 and slow the growth of our future
revenues and operating results in the consumern@debof our business. Furthermore, we cannot ptéiw our ability to identify and invest
receivables, and evaluate the quality of thoseivabtes, would be affected if there is a shift ansumer lending practices whether caused by
changes in regulations or by a sustained econoavimtlirn. In addition, effective October 1, 2013, tnansferred the remaining $13.1 million
of interest method portfolios to cost recovery. Ehst recovery method of recognizing revenue celdd the revenue recognition rate as the
cost recovery method precludes the recognitioreémue until the Company’s cost has been fullyversd.

Our inability to invest in sufficient quantities ofeceivables portfolios may necessitate workforeductions, which may harm our
business.

Because fixed costs, such as personnel costs,jtadast significant portion of our overhead, we nb@yrequired to reduce the number of
employees if we do not continually invest in readiles. Reducing the number of employees can adyefect our business and lead to:

» lower employee morale, higher employee attriticiesaand fewer experienced employse
 disruptions in our operations and loss of efficieirccollection functions

* excess costs associated with unused space intoatidacilities; anc

« further reliance on our third party collection agiess and attorney

There is no assurance that we will realize the fulllue of the deferred tax asset.

Although the carry forward period for income taxesp to twenty years, such allowance period isideta reasonable period to forecast
full realization of the deferred tax asset. We aardlly monitor forecast information to ensure tladuation allowance is appropriate.
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We may not be able to collect sufficient amountsaur consumer receivable portfolios to recover thests associated with the purchase
of those portfolios and to fund our operations.

We acquire and collect on consumer receivable @ar# that contain charged-off, semi-performingd gerforming receivables. In order
to operate profitably over the long term, we musttmually purchase and collect on a sufficieniwoé of receivables to generate revenue the
exceeds our purchase costs. For accounts thaharged-off or semi-performing, the originatorsmterim owners of the receivables generally
have:

* made numerous attempts to collect on these oldiggtioften using both their in-house collectiorifstad third-party collection
agencies; an

» subsequently deemed these obligations as uncoliec

These receivable portfolios are purchased at sigmif discounts to the amount the consumers owesd heceivables are difficult to
collect and actual recoveries may be less thaaitt@unt expected. In addition, our collections maysen in a weak economic cycle. We may
not recover amounts in excess of our acquisitiahsamvicing costs.

Our ability to recover the purchase costs on outfgiios and produce sufficient returns can be tiegly impacted by the quality of the
purchased receivables. In the normal course opottfolio acquisitions, some receivables may béuithed in the portfolios that fail to conform
to certain terms of the purchase agreements andayeseek to return these receivables to the dellgrayment or replacement receivables.
However, we cannot guarantee that any of suchrseillidl be able to meet their payment obligatiomsis. Accounts that we are unable to re
to sellers may yield no return. If cash flows froperations are less than anticipated as a resalirahability to collect sufficient amounts on
our receivables, our ability to satisfy our debligdttions, purchase new portfolios, and achievargigrowth and profitability may be materie
adversely affected.

We are subject to competition for the purchase ohsumer receivable portfolios which could result @am increase in prices of such
portfolios.

We compete with other purchasers of consumer rabkvportfolios, with third-party collection ageesiand with financial services
companies that manage their own consumer receiyaitéolios. We compete on the basis of price, tafon, industry experience and
performance. Some of our competitors have greafgtal, personnel and other resources than we Aédeepossible entry of new competitors,
including competitors that historically have focdgm the acquisition of different asset types, tnedexpected increase in competition from
current market participants may reduce our acaeserisumer receivable portfolios. Aggressive pgdiy our competitors has raised the price
of consumer receivable portfolios above levels Watare willing to pay, which could reduce the n@mbf consumer receivable portfolios
suitable for us to purchase or if purchased byaduce the profits, if any, generated by such phbot. If we are unable to purchase receivable
portfolios at favorable prices or at all, our ficarincome and earnings could be materially reduced.

We depend upon third parties to service a signifitportion of our consumer receivable portfoliosh& loss of certain servicers could
have an adverse effect on our financial positiondnesults of operation.

Although we utilize our in-house collection stadfihitiate the collection process to collect sorhewr receivables, we outsource a
majority of our receivable servicing. As 37% of qartfolio face value is serviced by five organiaat, we are dependent upon the efforts of
these collection agencies and attorneys to searidecollect our consumer receivables. Any failyrebr third-party collection agencies and
attorneys to adequately perform collection servfoesis or remit such collections to us could miatrreduce our finance income and our
profitability. In addition, our finance income apdbfitability could be materially adversely affedté we are not able to secure replacement
third party collection agencies and attorneys autirect payments from the customers to our newd {héirty collection agencies and attorneys
promptly in the event our agreements with our tpiadty collection agencies and attorneys are teateth our third-party collection agencies
and attorneys fail to adequately perform theirgddiions or if our relationships with such third{yacollection agencies and attorneys adversel
change.
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We may rely on third parties to locate, identify devaluate consumer receivable portfolios availafide purchase.

We may rely on third parties, including brokers dimidd-party collection agencies and attorneysdémtify consumer receivable
portfolios and, in some instances, to assist wlirevaluation and purchase of these portfoliosa Assult, if such third parties fail to identify
receivable portfolios or if our relationships wihch third parties are not maintained, our abititydentify and purchase additional receivable
portfolios could be materially adversely affectedaddition, if we, or such parties, fail to corlgmr adequately evaluate the value or
collectability of these consumer receivable portfalwe may pay too much for such portfolios anffieswan impairment, which would
negatively impact our earnings.

We rely on our third party collectors to comply Wwiall rules and regulations and maintain proper iatnal controls over their accounting
and operations.

Because the receivables were originated and serpigesuant to a variety of federal and/or stateslawa variety of entities and involved
consumers in all 50 states, the District of ColiemBianama and Puerto Rico there can be no assuhated original servicing entities have
all times, been in substantial compliance with aaile law. Additionally, there can be no assuraheg¢ we or our third-party collection
agencies and attorneys have been or will contioltat all times in substantial compliance withlaable law. The failure to comply with
applicable law and not maintain proper controlthiir accounting and operations could materiallyeasely affect our ability to collect our
receivables and could subject us to increased,dosts and penalties.

Our collections may decrease if bankruptcy filingsrease.

During times of economic recession, the amountedddted consumer receivables generally increaggish contributes to an increase
the amount of personal bankruptcy filings. Undetaia bankruptcy filings, a debtor’s assets aré solrepay credit originators, but since the
defaulted consumer receivables we purchase areajsnensecured, we may not be able to collectmsé receivables. Our collections may
decline with an increase in bankruptcy filingsolfr actual collection experience with respect tiefaulted consumer receivable portfolio is
significantly lower than we projected when we pasid the portfolio, our earnings could be negatiaéfected.

The loss of any of our executive officers may adsaly affect our operations and our ability to suesfully acquire receivable portfolios.

Our executive officers are responsible for makinigssantially all management decisions, includinggpdeining which portfolios to
purchase, the purchase price and other materiabtef such portfolio acquisitions. These decisiamsinstrumental to the success of our
business. Significant losses of the services ofeaeacutive officers or the inability to replace afficers with individuals who have experience
in the industry or with the Company could disrupt operations and adversely affect our abilitytocessfully acquire receivable portfolios.

The Stern family effectively controls the Comparsybstantially reducing the influence of our othetakholders.

Members of the Stern family own directly or indiffgcapproximately 32% of our outstanding sharesahmon stock. As a result, the
Stern family is able to significantly influence thetions that require stockholder approval, inalgdi

* the election of our directors; al
» the approval of mergers, sales of assets or otireorate transactions or matters submitted fork$tolcler approval

As a result, our other stockholders may have redlirduence over matters submitted for stockhokgproval. In addition, the Stern
family’s influence could preclude any unsolicited acgaisibf us and, consequently, materially adversélgcathe price of our common stox
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An unfavorable government review of our tax returieeuld adversely affect our operating results.

Our tax filings are subject to review or audit bg tnternal Revenue Service (“IRS”) and state acdlltaxing authorities. In April 2010,
we received notification from the IRS that certafrour federal income tax returns would be auditdte years under audit are 2008 through
2012. This audit is currently in progress. The BX&minations of our federal tax returns could resusignificant proposed adjustments. We
can provide no assurance that any final deterngnati an audit will not be materially different thtéhe treatment reflected in our historical
income tax provisions and accruals. An assessniexttditional taxes as a result of an audit coulgeaskly affect our income tax provision and
net income in the period or periods for which tiietiermination is made.

Negative press regarding the debt collection indyghay have a negative impact on a customer’s wiless to pay the debt we acquire.

Consumers are exposed to information from a nurobsources that may cause them to be more reluigraty their debts or to pursue
legal actions against us. On-line, print and othedia publish stories about the debt collectiorugtdy which cite specific examples of abusive
collection practices. These stories can lead todpel dissemination of the story, adding to theelef exposure to negative publicity about our
industry. Various Internet sites are maintainednelmnsumers can list their concerns about theites of debt collectors and seek guidance
from other website posters on how to handle theastn. Advertisements by debt relief attorneys aredlit counseling centers are becoming
more common, adding to the negative attention gteewur industry. As a result of this negative jicibf, customers may be more reluctant to
pay their debts or could pursue legal action agaissegardless of whether those actions are wadamhese actions could impact our ability
to collect on the receivables we acquire and affectrevenues and profitability.

Class action suits and other litigation could ditesur management’s attention from operating our biness and increase our expenses.

Originators, debt purchasers and third-party ctibecagencies and attorneys in the consumer credlistry are frequently subject to
putative class action lawsuits and other litigatiGlaims include failure to comply with applicaltdevs and regulations and improper or
deceptive origination and servicing practices. Bardefendant in such class action lawsuits orrditigation could materially adversely affect
our results of operations and financial condition.

We may seek to make acquisitions that prove unsgsfid or strain or divert our resources.

We may seek to grow through acquisitions of rel&tasinesses in the financial services sector. &ughisitions present risks that could
materially adversely affect our business and firgmerformance, including:

 the diversion of our managem’s attention from our everyday business activi
» the assimilation of the operations and personn#i®ficquired busines

* the contingent and latent risks associated withptst operations of, and other unanticipated proslarising in, the acquired
business; an

» the need to expand management, administration pactional system:

If we make such acquisitions, we cannot predicttiviie

» we will be able to successfully integrate the opiers of any new businesses into our busin
» we will realize any anticipated benefits of compteaicquisitions; ¢

« there will be substantial unanticipated costs dasedt with acquisitions

In addition, future acquisitions by us may resnit i

» potentially dilutive issuances of our equity setesi
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* the incurrence of additional debt; a
* the recognition of significant charges for depréoimaand impairment charges related to goodwill atiger intangible asset

If our technology infrastructure is not operationabur operations could be disrupted and our ability successfully operate the business
could be compromised.

Our success depends, in part, on sophisticatecbteimunications and computer systems. The temptoasyof our computer or
telecommunications systems, through casualty, tipgrenalfunction or service provider failure, cowirupt our operations. In addition, we
must record and process significant amounts of giaiekly and accurately to properly bid on prospecacquisitions of receivable portfolios
and to access, maintain and expand the databasesawer our collection and monitoring activitidgy failure of our information systems and
their backup systems would interrupt our operatidvie may not have adequate backup arrangemenrdd fifrour operations and we may in
significant losses if an outage occurs. In addjtiea rely on third-party collection agencies arndraieys who also may be adversely affected i
the event of an outage in which the third-partyezion agencies and attorneys do not have adefaateip arrangements. Any interruption in
our operations or our third-party collection agestiand attorneys’ operations could have an adwadfeet on our results of operations and
financial condition. However, we are in the processnplementing a disaster recovery program whichuld mitigate this risk.

A cyber security incident could have a negativeeetfon our business as we outsource a significamoant of the collection accounts
with personal information electronically.

A security breach could have a detrimental effeécbor business as we maintain a significant amofipersonal information in our
electronic files. A breach of our system or a lefikhe personal information we maintain could leage/ulnerable to, among other things, loss
of information and potential litigation each of whicould have a material adverse effect on oumiessi

Our organizational documents and Delaware law mayke it harder for us to be acquired without the cgent and cooperation of our
board of directors and management.

Several provisions of our organizational documeamnis Delaware law may deter or prevent a takeovemat, including a takeover
attempt in which the potential purchaser offerpdy a per share price greater than the currenteharice of our common stock. Under the
terms of our certificate of incorporation, our babaf directors has the authority, without furtheti@an by the stockholders, to issue shares of
preferred stock in one or more series and to &xrights, preferences, privileges and restrictibieseof. The ability to issue shares of preferrec
stock could tend to discourage takeover or acdosfiroposals not supported by our current boardirectors. In addition, we are subject to
Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation,halich restricts business combinations with sotoekholders once the stockholder
acquires 15% or more of our common stock.

We have adopted a stockholder rights plan which kkbmake it more difficult for a third-party to acque us.

We adopted a stockholder rights plan which is idéshto protect us from efforts to obtain controusfthat are inconsistent with our best
interests and the interests of our stockholders.rights will be exercisable ten days following #elier of the public announcement that a
stockholder has acquired 20% or more of our comstock without board approval or the announcemeattehder offer which results in the
ownership of 20% or more of our common stock. & tights become exercisable, all rights holdersgiothan the person triggering the rights)
will be entitled to acquire our securities at astahtial discount. Because the rights may substntilute the stock ownership of a person or
group attempting to take over the Company withbatapproval of our board of directors, the rightsmpould make it more difficult for a
third-party to acquire us or a significant percgetaf our outstanding capital stock, without finsgotiating with the board of directors.
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Future sales of our common stock by our affiliates other stockholders may depress our stock price.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our camstock in the public market could cause a deergathe market price of our
common stock. We had 13,060,839 shares of comnoak &sued and outstanding as of June 15, 2018he3€ shares, 4,196,806 are owned
by our affiliates. In addition, options to purchdsé03,259 shares of our common stock were outstgrad of September 30, 2014, of which
888,587 were exercisable. We may also issue additghares in connection with our business and gnaiyt additional stock options or
restricted shares to our employees, officers, threand consultants under our present or futuséyeqompensation plans or we may issue
warrants to third parties outside of such plansoASeptember 30, 2014, there were 1,566,279 shaskable for such purpose with such
shares available under the 2012 Stock Option anfdiifeance Award Plan. If a significant portion bEte shares were sold in the public
market, the market value of our common stock ctl@dversely affected.

We have the ability to issue preferred shares, veauts, convertible debt and other securities withatibckholder approval which could
dilute the relative ownership interest of currentogkholders and adversely affect our share price.

Future sales of our equity-related securities ephblic market, including sales of our common lsfmersuant to our shelf-registration
statement, could adversely affect the trading psfoeur common stock and our ability to raise fumdaew stock offerings. Our common shi
may be subordinate to classes of preferred shesaed in the future in the payment of dividends@thér distributions made with respect to
common shares, including distributions upon ligtimaor dissolution. Our certificate of incorpoiati permits our board of directors to issue
preferred shares without first obtaining stockholgigproval. If we issued preferred shares, thed@iadal securities may have dividend or
liquidation preferences senior to our common shafege issue convertible preferred shares, a aysgt conversion may dilute the current
common stockholders’ interest. We have similaritidsl to issue convertible debt, warrants and oglagrity securities.

Climate change and related regulatory responses radyersely impact our business.

Climate change as a result of emissions of greesghgases is a significant topic of discussion aag generate federal and other
regulatory responses in the near future, includlmgimposition of a so-called “cap and trade” syst# is impracticable to predict with any
certainty the impact on our business of climatengesor the regulatory responses to it, althoughemegnize that they could be significant.
most direct impact is likely to be an increasenergy costs, which would increase slightly our agiag costs, primarily through increased
utility and transportations costs. In addition,remsed energy costs could impact consumers arrcathibily to incur and repay indebtedness.
However, it is too soon for us to predict with argrtainty the ultimate impact, either directionallyquantitatively, of climate change and
related regulatory responses.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate an@wese our stock price to decline.

Because of the nature of our business, our quadedrating results may fluctuate, which may adefgraffect the market price of our
common stock. Our results may fluctuate as a reduahy of the following:

* the timing and amount of collections on our consuraeeivable portfolios

 our inability to identify and acquire additionalrsumer receivable portfolio

» adecline in the estimated future value of our comer receivable portfolio recoverie
 increases in operating expenses associated withrdweh of our operation:

» general and economic market conditions;

» Prices we are willing to pay for consumer receiegirtfolios.
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ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comment

The Company received several comment letters begjron March 7, 2014 from the Securities and Exglea@ommission Division of
Corporation Finance (“SEC"), the last dated Octdhe2014, concerning its Annual Report on Form 1fKthe fiscal year ended
September 30, 2013. Additionally, verbal commundaatvith the SEC Staff addressed further commeiitts rggard to the Company’s Form
10-K for the fiscal years ended September 30, 20182012 and for the first three quarters of figear 2014. The SEC requested, among
other things, information concerning the Compamgignue recognition policy on consumer receivaategiired for liquidation and the
Company’s application of Generally Accepted AccaumPrinciples in the United States thereon. Weshavised the fiscal year 2013 and
2012 financial statements contained in this RepofEorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended Fiscal Y2@t4 and have restated the quarterly date
for the first three quarters in fiscal year 2014Niote T. The Company is in the process of finafiztis discussions with the SEC in order to
resolve the Staff Comments. Please see Note Af AeaConsolidated financial statements for thequkended September 30, 2014 for more
information.

Item 2. Properties

Our executive and administrative offices are lodateEnglewood Cliffs, New Jersey, where we legg@raximately 14,700 square feel
general office space for approximately $21,000menth, plus utilities. The lease expires on JulyZI15, with a two-year renewal option.

Our office in Houston, Texas occupies approxima®e800 square feet of general office space for@pprately $3,800 per month. The
lease expires on August 18, 2016.

Our New York City office occupies approximately 8)6square feet for approximately $19,000 per mantiuding electricity. The lease
expires in September 2017.

Our Conshohocken, Pennsylvania office occupiescqipiately 5,800 square feet for approximately $0@,per month, plus utilities. T
lease expires in January 2020.

We believe that our existing facilities are adeguat our current needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of our business, we areliragbin numerous legal proceedings. We regulailjaite collection lawsuits, using thi
party law firms, against consumers. Also, consurnecasionally initiate litigation against us, iniainthey allege that we have violated a
federal or state law in the process of collectingheir account. We do not believe that these argicourse matters are material to our bus
and financial condition. As of the date of thisaepwe were not involved in any material litigation which we were a defendant.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ltem 5.  Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters anduer Purchases of Equity Securitie

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the symbol “ASFIL.” On Decembe2@14 there were 15
holders of record of our common stock. High and &ales prices of our common stock since Octob2012 as reported by NASDAQ are set
forth below (such quotations reflect inter-dealgcgs without retail markup, markdown, or commissiand may not necessarily represent
actual transactions):

High Low

2013

October 1, 2012 to December 31, 2( $10.4¢ $7.9¢5

January 1, 2013 to March 31, 2C 9.82 9.1¢

April 1, 2013 to June 30, 20: 9.6¢ 8.27

July 1, 2013 to September 30, 2( 9.11 8.3:
2014

October 1, 2013 to December 31, 2( $ 8.8t $7.94

January 1, 2014 to March 31, 2C 8.5¢ 7.9¢

April 1, 2014 to June 30, 20: 8.77 8.0¢

July 1, 2014 to September 30, 2( 8.51 8.11

Dividends

Future dividend payments will be at the discretibour board of directors and will depend upon financial condition, operating resul
capital requirements and any other factors ourdoéadirectors deems relevant. In addition, oueagrents with our lender may, from time to
time, restrict our ability to pay dividends. Curtlgrthere are no restrictions in place. The Compdidynot declare any dividends for fiscal year
2014.

Share Repurchase Program

On March 9, 2012, we adopted a Rule 10b5-1 Plaomunction with our share repurchase programah#torized us to purchase up to
$20.0 million of shares of our common stock. Unitheit program, which expired in March 2013, we pasgd 885,000 shares at an aggregate
cost of approximately $7.9 million. The Rule 10b®l&an superseded the authorization to repurchasesin June 2011, pursuant to which we
repurchased approximately 59,000 shares at angaggreost of approximately $457,000. AdditionaityJune 2012, we repurchased
1.0 million shares for $9.4 million in a privatelggotiated transaction. We repurchased an aggrefjafgproximately 1.9 million shares at an
aggregate cost of approximately $17.8 million. Viteribt repurchase any shares in fiscal year 2014.
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Performance Graph

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set farttany of our filings under the Securities Act 883, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that might irzatp by reference thForm 10-K, in whole or in part, the following Penfisance Graph
shall not be incorporated by reference into anyhsfilings.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100

September 2014
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—&— NASDAQ MARKET INDEX
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ASTA FUNDING, INC. 100.0C| 101.97| 109.4¢| 127.97| 122.1:| 112.7¢
NASDAQ MARKET INDEX 100.0(| 112.6:| 115.9¢] 151.3¢| 185.8(| 224.0¢
PEER GROUP INDE)
PEER GROUP INDE) 100.0( | 135.97| 134.0°| 206.6¢| 345.1°| 308.1:
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following tables set forth a summary of oursaidated financial data as of and for the fivedisyears ended September 30, 2014.
The selected financial data for the five fiscalrgeanded September 30, 2014, have been derivedduormudited consolidated financial
statements. The selected financial data presemievishould be read in conjunction with our cordatiéd financial statements, related notes
including Note A(2), other financial informationdiuded elsewhere in this report, including the iinfation set forth in Iltem 7 “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations”. Certain items in prior ywearformation have been reclassified to
conform to the current year's presentation.

Year Ended September 30
(In thousands, except per share date

2014 2013(1) 2012(1) 2011(1) 2010(1)
(As Revised (As Revised (As Revised (As Revised
Income Statement Dat
Finance income, nt¢ $19,86¢ $ 31,76 $ 40,801 $ 44,05¢ $ 44,43t
Personal injury claims incon 7,13¢ 6,43¢ 1,647 — —
Unrealized gain on structured settleme 2,84( — — — —
Interest income on structured settleme 2,36¢ — — — —
Total revenue 32,20° 38,20( 42,45( 44,05¢ 44,43t
Forgiveness of nc-recourse dek 26,10: — — — —
Other income 1,77 1,611 2,25¢ 557 21¢
60,08 39,81 44,70¢ 44,61 44,65
Costs and Expense
General and administrative expen 28,19: 24,21: 23,64( 21,80° 23,21
Interest expens 1,26( 1,30(¢ 2,53¢ 3,01¢€ 4,36¢
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired for
liquidation 19,59: 10,99( 1,771 2,06¢ 13,42
49,04 36,50: 27,95( 26,88¢ 41,00:
Income before income t¢ 11,04: 3,30¢ 16,75¢ 17,72¢ 3,65(
Income tax expens 4,61% 894 6,791 7,14 1,471
Net income 6,42¢ 2,41¢ 9,95¢ 10,58: 2,17¢
Less: net income attributable to I-controlling interest: 52¢ 40€ 31 — —
Net income attributable to Asta Funding, | $ 5,901 $ 2,00¢ $ 9,92¢ $ 10,58: $ 2,17¢
Basic net income per she $ 0.4f $ 0.1¢€ $ 071 $ 072 $ 0.1f
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.4f $ 0.1f $ 0.6 $ 071 $ 0.1f
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2014
Other Financial Data (Unauditec

For the Year ended September

Cash collection $ 40.:Z
Portfolio purchases, at cc 5.1
Portfolio purchases, at fa 478.¢
Return on average assets 4.7%
Return on average stockholc’ equity(2) 5.7%
Dividends declared per she $ 0.0C
At September 3(

Total asset 217.1
Total debt 35.¢
Total stockholder equity 181.:
Inception to dat— September 3(

Cumulative aggregate purchases, at 32,453.

2013(1)

$ 517
3.2
53.t
1.2%
1.€%
$ 0.0¢

2115
38.2
1732

31,975.

(In millions)
2012(1)

$ 70.C
2.5
6.C

4.2%

5.5%
$ 0.0¢
237.¢
64.¢
173.(

31,921.!

2011(1)

$

$

81.2
7.5

L)L
4.1%
6.3%

0.0¢

252.¢
75.1
177.5

31,915

2010(1)

$ 101¢
8.C
269.1
1.1%
2.C%
$ 0.0¢

259.2
94.¢
161.¢

31,896.(

(1) Revised based upon the misapplication of the iateanethod in prior periods. See Note A2 to the Gbdated Financial Statemen
(2) The return on average assets is computed liginivnet income by average total assets for theafiyear. The return on average
stockholders’ equity is computed by dividing netame by the average stockholders’ equity for thedli year. Both ratios have been

computed using beginning and perend balances
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Iltem 7.  Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operatior
Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fir@r@ondition and Results of Operations and othert® of this Annual Report on
Form 1(-K contain forward-looking statements that invotisks and uncertainties. All forward-looking statemts included in this Annual
Report on Form 1-K are based on information available to us ondlage hereof, and except as required by law, werassw obligation to
update any such forward-looking statements. Ouna&atesults may differ materially from those argiied in these forwartboking statemen
as a result of a number of factors, including theseforth under the caption “Risk Factors” contathin this report and elsewhere herein. The
following should be read in conjunction with oumaral financial statements contained elsewhere imrport.

Overview

We are engaged in the businesses of acquiring, gitamaservicing and recovering on portfolios of somer receivables, and, through
Pegasus, funding of personal injury claims, throGHC, investing in structured settlements and thhoGAR Disability Advocates, assisting
claimants in the process of disability and soc&iusity claims.

Consumer Receivables
The consumer receivable portfolios generally cdredfisne or more of the following types of consumeseivables:

» charged-off receivables -accounts that have been written-off by the origilmmind may have been previously serviced by dalec
agencies; an

» semi-performing receivables aecounts where the debtor is making partial ogirter monthly payments, but the accounts may have
been writte-off by the originators

We acquire these consumer receivable portfoli@ssignificant discount to the amount actually owgdhe borrowers. We acquire these
portfolios after a qualitative and quantitative lgses of the underlying receivables and calculatepurchase price so that our estimated cash
flow offers us an adequate return on our investraéiet servicing expenses. After purchasing a phbotfwe actively monitor its performance
and review and adjust our collection and servigtgtegies accordingly.

We purchase receivables from credit grantors anerstthrough privately negotiated direct saleskémred transactions and auctions in
which sellers of receivables seek bids from sevyenaiqualified debt purchasers. We pursue new aitiguis of consumer receivable portfolios
on an ongoing basis through:

 our relationships with industry participants, ficél institutions, collection agencies, investansl @ur financing source
» brokers who specialize in the sale of consumerivabée portfolios; anc
+ other sources

Litigation Funding Business

On December 28, 2011, the Company purchased arir88%st in Pegasus. Pegasus Legal Funding (“Phéigs the other 20% interest.
The Company is committed to loan up to $22.4 millper year to Pegasus for a term of five (5) yesr®f which is secured by the assets of
Pegasus. These loans will provide financing forglesonal injury litigation claims and operatingperses of Pegasus.

The Pegasus business model entails the outlayrefemurse advances to a plaintiff with an agreeoRuee structure to be repaid from
the plaintiff's recovery. Typically, such advandesa plaintiff approximate 10-20% of the anticightecovery. These funds are generally usec
by the plaintiff for a variety of urgent necessstieanging from surgical procedures to everydandi\expenses.
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Pegasus’s profits and losses will be distributeBi0&s to the Company and 20% to PLF. These distdbstwill be made only after the
repayment of Fund Pegasus’ principal amount loapked, an amount equal to advances for overheadseseWhile the overall returns to
Pegasus are currently estimated to be in exce28%fper annum, the Company reserves the righttanate Pegasus if returns to the
Company for any rolling twelve (12) month periofteathe first year of operations, do not exceethlBs of September 30, 2014, the
Company had a net invested balance of approxim&g2y4 million in personal injury cases. During flseal year ended September 30, 2014,
distributions of $5.4 million and $1.1 million weneade to Asta Funding, Inc. (Fund Pegasus) and fispectively.

On May 18, 2012, we announced the formation of BBeOMlanagement, LLC (“Balance Point”), a joint veat(the “Venture”) with
California-based Balance Point Divorce Funding, L{tBalance Point Management”). The Venture provides-recourse funding to a spouse
in a matrimonial action where the marital asseteesd $2,000,000. Such funds can be used for lega) &xpert costs and necessary living
expenses. The Venture receives an agreed percasftdgeproceeds received by such spouse uponréisalution of the case. Balance Point’s
profits and losses will be distributed 60% to ud 408% to Balance Point Management, after the ratfiour investment on a case by case
and after a 15% preferred return to us. Our initimestment in the Venture consists of up to $1Hionito fund divorce claims to be fulfilled in
three tranches of $5 million each. Each investrtramiche is contingent upon a minimum 15% cash-@h-caturn to us. At our option, there
could be an additional $35 million investment imaiice claims in tranches of $10 million, $10 mifiieand $15 million, also with a 15%
preferred return and such investments may evereebaeotal of $50 million, at our sole option. Shibtine preferred return be less than 15%
any $5 million tranche, the 60%/40% profit and lepfit would be adjusted to reflect our priorityad 5% preferred return. As of Septembe
2014, we have invested $2.4 million, net of resetvarges, in cases managed by this Venture.

We provided a $1.5 million revolving line of credtit partially fund Balance Point Management’s ofiers with such loan bearing
interest at the prevailing prime rate, with aniaiterm of twenty-four months, which may be exteddinder certain circumstances for an
additional 24 month period. The revolving line oédit is collateralized by Balance Point Managensegortofits share in the Venture and other
assets. At September 30, 2014, the balance ortoéving line of credit was approximately $1.5 moifl. The term of the loan was to end in
May 2014 but has been extended. In September #0d4greement was revised to extend the term db#reto August 2016, increase the
credit line to $1.5 million and include a persogahrantee of the principal of BP Divorce Funding.

Structured Settlement Business

On December 31, 2013, the Company acquired 80% mshipeof CBC and its affiliate, CBC Management $egs, LLC for
approximately $5.9 million. In addition, the Compaunill provide financing to CBC of up to $5 million

CBC purchases periodic payments under structutfiéreents and annuity policies from individualseixchange for a lump sum paym:
The operating principals of CBC, William J. SkyrEgg. and James Goodman, have over 30 years cormibipedence in the structured
settlements industry and remain as management 6f CB

CBC has a portfolio of structured settlements whscfinanced by approximately $32.3 million of delbcluding a $22.0 million line of
credit ($25.0 million effective March 2015) from amstitutional source (approximately $2.4 milliohtbe line was unused as of September 30
2014) and notes issued by CBC to third party irmsstOn September 29, 2014, CBC entered into gitgleamendment, increasing the line
from $20.0 million to $22.0 million. At Septembed,2014, the line of credit had an expiration d#tEebruary 28, 2015 and the Company ha
an invested value of $42.1 million in structurettlsenents.

Disability Advocacy Business

GAR Disability Advocates is a social security digipadvocacy group, which obtains and represamdg/iduals in their claims for soci
security disability and supplemental security inednenefits from the Social Security Administration.
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Critical Accounting Policies
We may account for our investments in consumetrivabée portfolios, using either:
* The interest method; «
» The cost recovery metha

As we believe our extensive liquidating experieimceertain asset classes such as distressed caediteceivables, consumer loan
receivables and mixed consumer receivables hagetatwe use the interest method when we believeaneeasonably estimate the timing of
the cash flows. In those situations where we difsecar acquisitions into other asset classes iictvlwe do not possess the same expertise ol
history, or we cannot reasonably estimate the tjnoiiithe cash flows, we utilize the cost recovestimod of accounting for those portfolios of
receivables.

The Company accounts for certain of its investmanfmance receivables using the interest methatkuthe guidance of FASB
Accounting Standards Codification (*“ASC"), Receileh— Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Detated Credit Quality, (“ASC
310”). Under the guidance of ASC 310, static padlaccounts are established. These pools are agjgrebased on certain common risk
criteria. Each static pool is recorded at costiaratcounted for as a single unit for the recognitf income, principal payments and loss
provision. Effective October 1, 2013, due to thbstantial reduction of portfolios reported under ihterest method, and the ability to
reasonably estimate cash collections required¢owatt for those portfolios under the interest mdttiee Company concluded the cost recover
method is the appropriate accounting method urdecircumstances.

Although the Company has switched to the cost regomethod on its current inventory of portfolitlse Company must still analyze a
portfolio upon acquisition and once a static psatstablished for a quarter, individual receivaueounts are not added to the pool (unless
replaced by the seller) or removed from the ponolgss sold or returned to the seller).

Under the interest method, ASC 310 requires thtaetttess of the contractual cash flows over exgazash flows not be recognized as
an adjustment of revenue or expense or on the dalksimeet. ASC 310 initially freezes the interns i return, referred to as IRR, estimated
when the accounts receivable are purchased, dma#iefor subsequent impairment testing. Significacreases in actual or expected future
cash flows may be recognized prospectively thraargipward adjustment of the IRR over a portfoli@saining life. Any increase to the IRR
then becomes the new benchmark for impairmennggsRather than lowering the estimated IRR if thiection estimates are not received or
projected to be received, the carrying value obdal pvould be impaired, or written down to mainttte then current IRR. Under the interest
method, income is recognized on the effective yetithod based on the actual cash collected durpagiad and future estimated cash flows
and timing of such collections and the portfoliotsst. Material variations of cash flows estimatesracorded in the quarter such variations ar
determined, The estimated future cash flows areataated quarterly.

The Company uses the cost recovery method wheectiolhs on a particular pool of accounts cannaebsonably predicted. Under the
cost recovery method, no income is recognized theilcost of the portfolio has been fully recover®gool can become fully amortized (zero
carrying balance on the balance sheet) whileggitierating cash collections. In this case, all cadlections are recognized as revenue when
received.

The Company’s extensive liquidating experiencea ithe field of distressed credit card receivalii@igcommunication receivables,
consumer loan receivables, retail installment @arts, consumer receivables, and auto deficien@ivailes. The Company will analyze a
portfolio to determine if the interest method ipagpriate for accounting for asset acquisitiondimithese classes of receivables when it
believes it can reasonably estimate the timindgiefdash flows. In those situations where the Complarersifies its acquisitions into other
asset classes and the Company does not posseassrteexpertise, or the Company cannot reasondiiyats the timing of the cash flows, the
Company utilizes the cost recovery method of actingrior those portfolios of receivables. At Sepbem30, 2014, all of the portfolios are
accounted for on the cost recovery method, of wiit®.3 million is concentrated in one portfolicd300 million portfolio purchase in
March 2007 (the “Portfolio Purchase”).
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We may account for our investment in finance resigles using the interest method under the guidah&&C 310. Static pools of
accounts are established. These pools are aggudgaded on certain common risk criteria. Eachcspaidl is recorded at cost and is accounte
for as a single unit for the recognition of incorpencipal payments and loss provision. We curseotinsider for aggregation portfolios of
accounts, purchased within the same fiscal quahat generally have the following characteristics:

e same issuer/originatc

» same underlying credit qualit

» similar geographic distribution of the accour

» similar age of the receivable; a

» same type of asset class (credit cards, teleconuations, etc.)

After determining that an investment will yield adequate return on our acquisition cost after senyifees, including court costs, which
are expensed as incurred, we use a variety oftgtiedi and quantitative factors to determine thereged cash flows. The following variables
are analyzed and factored into our original estasiat

» the number of collection agencies previously attémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol
» the average balance of the receivat
» the age of the receivables (as older receivablghtne more difficult to collect or might be lesssteffective).

» past history of performance of similar assets -wagpurchase portfolios of similar assets, we beliee have built significant
significant history on how these receivables vigjluildate and cash flov

* number of months since cha-off;
e payments made since che-off;
« the credit originator and their credit guidelin

 the locations of the customers as there are battitgas to attempt to collect in and ultimately vagénbetter predictability of the
liquidations and the expected cash flo

» financial wherewithal of the selle

 jobs or property of the customers found within fmids-with our business model. Customers with jobs opprty are more likely to
repay their obligation and conversely, customethauit jobs or property are less likely to repayirtibligation; anc

« the ability to obtain customer statements fromatiginal issuer

We will obtain and utilize as appropriate inputlirding, but not limited to, monthly collection peajtions and liquidation rates, from our
third party collection agencies and attorneysuahér evidentiary matter, to assist us in develgmollection strategies and in modeling the
expected cash flows for a given portfolio.

We acquire accounts that have experienced detéopraf credit quality between origination and thege of our acquisition of the
accounts. The amount paid for a portfolio of ac¢suaflects our determination that it is probabkewill be unable to collect all amounts due
according to the portfolio of accounts’ contractteains. We consider the expected payments andastitme amount and timing of
undiscounted expected principal, interest and athsh flows for each acquired portfolio coupledwgkpected cash flows from accounts
available for sales. The excess of this amount theecost of the portfolio, representing the exa#ghe account’s cash flows expected to be
collected over the amount paid, is accreted intorime recognized on finance receivables over theatgd remaining life of the portfolio.

We believe we have significant experience in adgqgicertain distressed consumer receivable poodadt a significant discount to the
amount actually owed by underlying customers. Wgaie these portfolios only after both qualitatawed quantitative analyses of the
underlying receivables are performed and a caledlptirchase price is paid so that we believe dimated cash flow offers us an adequate
return on our acquisition
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costs including servicing expenses. Additionalljperw considering larger portfolio purchases of ant®or portfolios from issuers from whom
we have little or limited experience, we have tded benefit of soliciting our third party collemti agencies and attorneys for their input on
liquidation rates and at times incorporate sucliimpto the price we offer for a given portfoliochthe estimates we use for our expected cash

flows.

We will use the cost recovery method when collexgtion a particular pool of accounts cannot be reddsy predicted. Under the cost
recovery method, no finance income is recognizéi tine cost of the portfolio has been fully recos@. A pool can become fully amortized
(zero carrying balance on the balance sheet) wlillggenerating cash collections. In this cask¢cash collections are recognized as finance
income when received.

The Company accounts for its investments in peddopay claims at an agreed upon interest ratgriticipation of a future settlement.
The interest purchased by Pegasus in each claincamisist of the right to receive from such claimpart of the proceeds or recoveries which
such claimant receives by reason of a settlemedgnjent or reward with respect to such claimanéisrc Open case revenue is estimated,
recognized and accrued at a rate based on thetegpealization and underwriting guidelines andgand circumstances for each individual
case. These personal injury claims are non-recowben a case is closed and the cash is receivedd@dvance provided to a claimant,
review is recognized based upon the contractugigesd upon interest rate, and, if applicable, adfusr any changes due to a settled amoun
and fees charged to the claimant.

CBC purchases periodic payments under structurtdéraents and annuity policies from individualseixchange for a lump sum paym:
The Company elected to carry structured settlenwrfer value. Unearned income on structuredesatthts is recognized as interest income
using the effective interest method over the Ifi¢he related settlement. Changes in fair valuer@cerded in unrealized gain (loss) in
structured settlements in our statements of income.

Results of Operations

The following discussion of our operations and flicial condition should be read in conjunction watlr financial statements and notes
thereto included elsewhere in this report. In thgiseussions, most percentages and dollar amoantsiteen rounded to aid presentation. As :
result, all such figures are approximations.

Years Ended September 3(

2013 2012

2014 (As Revised (As Revised
Finance income, net 61.7% 83.1% 96.1%
Personal injury claim incorr 22.1% 16.% 3.£%
Unrealized gain on structured settleme 8.8% —% —%
Interest income on structured settleme 7.0% —% —%
Total revenue: 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Debt forgivenes 81.(% —% —%
Other income 5.5% 4.2% 5.2%
186.5% 104.29% 105.2%
General and administrative expen 87.5% 63.4% 55.7%
Interest expens 3.% 3.4% 6.C%
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fuidiation 60.£% 28.71% 4.2%
152.2% 95.5% 65.%
Income before income tax 34.2% 8.7% 39.5%
Income tax expens 14.5% 2.2% 16.(%
Net income 20.(% 6.4% 23.5%
Less: net income attributable to I-controlling interes 1.6% 1.1% 0.1%
Net income attributable to Asta Funding, | 18.4% 5.2% 23.4%

37



Table of Contents

Year Ended September 30, 2014 Compared to the ¥Eaaled September 30, 2013 (Revised)

Finance income. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 20figtd! year 2014"), finance income from consumeereables
decreased $12.0 million, or 37.5%, to $19.8 millicom $31.8 million for the fiscal year ended Sepber 30, 2013 (“fiscal year 2013"). The
decrease is primarily due to the lower level oftfmio purchases over the last four years, and¢dection of zero based income. Zero based
income decreased $5.8 million, from $25.7 milliarthe year 2013 to $19.8 million in the year 2(B#ective October 1, 2013 the Company
transferred the remaining $1.3 million of interestthod portfolios to the cost recovery method. Baifiscal year 2014, we acquired $478.9
million in face value of new portfolios at a co$t$®.1 million as compared to $53.5 million of facdue portfolios at a cost of approximately
$3.3 million, during fiscal year 2013. The portédipurchased during fiscal year 2014 are accodotash the cost recovery method.

Net collections decreased $14.0 million, or 25.89640.2 million for fiscal year 2014, from $54.1llran for fiscal year 2013. During
fiscal year 2014, gross collections decreased 20806%67.9 million from $85.5 million for fiscal ye2013, reflecting the lower level of
purchases over the last three years. Commissiahfeas associated with gross collections from bind party collection agencies and
attorneys decreased $3.7 million, or 11.7% as coedp@® the same period in the prior year and awetd®.9% of collections for fiscal year
2014 as compared to 36.7% in the same prior ye&age he higher rate was the result of highereaslbns (of higher commissioned) out-of-
statute paper coupled with increased asset seasth ia the current fiscal year.

As we switched to the cost recovery method on thieeat inventory of portfolios, there were no atabde yield adjustments recorded
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 201dretable yield adjustments were $0.6 million ircéikyear 2013.

Personal injury claims income. Personal injury claims income increased $0.Hanior 10.8% to $7.1 million from the prior yelavel
of $6.4 million, as investment in personal injutgims in fiscal years 2012 and 2013 translated indwe closed cases in fiscal year 2014 than
in the prior year (cases take an average of 18 msdntmature).

Structured settlement incorn&$5.2 million, which includes $2.8 million of weelized gains and $2.4 million of interest incoe i
included in the Company’s results for the firsteimith no comparative results in the prior year.

Forgiveness of deli$ the result of the Settlement Agreement withBhak of Montreal (“BMQO”), reached in August of felcyear 2013.
The Company made the final payment of the RemaiAmgunt in June 2014. The Company is entitled 10%®f the next $16.9 million of
collections on the Portfolio Purchase, at whichetioollections will be split, with the Bank of Moatl on a 70%/ 30% distribution, with 70%
being retained by the Company.

Other income. The following table summarizes other incometfar years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Interest and dividend income $1,315,00i $1,583,00!
GAR Disability Advocates income(: 378,00( 2,00¢
Realized (losses) gail 43,00( (27,000
Other 41,00( 53,00(

$1,777,001 $1,611,00!

(1) GAR disability income reflects a full year of aétwin fiscal year 2014 and only five months of amee in fiscal year 201.

General and administrative expensesFor the year ended September 30, 2014, gemedahdministrative expenses increased $4.0
million, or 16.4%, to $28.2 million from $24.2 nidh for the year ended September 30, 2013. The&seris due primarily to increased
expenses related to the inclusion of CBC, $3.4ioni/land the
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increased start-up expenses of GAR Disability Adwes, $1.9 million. CBC is included in the consatetl results of the Company for the first
time in fiscal year 2014 and GAR Disability Advoestincludes a full year of results during fiscaly2014 as compared to approximately five
months during fiscal year 2013. Offsetting thesgdases, costs associated with the collection bssidecreased 18.6% from fiscal year 2013

Interest expense. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 20idrdst expense was essentially flat as comparte tliscal year ende
September 30, 2013. The interest expense incutedgdfiscal year 2014 was primarily from CBC. Irgst expense from the consumer
receivables business was immaterial during fiseal 2014, as the Company signed a Settlement Agretemith BMO in August 2013 with a
minimal interest rate and the final payment madéuine 2014. The interest expense in fiscal yeaB 2@ primarily related to the Receivables
Financing Agreement (“Receivables Financing Agreafavith BMO, which was in place when the Settlath&greement was signed.

Impairments. We recorded impairments of $19.5 million durthg year ended September 30, 2014, of which $hilibn was
recorded on the Great Seneca portfolio (“the PlotfBurchase”) as projected collections continuedédteriorate. Approximately $4.8 million
of the impairment was related to the medical restglir asset class. Impairments of $11.0 million weoerded for the year ended
September 30, 2013, of which $10.1 million was rded on the Portfolio Purchase.

Net income before taxes — Consumer Receivablé&et income before taxes increased $8.8 millicmm $10.1 million for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2013 as compared to 18 Bllion for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZ&m 4, as the BMO debt forgivene
more than offset the negative impact of lower atitns.

Net income before taxes — Personal Injury Claim$\et income before taxes increased slightlyZ@ $nillion in fiscal year 2014 from
$2.0 million for the prior fiscal year, as incredsevenues were partially offset by higher salaqyemses.

Net income before taxes — Structured Settlemenkéet income before taxes was $0.4 million icdisyear 2014, with no corresponding
data in the prior fiscal year.

Net loss before taxes — GAR Disability Advocateblet loss before taxes was $2.7 million in tbé4£fiscal year compared to a net loss
of $1.2 million in the same prior year period, eefing increased start-up costs in the currenafigear. Salaries increased by $0.8 million and
marketing expense increased by $0.7 compared toribefiscal year.

Income tax expense. Income tax expense of $4.6 million recordedfifaral year 2014 consists of a $4.1 million cutrecome tax
expense and a $0.5 million deferred income tax ms@elncome tax expense was higher primarily ddegler pre-tax income, significantly
influenced by the $26.1 million of debt forgivenelsfiscal year 2013, income tax expense of $0lBam consisted of a current income tax
expense of $0.9 million and a deferred income tnefit of $0.1 million.

Net income. For the year ended September 30, 2014, netriadéocreased $ 4.0 million to $6.4 million from &2nillion for the year
ended September 30, 2013, primarily reflectingftingiveness of debt of $26.1 million, offset by thgpairments of $19.5 million and higher
general and administrative expenses.

Income attributable to non-controlling interest.Income to non-controlling interests increas@&d25000 from $406,000 for the year
ended September 30, 2013 to $528,000 for the yesrdeSeptember 30, 2014, due to the improvemeheinesults of the joint venture
Pegasus and the inclusion of CBC for the first t{$i#0,000) with no comparative results from fispehr 2013.

Net income attributable to Asta Funding, IncFor the year ended September 30, 2014, neieaitributable to Asta Funding, Inc.
increased $3.9 million to $5.9 million from $2.0llin for the year ended September 30, 2013, piigneeflecting decreased total revenue,
offset by the forgiveness of debt of $26.1 milliomgreased general and administrative expensagdsed impairments and income to non-
controlling interests and higher income taxes. iNevme per diluted share for the year ended SemeB( 2014 increased to $0.45 per dilute
share from $0.15 per diluted share for the yeae@r8eptember 30, 2013.
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Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to the ¥eded September 30, 2012(Revised)

Finance income. For the year ended September 30, 2013, finauccene decreased $9.0 million, or 22.1%, to $31ilBam from
$40.8 million for the year ended September 30, 20h2 decrease is primarily due to the lower l@fglortfolio purchases over the last three
years and, as a result, an increased percentane pbrtfolio balances are in the later stageseirtyield curves. During the fiscal year enc
September 30, 2013, we acquired $53.5 million @efealue of new portfolios at a cost of $3.3 millas compared to $6.0 million of face ve
portfolios at a cost of approximately $2.5 milliaturing the fiscal year ended September 30, 20it2nEe income recognized from fully
amortized portfolios (zero basis revenue) was $asllfon for the year ended September 30, 2013oaspared td 31.1 million for the year
ended September 30, 2012.

Net collections decreased $15.9 million, or 22.8%%4.1 million for the fiscal year ended Septen8#r2013, from $70.0 million for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. Dursgwafiyear 2013, gross collections decreased 2102883.5 million from $108.5 million for
fiscal year 2012, reflecting the lower level of ghases, the age of our portfolios and the slowdiovthe economy. Commissions and fees
associated with gross collections from our thirdypaollection agencies and attorneys decreasedisillion, or 18.3% as compared to the
same period in the prior year and averaged 36.786ltdctions for the fiscal year ended Septembe28Q2 as compared to 35.5% in the samq
prior year period. The higher rate was the redutiigher collections (of higher commissioned) ofsstatute paper coupled with increased asst
search costs in the current fiscal year.

Further, as we have curtailed our purchases ofpwtiolios of consumer receivables in the lastéhiscal years, finance income was
negatively impacted and we expect will continubeémegatively impacted going forward since we hastebeen replacing our receivables
acquired for liquidation. Instead, we focused afueng our debt and being highly disciplined in portfolio purchases. We continue to rev
potential portfolio acquisitions regularly and willirchase such portfolios when we believe the mselwill yield our desired rate of return, as
we did with the purchase of a consumer debt paotfiliring the fiscal year 2013. There were no datie yield adjustments recorded during
the fiscal years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.

Personal injury claims incomersonal injury claims injury increased $4.8 millioom the prior year level of $1.6 million, as wad les:
than ten months of operating results in fiscal &3 and our investments in personal injury claivese greater in the current fiscal year.

Other income. The following table summarizes other incometfar years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Interest and dividend income $1,583,00! $1,614,00
GAR Disability Advocates income(: 2,00¢ —
Realized (losses) gail (27,000 339,00(
Other 53,00( 303,00(

$1,611,001 $2,256,001

(1) GAR disability began operations in May 2013; heriiee, months of income in fiscal year 2013 and nonfiscal year 2012

General and administrative expensesFor the year ended September 30, 2013, gemedahdministrative expenses increased $0.6
million, or 2.4%, to $24.2 million from $23.6 miih for the year ended September 30, 2012. Thedgreris due primarily to increased expe
related to Pegasus Funding, LLC (12 months in ffigear 2013 compared to nine months in fiscal YHr2) and other corporate initiatives,
offset by lower collection expenses of the consud®dt operations which include lower salary andefienosts, resulting from a headcount
reduction in January 2013, and other collectioreesggs. The costs associated with the collectioméss decreased 16.0% from fiscal year
2012.
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Interest expense. For the year ended September 30, 2013, interpsnse decreased $1.2 million or 48.8% to $1lBmirom
$2.5 million during the year ended September 3222The decrease was due primarily to the redudtidhe balance of our Receivables
Financing Agreement (“Receivables Financing Agreatfavith the Bank of Montreal (“BMO”) during theear ended September 30, 2013, a:
compared to the year ended September 30, 2012.

Impairments. We recorded impairments of $11.0 million durthg year ended September 30, 2013, of which $hdlibn was
recorded on the Great Seneca portfolio (“the Photeurchase”). Impairments of $1.8 million for thear ended September 30, 2012, as
collections on various portfolios were short of esations.

Net income before taxes — Consumer Receivabl&get income before taxes decreased $13.0 milfrom $23.1 million for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2012 to $10.1 milliontHferfiscal year ended September 30, 2013, thetreklawer collections and increas
impairments in the 2013 fiscal year.

Net income before taxes — Personal Injury Claim$\et income before taxes increased to $2.0aniliin fiscal year 2013 from $0.1
million for the prior fiscal year, as increasedesues in fiscal year 2013, reflecting an increamedber of closed cases from fiscal years 201:
and 2012 investments, far outweighed increasednekpees.

Net loss before taxes — GAR Disability Advocateblet loss before taxes was $1.2 million in tbé2fiscal year. As the business
segment began in fiscal year 2013, there is no eoafybe data for the prior fiscal year.

Income tax expense. Income tax expense of $0.8 million recordedfigzal year 2013 consists of a $0.9 million cutriecome tax
expense and a $0.1 million deferred income taxfiterl@acome tax expense was lower primarily dudotoer pre-tax income. In fiscal year
2012, income tax expense of $6.8 million consistea current income tax expense of $3.5 million ardkferred income tax expense of $3.3
million.

Net income. For the year ended September 30, 2013, neteaecreased $7.6 million to $2.4 million from $lillion for the year
ended September 30, 2012, primarily reflecting e@sed total revenue, increased general and adratiistexpenses and impairments further
offset by lower interest expense and income taxes.

Income attributable to non-controlling interest.Income to non-controlling interests increase®.4 million from $31 thousand due to
the improvement in the results of the joint ventRegasus Funding, LLC.

Net income attributable to Asta Funding, IncFor the year ended September 30, 2013, netie@dtributable to Asta Funding, Inc.
decreased $7.9 million to $2.0 million from $9.9limn for the year ended September 30, 2012, pilsnegflecting decreased total revenue,
increased general and administrative expensesjrimg@ats and income to non-controlling interestgiply offset by lower interest expense
and income taxes. Net income per diluted sharéhtoyear ended September 30, 2013 decreased o |$&. Hiluted share down from $0.69
diluted share for the year ended September 30,.2012

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of cash from operations is ctit@s on the receivable portfolios we have acgliéed the funds generated from the
Pegasus and CBC business segments. Our primarpflusash include repayments of debt, our purchaesnsumer receivable portfolios,
interest payments, costs involved in the collectiohconsumer receivables, taxes and dividendggfoved. In the past, we relied significantly
upon our lenders to provide the funds necessarthopurchase of consumer receivables acquirelitifddation.

Receivables Financing Agreement

In March 2007, Palisades XVI borrowed approxima&227 million under the Receivables Financing Agrest, as amended in July
2007, December 2007, May 2008, February 2009, @ct?010 and August 2013 from BMO, in order to ficamthe Portfolio Purchase which
had a purchase price of $300 million. The origieain of the agreement was three years. This tersextended by each of the Second, Third
Fourth, Fifth Amendments and the most recent agee¢signed in August 2013, discussed below.
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Since the inception of the Receivables FinancingeAment amendments have been signed to revisaigdeons of the Receivables
Financing Agreement. The Settlement Agreement andiBus Amendment (“Settlement Agreement”) was feefon August 7, 2013,
Palisades XVI, a 100% owned bankruptcy remote siifry, entered into a Settlement Agreement with BBCan amendment to the
Receivables Financing Agreement. In consideratoraf$15 million prepayment funded by the Comp&M O has agreed to significantly
reduce minimum monthly collection requirements trainterest rate. If and when BMO were to recélienext $15 million of collections
from the Portfolio Purchase, (the “Remaining Amdlutdss certain credits for payments made prightoconsummation of the Settlement
Agreement, the Company would be entitled to recénoen future net collections the $15 million prepagnt that it funded. Thereafter, BMO
would have the right to receive 30% of future ratections. Upon repayment of the Remaining AmdorBMO, the Company would be
released from the remaining contractual obligatibthe Receivables Financing Agreement and thdeSatnt Agreement.

On June 3, 2014, Palisades XVI finished payingRbBeaining Amount. The final principal payment of$illion included a voluntary
prepayment of $1.9 million provided from funds loé tCompany. Accordingly, Palisades XVI will be @eti to receive $16.9 million of future
collections from the Portfolio Purchase before BM@ntitled to receive any payments with respedstincome Interest. The Company
estimated the Income Interest to be between $&artimillion. However, the Company believes thaammwunt would be incurred because of
the continued deterioration of the collections fribva portfolio purchase.

With the payment of the Remaining Amount and upomletion of the documents granting the PalisadéklXcome Interest, including
a written confirmation from BMO that the obligatibas been paid in full, Palisades XVI has beerasgld from further debt obligations from
the RFA. We have recorded as other income, forgisemf non-recourse debt, in the amount of apprabdiy $26.1 million, preax in the thirc
quarter of fiscal year 2014.

Bank Hapoalim B.M. (“Bank Hapoalim”) Line of Credit

On May 2, 2014, the Company obtained a $20 millioa of credit facility from Bank Hapoalim, pursuan a Loan Agreement (the
“Loan Agreement”) among the Company and its subsydiPalisades Collection, LLC, as borrowers, andkBHapoalim, as agent and lender.
The Loan Agreement provides for a $20.0 million caitted line of credit and an accordion feature img an increase in the line of credit of
up to $30 million, at the discretion of the lendérke facility is for a term of three years at aterest rate of either LIBOR plus 275 basis pc
or prime, at the Companyoption. The Loan Agreement includes covenantsrétpire the Company to maintain a minimum nettivof $15(
million and pay an unused line fee. The facilitgécured pursuant to a Security Agreement (“SegcAdreement”) among the parties to the
Loan Agreement. As of September 30, 2014, the Cosnpad not used this facility.

Other Investments- Personal Injury Claims

On December 28, 2011, we formed a joint ventureaBeg Funding, LLC (“Pegasus”) with Pegasus Legatifg, LLC (“PLF").
Pegasus purchases interests in personal injunpglxom claimants who are a party to a personahyrijtigation with the expectation of a
settlement in the future. Pegasus advances todaichant funds on a non-recourse basis at an agngem interest rate in anticipation of a
future settlement. The interest purchased by Pegaseach claim will consist of the right to reaeivom such claimant part of the proceeds or
recoveries which such claimant receives by reasansettlement, judgment or award with respecuth<laimant claim. The profits from tt
joint venture are distributed based on the ownprpbicentage of the parti— Asta Funding, Inc. 80% and PLF, 20%.

Other Investments-Divorce Funding

On May 18, 2012, we formed BP Case Management, .BECM"), a joint venture with California-based Baice Point Divorce
Funding, LLC (“BP Divorce Funding”). BPCM providesn-recourse funding to a spouse in a matrimomigba. The Company provides a
$1.5 million revolving line of credit to partiallund BP Divorce Funding’s operations, with suchl@aring interest at the prevailing prime
rate, with an initial term
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of twenty-four months. The revolving line of creditcollateralized by BP Divorce Funding’s profitase in BPCM and other assets. The term
of the loan was to end in May 2014, but has be¢enebed until August 2016.

Other Investments- Structured Settlements

On December 31, 2013, the Company acquired 80% mshipeof CBC and its affiliate, CBC Management $egs, LLC for
approximately $5.9 million. At the closing, the opiing principals of CBC, William J. Skyrm, Esq.dafames Goodman, were each issued a
10% interest in CBC. In addition, the Company hgreed to provide financing to CBC of up to $5 mifli Through the transaction we acqu
debt that totaled $23 million consisting of $9.6liom of a revolving line of credit with a finandiastitution and $13.8 million of non-recourse
notes issued by CBC's subsidiaries. As of Septer@beP014, the debt approximated $32.3 million.S2ptember 29, 2014, CBC entered into
an amendment whereby it increased its revolving dihcredit from $20.0 million to $22.0 million atite maturity date remained at
February 28, 2015. On March 1, 2015 CBC enteradthit 3 amendment of the agreement with a new matlate of March 1, 2017,
increased the credit to $25.0 million and lowetegl ftoor to 4.1%.

On November 26, 2014, CBC announced the complefids fourth private placement, backed by struetusettlement and fixed annuity
payments. CBC issued, through its subsidiary, BBRLLC, approximately $20.8 million of fixed ratesset-backed notes with a yield of 5.4%.

Cash Flow(Revised)

As of September 30, 2014, our cash and cash equigatlecreased $6.5 million to $28.7 million, fr§85.2 million at September 30,
2013. Although our cash flow remains strong, weehdiversified some of our cash flow into other istveents.

Net cash used in operating activities was $2.lioniltluring the fiscal year ended September 30, 288 4¢ompared to $19.1 million
provided by operating activities for the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2013. The decrease is piyrdag to lower net income, exclusive of
non-cash items, primarily forgiveness of debt anckalized structured settlement income and gaihghexisted only in the 2014 fiscal year.
Net cash used in investing activities was $1.0iamlburing the fiscal year ended September 30, 284 4ompared to net cash providec
investing activities of $42.7 million during thes¢al year ended September 30, 2013. The changslmnit investing activities is primarily due
to the investing activity in other than cash anshcaquivalents depository accounts and lower dadles of consumer receivables acquired for
liquidation during the year ended September 3042&lcompared to the same 2013 period. In fiscal 2813 we liquidated our certificates of
deposits. We increased our investment in avail&drleale securities and investment in CBC structwettlements in the current fiscal year
only. This was partially offset by an increase @rgonal injury receipts during the year ended Sejpée 30, 2014 compared to the same prior
year period. Net cash used in financing activities $3.3 million during the fiscal year ended Seyiter 30, 2014, as comparec
$28.9 million in the same 2013 period. The decréaset cash used in financing activities was primaue to a decrease in the pay down of
the non-recourse debt partially offset by net bemngs of other CBC debt in the current fiscal year.

Our cash requirements have been and will contiadeetsignificant and include external financingperate various lines of business.
Significant requirements include investment in pagd injury claims, investments in structured setiénts, costs involved in the collections of
consumer receivables, repayment of CBC debt arebtment in consumer receivable portfolios, and) the third quarter of fiscal year 2014,
repayments under our non-recourse debt facilitkeaddition, if approved by the board of directaisjdends are financed though operations.
Acquisitions recently have been financed througthdbows from operating activities. We believe wdl e less dependent on a credit facility
(with the exception of CBC) in the short-term, as cash flow from operations will be sufficientitivest in personal injury claims, purchase
portfolios and finance the early stages of theldi#g advocacy business. Structured settlemergdiaanced through the use of a credit line,
warehouse facility and private placement financing.

We believe our available cash resources and expeateh flows from operations will be sufficientftmd operations for the next twelve
months. We do not expect to incur any materialteapxpenditures during the next twelve months.
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We are cognizant of the current market fundameimaise debt purchase and company acquisition nmeich, because of significant
supply and tight capital availability, could resmltincreased buying opportunities. The outcomarf future transaction(s) is subject to marke
conditions. In addition, due to these opportunjties continue to seek opportunities with bankingamizations and others on a possible
financing loan facility.

Share Repurchase Program

On March 9, 2012, we adopted a Rule 10b5-1 Plaomjunction with our share repurchase programah#torized us to purchase up to
$20.0 million of shares of our common stock. Unidhert program, which expired in March 2013, we pasgd 885,000 shares at an aggregate
cost of approximately $7.9 million. The Rule 10b®l&an superseded the authorization to repurchasesin June 2011, pursuant to which we
repurchased approximately 59,000 shares at angaggreost of approximately $457,000. AdditionaityJune 2012, we repurchased
1.0 million shares for $9.4 million in a privatetggotiated transaction. We repurchased an aggrefjapproximately 1.9 million shares at an
aggregate cost of approximately $17.8 million.

Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual gédgiions in future fiscal years:

Payments Due By Period

Less Than More Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Long Term Debt Obligations $12,712,00 $1,232,00! $2,370,00! $2,158,00! $6,952,00!
Operating Lease Obligatiol 2,297,00! 739,00( 1,130,001 365,00( 63,00(
Total $15,009,00 $1,971,00! $3,500,00! $2,523,00! $7,015,00!

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of September 30, 2014, we did not have anyiogighips with unconsolidated entities or finangattners, such as entities often
referred to as structured finance or special pwmutities, established for the purpose of fatifitaoff-balance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. As sugh,are not materially exposed to any financingjiiiy, market or credit risk that could ar
if we had engaged in such relationships.

The following table shows the changes in finanoeirables, including amounts paid to acquire nemfglos:

Year Ended September 30

2013 2012 2011 2010
2014 (As Revised (As Revised (As Revised (As Revised
(In millions)

Balance at beginning of peric $ 64.c $ 94.: $ 122.5 $ 154¢% $ 217.:

Acquisitions of finance receivables, net of buylsE 5.1 3.3 2.5 7.5 8.C

Cash collections from customers applied to prin€ip: (20.9) (22.2) (29.7) (37.0 (56.2)
Cash collections represented by account saleseapigli

principal(1) (0.7 — (0.7 (0.2 (1.2

Impairments/Portfolio write dow (19.5) (11.0 (1.9 (2.9) (13.9

Balance at end of peric $29.4 $ 64: $ 94: $ 1227 $ 154.

(1) Cash collections applied to principal cons@dtsash collections less income recognized on fiearceivables plus amounts received by u
from the sale of consumer receivable portfoliothtad parties
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Supplementary Information on Consumer Receivabbefdbos:

Portfolio Purchases
Year Ended September 30

2014 2013 2012
(In millions)

Aggregate Purchase Pri $ 5.1 $ 3.2 $2.5

Aggregate Portfolio Face Amou 478.¢ 53.t 6.C

The prices we pay for our consumer receivable pliot are dependent on many criteria includingaye of the portfolio, the number of
third party collection agencies and attorneys ki@ae been involved in the collection process ardytographical distribution of the portfolio.
When we pay higher prices for portfolios which pegforming or fresher, we believe it is not at slaerifice of our expected returns. Price
fluctuations for portfolio purchases from quarteiquarter or year to year are primarily indicatbfehe overall mix of the types of portfolios
are purchasing.

Schedule of Portfolios by Income Recognition Categp

September 30, 201 September 30, 201.
September 30, 201 (As Revised) (As Revised)
Cost Interest Cost Interest Cost Interest
Recovery Method Recovery Method Recovery Method
Portfolios(1) Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios Portfolios
(In millions)
Original Purchase Price
(at period end $ 1,254.¢ $ — $ 539. $ 710. $ 537.¢ $ 708.:
Cumulative Aggregate Managed Portfolios
(at period end 32,437.. — 15,102. 16,855. 15,049.( 16,855.
Receivable Carrying Value
(at period end 29.4 — 51.1 13.1 78.¢ 15.4
Finance Income Earned
(for the respective periot 19.5 — 4.t 27.2 3.t 37.2
Total Cash Flows (for the respective peri 40.2 — 25.2 28.¢ 24.¢ 45.C

The original purchase price reflects what we paidliie receivables from 1998 through the end ofdlspective period. The cumulative
aggregate managed portfolio balance is the origiggtegate amount owed by the borrowers at thegti: respective period. Additional
differences between year to year period end batamag result from the transfer of portfolios betwéee interest method and the cost reco
method. We purchase consumer receivables at stibs@incounts from the face amount. We recordrfogincome on our receivables under
either the cost recovery or interest method. Tkeivable carrying value represents the currenstinghe receivables after collections and
amortization of the original price.

(1) On October 1, 2013, all interest method portfoliese transferred to the cost recovery metl

Collections Represented by Account Sales

Collections

Represented Finance

By account Income
Year Sales Recognized
2014 $ 114,00( $ 88,00(
2013 2,448,001 2,015,001
2012 117,00( 32,00(
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We do not anticipate collecting the majority of fhechased principal amounts. Accordingly, theatdghce between the carrying value o
the portfolios and the gross receivables is natative of future finance income from these accewatquired for liquidation. Since we
purchased these accounts at significant discowetsnticipate collecting only a portion of the fazeounts.

For the year ended September 30, 2014, we recayjfir@nce income of $19.9 million under the cosbreery method. As of October 1,
2013, all portfolios were transferred to the cestovery method. During the year ended Septembe2(01, we purchased portfolios with an
aggregate purchase price of $5.1 million with s&faalue (gross contracted amount) of $478.9 million

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsrd¢he “FASB”) issued an update to ASC 606, “Rexeirom Contracts with
Customers,” that will supersede virtually all ekigtrevenue guidance. Under this update, an eistityquired to recognize revenue upon
transfer of promised goods or services to custontein amount that reflects the entitled consitenareceived in exchange for those goods o
services. The guidance also requires additionalatisre about the nature, amount, timing, and uaitgy of revenue and cash flows arising
from the customer contracts. This update is effedior annual reporting periods beginning after &@aber 15, 2016, including interim periods
within that reporting period. Early applicationnist permitted. We are currently evaluating the iotphis update will have on our consolidated
financial statements as well as the expected anloptiethod.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-11, “Trassd@d Servicing (Topic 860): Repurchase-to-Majuritansactions, Repurchase
Financings, and Disclosures.” The amendments ;9/ABU require two accounting changes. First, theraments in this ASU change the
accounting for repurchase-to maturity transactiorsecured borrowing accounting. Second, for repase financing arrangements, the
amendments require separate accounting for a &naosh financial asset executed contemporaneavitiiya repurchase agreement with the
same counterparty, which will result in securedrtming accounting for the repurchase agreemens ABU also includes new disclosure
requirements. The accounting changes in this Upatateffective for public business entities for fingt interim or annual period beginning
after December 15, 2014. An entity is requiredrespnt changes in accounting for transactionsandgtg on the effective date as a
cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnirgyefahe beginning of the period of adoption. Earépplication for a public business entity is
prohibited. The Company reviewed this ASU and aeteed that it did not have a material impact orcdasolidated financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, ‘€atidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the ConsdiaaAnalysis,” which
amends the consolidation requirements in ASC 8h&s @ipdate is effective for public business erdifigr the first interim or annual period
beginning after December 15, 2015. We are currepthiewing this ASU to determine if it will have @npact on our consolidated financial
statements.

Inflation

We believe that inflation has not had a materigdact on our results of operations for the yearsdr8eptember 30, 2014, 2013 and
2012.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarkRisk

We are exposed to various types of market riskéntormal course of business, including the impéetterest rate changes and change:
in corporate tax rates. At September 30, 2014Rmneivable Financing Agreement, which had beerabbridebt, had an outstanding balance
of $0. The debt associated with our acquisitio€BfC, had a balance of approximately $32.3 millimonsisting of $19.6 million through a line
of credit, at a rate of LIBOR plus 4%, with a floafr4.75%, from a financial institution, and $13@llion of notes at varying rates, from
7.125% to 8.75%, issued by CBC'’s subsidiaries. éyitSmber 30, 2014, the LIBOR rate was 0.16%. Th@§ basis point change in the
LIBOR rate would have had no impact on the lineredit interest expense, as the resulting rate dvsiill have been below the 4.75% floor.
We do not currently invest in derivative finanadlcommaodity instruments.
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Item 8. Financial Statements And Supplementary Da

The Financial Statements of the Company, the Nb&®to and the Reports of Independent RegistaubticPAccounting Firms thereon
required by this item begin on page F-1 of thiorefocated immediately preceding the signaturespag

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure
None.
ltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We conducted an evaluation, under the supervisidnaath the participation of our management, inaghgdthe Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectivene$®or disclosure controls and procedures (as serch ts defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded (the “Exchange Act”)) as of Septembe28@4. There are inherent limitations to
the effectiveness of any system of disclosure otsyand procedures, including the possibility ofrfaun error and the circumvention or
overriding of the controls and procedures. Accagtlineven effective disclosure controls and proceducan only provide reasonable assuranc
of achieving their control objectives. Based orirtbgaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and GHtenancial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effeas of September 30, 2014 based on the matezahtivess discussed below.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahaaorting (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Exchange Act). Under the superisind with the participation of our managementiuding its principal executive officer ai
principal financial officer, we conducted an assest of the effectiveness of its internal contreiofinancial reporting. In making this
assessment, we used the criteria set forth by ¢men@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ammission (“COSQ”) in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework, issued in 1992 .d8lasn management’s assessment, and based ontén@¢n 1992 COSO, we believe that
we did not maintain effective internal control ofierancial reporting as of September 30, 2014 bsead the material weakness described
below.

Material Weakness

Management identified a material weakness in aerival control over financial reporting relatedie revenue recognition process in
consumer receivables portfolios, specifically retato the application of the interest method obaaoting as promulgated #ccounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 310-30, ReceivablesLoans and Debt Securities Acquired with DetetiedaQuality. During our review of
portfolio cash flows, our controls did not incluade analysis and review of the current cash floviadians within a quarter to determine whe
there is an impairment or accretion.

Remediation Plan

As part of our commitment to strengthening ourriné control over financial reporting, we have iemlented various actions and will
initiate other remedial actions under the oversaftihe Audit Committee, including following the igance set forth iASC 310-30

We believe we have implemented the necessary mteamtrols to remediate the material weaknessimglado our revenue recognition
process. We have implemented procedures to preparesview an analysis of the variations betwe¢mahand estimated cash flows. We will
continue to maintain and verify the effective opieraof these controls, before concluding that \aeehremediated this material weakness in
revenue recognition controls.
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We can give no assurance that the measures wevithkemediate the material weakness that we idietior that any additional material
weaknesses will not arise in the future. We wilhtboue to monitor the effectiveness of these ahe@roprocesses, procedures and controls anc
will make any further changes management detern@ppsopriate.

Our independent registered public accounting fiMejiserMazars LLP, audited our internal control dieancial reporting as of
September 30, 2014 and their report dated Jun2@%, expresses an adverse opinion on our inteomatal over financial reporting and is
included in this ltem 9A.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

During fiscal year 2014, the Company implementatba® new internal control procedures with regardhie accounting for revenue
recognition under the guidanceA$C 310-30 In addition, with the exception of the CBC acdios, there have not been any changes in our
internal controls over financial reporting (as defi in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-1%i(®} occurred during our fourth fiscal
quarter that have materially affected, or are reably likely to materially affect, our internal aool over financial reporting.

Note Regarding Acquisition

In making our assessment of the disclosure contiradsprocedures and of changes in internal coatret financial reporting as of
September 30, 2014, we have excluded the operaiio@BC, which was acquired on December 31, 2018.av¢ currently assessing the
control environment of this acquired business. CB&nues comprised approximately 16% of our revefrethe year ended September 30,
2014, and approximately 18% of total assets aepfesnber 30, 2014.

48



Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiafies “Company”) internal control over financiaporting as of September 30, 2014,
based on criteria established in Internal Contrdintegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadv
Commission (COSO) in 1992. The Company’s manageiersponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezoatrol over financial reporting, included in taecompanying Management’s Annual Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Oesponsibility is to express an opinion on the Camgfsinternal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

As described in Management’s Report on Internalt@b@ver Financial Reporting, management exclufdech its assessment the
internal control over financial reporting at CBCtt&ament Funding, LLC, which was acquired on Decen#i, 2013, whose financial
statements constitute 18% of total assets and ¥6&tad revenue of the consolidated financial amewf the Company as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2014. Accordingly, our audindi include the internal control over financigporting at CBC Settlement Funding, LL

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operafiiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk, and performing such other puoes@s we considered necessary in the circumstavwe=believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesaesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thai€fthin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatp@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasaabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatibdeficiencies, in internal control over finariaieporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstaternéttte Company’s annual or interim financial sta¢mts will not be prevented or detected on
a timely basis. The following material weakness l@sn identified and included in management’s assest. The Company has determined
the effective yield for its distressed consumeeieable portfolios by analyzing actual cash flovessus the amount of cash flows expected to
be collected over the life of the loan as opposauetrforming this analysis using current cash fleasations (i.e. actual versus estimated cast
flows within a particular quarter). This materiabakness was considered in determining the natmimg, and extent of audit tests applied in
our audit of the 2014 consolidated financial staets, and this report does not affect our repaddidune 29, 2015, on those consolidated
financial statements.
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In our opinion, management’s assessment that thep@oy did not maintain effective internal contrekofinancial reporting as of
September 30, 2014, is fairly stated, in all mategspects, based on criteria establishddtarnal Control — Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of tleadway Commission (COS@ssued in 1992. Also, in our opinion, becausthefeffect of
the material weakness described above on the aahiwt of the objectives of the control criteriag @ompany has not maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of &smpber 30, 2014, based on criteria establishéatémal Control — Integrated Framework
(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSO).

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Company aspptéi@ber 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related comseticstatements of income,
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, anti fiasvs for the years ended September 31, 20128448, and our report dated June 29,
2015, expressed an unqualified opinion on thoseaatated financial statements.

/sl WeiserMazars LLP

New York, New York
June 29, 2015
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Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente.
Name _Age Position
Arthur Stern 94  Director, Chairman Emeritt
Gary Sterr 62  Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off
Edward Celano(1)(2)(< 76  Director
Harvey Leibowitz(1)(2)(3 81  Director
Louis A. Piccolc 63  Director
David Slackman(1)(2 67  Director
Robert J. Miche 58  Chief Financial Officer and Secrete
Seth Bermai 52  General Counsel and Chief Compliance Offi
Ricky Stern 30  Senior Vice President and President of GAR

Disability Advocates

(1) Member of Audit Committe
(2) Member of Compensation Committ
(3) Member of Governance Committ

The Business Experience and Qualifications of Haicactor

We believe that our Board of Directors should beposed of individuals with sophistication and exgece in many substantive areas
that impact our business. We believe that expegiegualifications, or skills in the following areae most important: experience in the
distressed consumer credit industry; regulatorgpanting and finance; capital markets; strategamping; human resources and development
practices; and board practices of other corporatibhese areas are in addition to the personaifigaéibns described in this section. We
believe that all of our current Board members pessiee professional and personal qualificationgessary for board service, and have
highlighted particularly noteworthy attributes fesch Board member in the individual biographiesWwelThe principal occupation and busir
experience, for at least the past five years, ofearrent director is as follows:

Arthur Sternhas been a director and has served as Chairmaritisr&nce January 2009. Mr. Stern served as Chaimfhthe Board of
Directors and Executive Vice President of the Comypsince our inception in July 1994 through Janz@§9. Since 1963, Mr. Arthur Stern
has been President of Asta Group. In such capsciteehas obtained substantial experience in di&gtteconsumer credit analysis and
receivables collections. As a result of these ahdrgorofessional experiences, Mr. Stern possexagisular knowledge and experience in
distressed consumer credit and collections whigngthens the Board’s collective qualificationsdllskand experience.

Gary Sterrhas been a director and the President and Chiefuixe Officer of the Company since our inceptiorduly 1994. Mr. Stern
assumed the role of Chairman in January 2009. rnShad been Vice President, Secretary, Treaanckr director of Asta Group since 1980
and held other positions with Asta Group prior &ter In such capacities, he has obtained subdtamparience in distressed consumer credit
analysis and receivables collections. As a resuti@se and other professional experiences, MrnStessesses particular knowledge and
experience in financial management and collectiomieh strengthens the Board'’s collective qualificas, skills, and experience.
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Edward Celandias been a director of the Company since Septeh®®&. Mr. Celano has served as a consultant toefgadind Samuels,
Incorporated since 2003. He was formerly a constuitath WeiserMazars LLP, from 2001 to 2003, andExecutive Vice President of Atlan
Bank from May 1996 to February 2001. Prior to M&@8, Mr. Celano was a Senior Vice President of NegiBank (now Bank of America)
after having held different positions at the bamkdver 20 years. As a result of these and othafepsional experiences, Mr. Celano possesse
particular knowledge and experience in financialises and management which strengthens the Boaotlective qualifications, skills, and
experience.

Harvey Leibowithas been a director of the Company since Janu@g. 20r. Leibowitz has served as a Senior Vice éleadi of Sterling
National Bank since June 1994. Prior to June 1884 eibowitz was employed as a Senior Vice Prasidmd Vice President of several ba
and financial institutions since 1963. As a resiilthese and other professional experiences, Mhdvétz possesses particular knowledge and
experience in financial services and managemertiwdtrengthens the Board'’s collective qualificasioskills, and experience.

Louis A. Piccoldchas been a director of the Company since June 2004&iccolo has served as President of A.L. Pe&ICo., Inc., a
business consulting firm specializing in managenamat financial consulting, since 1988. Mr. Piccaias an Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Alfred Dunhill of Londgrinc. from 1983 to 1988, and held the same positet Debenham’s PLC, from 1981 to
1983. From 1977 to 1981, Mr. Piccolo was a semepantant at KPMG Peat Marwick. As a result of ¢haad other professional experiences,
Mr. Piccolo possesses particular knowledge andrésquee in accounting and management which strengttiee Board'’s collective
qualifications, skills, and experience.

David Slackmatmas been a director of the Company since May 2002Slackman has served as Managing Director aCidpital
Advisors LLC from August 2008 to present. Mr. Sladn served as President, Manhattan Market — New ¥b€ommerce Bank from
January 2001 through June 2008. Mr. Slackman w&xaanutive Vice President of Atlantic Bank of NewrK from 1994 to 2001 and a Sen
Vice President of the Dime Savings Bank from 1986994. As a result of these and other professiex@aériences, Mr. Slackman possesses
particular knowledge and experience in financialises and management which strengthens the Boaotlective qualifications, skills, and
experience.

The following are the executive officers of the Gmany who are not directors of the Company.

Robert J. Michel, CPAjas served as our Chief Financial Officer sincerfraty 2009. Prior to this, from 2004 to 2009, Mrickkl served
as our Controller and the Director of Financial B#pg and Compliance. Prior to joining the Compakly. Michel was a partner at Laurence
Rothblatt & Company LLP, a CPA firm located in Grékeck, New York.

Seth Berman, Eschas served as our General Counsel since 2005 andamaed Chief Compliance Officer in April 2013. Fra997
through 2004, Mr. Berman was an associate at \@eilshal & Manges LLP.

Ricky Sternhas served as our Senior Vice President since Ritky Stern was named President of GAR Disabditivocates in
January 2015.

There are no events or legal proceedings materah tevaluation of the ability or integrity of adiyector or executive officer, or any
nominee therefor, of the Company. Moreover, noatimeor executive officer of the Company, nor amyninee, is a party adverse to the
Company or has a material interest adverse to timep@ny in any legal proceeding.

Family Relationships

Arthur Stern is the father of Gary Stern. RickyrBtis the son of Gary Stern and the grandson dfukrGtern.
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Item 11. Executive Compensatior
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

We seek to have compensation programs for our naxecltive officers that are intended to achievaréety of goals, including, but n
limited to:

 attracting and retaining talented and experiengedgives in the competitive debt buying indus
» motivating and fairly rewarding executives whosewtedge, skills and performance are critical to surcess; an
 providing fair and competitive compensatir

In determining executive compensation for fiscary2014 (ended on September 30, 2014), the Comi@m&2ommittee articulated as
its central goal the continuation of its policyh@ving the compensation paid to the named execaffieers reward them for Company-wide
and individual performance and better link pay padormance. This policy is intended to assure thiatcompensation practices are
competitive with those in the industry. Our chigéeutive officer, as he did for certain prior fisgaars, assisted the Compensation Committe
in determining compensation for the other namedetiee officers.

For fiscal year 2014, the Compensation Committegmgead a professional compensation consultant, Adzonsulting Group, LLC
(“Adams”) to provide benchmarking data (using, pifrally, relevant published survey analysis andkpranalysis), make suggestions, and
assist it in the compensation process. Data fos#lery surveys were selected based upon one @r ofidne following criteria: (i) industry
group; (ii) geographic location; and (iii) compamwenue. In addition, Adams conducted a competitiaeket analysis of comparable positic
for the named executive officers, by utilizing seys from Towers Watson, Economic Research InstidenpData, National Employer
Associations of America and Kenexa, and for thedors, surveys from the 2012 Towers Watson Getedaltry Board of Directors
Compensation Policies and Practices and the 2062 ©r Compensation Report/Frederick W. Cook & Tue proxy analysis included 16
public companies within the same industry and axiprate revenue size as us. Adams focused on tledadary, annual bonus and long-term
equity compensation of the chief executive offigeho also serves as our president), the chief &izhofficer (who also serves as our
secretary), the senior vice president (who alseeseas president of GAR Disability Advocates) dmelgeneral counsel (who also serves as ol
chief compliance officer), and on the annual regesr(as chairman and member) and equity compensattiie various committee members
well as the separate annual retainer for each evtgmt director. Adams memorialized its findingaimOctober 2014 report to the
Compensation Committee (the “Adams Report”).

With respect to the named executive officers, tdams Report recommended that the Compensation Gerroonsider recommending
to the Board that it (i) adjust annual base sadane2.0% to 6.0%, depending upon individual penfance and other relevant factors and
(ii) increase annual cash bonuses, basing suchsksran performance. However, the Adams Reportratstmnmended that the Board retain
flexibility to offer extraordinary compensationany or all of the named executive officers, in fillen of cash or equity, to reflect, as
applicable, individual or group accomplishmentsgraying business objectives or needs and retergsues.

With respect to the directors, the Adams Repordmenended that the Compensation Committee constedentmending to the Board tl
it consider make an annual equity award to eachhdBaeember approximately equal to the annual retaih®45,000.

On November 20, 2014 the Compensation Committedareview the Adams Report and formulate its rec@mdations to the Board
with respect to executive base salary and Boaadn@ts, as applicable, for fiscal year 2015 (endingeptember 30, 2015) and for cash bonu
(named executive officers only) and equity or egtbihsed grants to be made in fiscal year 2015 hithwrelate to fiscal year 2014
performance. With respect to executive compensdtiothe named executive officers, the Compensaliommittee determined, in pertinent
part, that (i) the base salary for the chief exigeubfficer should be determined at a subsequesmtimgof the Board and (ii) annual bonuses
and equity or equity-based compensation for thefahiecutive officer, chief financial officer, geakcounsel and senior vice president shoulc
be determined at a subsequent meeting of the Board.
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In addition, the Compensation Committee re-affirrtiet the base salary for the senior vice presjdembd was being promoted to hold
the position of President of GAR Disability Advoest as well, should be increased from $200,00280 800, an increase of approximately
40%. This increase was the second part of an iseresthe base salary for the senior vice presidecitled earlier in fiscal year 2014 and
planned to be effective as of the end of such figear or soon thereafter.

With respect to director compensation, the Compés&ommittee determined that it would recommemthe Board that annual
retainers be kept at fiscal year 2013 (ending @tedeber 30, 2013) levels and, consistent with isatinent of the executive officers, that any
equity or equity-based awards be determined absesjuent meeting of the Board.

Underlying the Compensation Committee’s determameatithat the base salary of the chief executivieaffthe annual bonuses of all of
the executive officers and the equity or equitydobawards of all of the executive officers andéalhe directors should be determined at a
subsequent meeting of the Board was its concemardety the uncertain effects of two ongoing govegntal reviews, by the SEC and the IRS,
respectively, on the financial performance of tlempany. In particular, the Compensation Committed hote of an inquiry by the Division
of Corporate Finance of the SEC, described in tietdtiem 1B of this Form 10-K, relating to the Cpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 and IRBsawith respect to the Compasy2008 through 2013 federal income tax returns;riesd
in detail in Item 1A of this Form 10-K.

The Board appears to have shared this concerrgidgaiot to meet to discuss the Compensation Cotmestdeterminations. As a rest
the only change in compensation from fiscal yedrd2® fiscal year 2015 is the increase in the senae president’s base salary.

Elements of Executive Officer Compensation

Overview.Total compensation paid to our executive officerdivided among three principal components. Bakayse generally fixed
and does not vary based on our financial and ggadormance. Other components, such as cash boandestock options or other equity or
equity-based awards, are variable and dependentayomarket performance. Historically, judgmeriiew these elements have been made
subjectively. In the case of stock options, theigas dependent upon our future stock price anmhrdingly, such awards are intended to
reward the named executive officers for favorabdenpany-wide performance.

Our Compensation Committee reviews total compenisddi see if it falls in line with peer companieglanay also look at overall market
data. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2B&4Zompensation Committee determined that oupemisation program was generally
competitive with the members of our peer group. @ral to promote pay for performance emphasizesdhiable elements of overall
compensation over fixed base salaries. In thisrcggdiais our policy to emphasize long-term equatyards over short-term cash bonuses, as th
long-term awards are intended to align with goalshsas total shareholder return. Each of the tblements of executive compensation has
been determined by evaluating the recommendatietrfegh in the Adams Report, as well as our analgsour financial performance, overall
economic conditions and certain individual achiegats, such as successful completion of assign&e.tas

Base SalaryWe pay our executives a base salary, which weweaied determine annually. We believe that a cortipetbase salary is a
necessary element of any compensation program. $¥daeges are established, in part, based on theuéixe’s individual position,
responsibility, experience, skills, historic salsyels and the executive’s performance duringptt@r year. We are also seeking over a period
of years to align base compensation levels compatatwur competitors and other companies similaitiyated. We do not view base salaries
as primarily serving our objective of paying forfoemance.

For fiscal year 2014, based on our financial penfomce, uncertain macroeconomic conditions, thememendations contained in the
report issued by Adams for fiscal year 2013 (thediPYear Adams Report"and our evaluation thereof with respect to thetirdgperformanci
of our named executive officers, we held the sdkewgls for the chief financial officer and the th&enior vice president (Mary Curtin)
constant, but increased the salary levels of tief elxecutive officer and the general counsel. Weeaased the chief executive officer's
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salary by 3.9%, to $600,000 annually, and we irsgdahe general counsel’s salary by 10%, to $2D05@dually. These increases took effect
as of January 1, 2014.

For fiscal year 2015, based on our financial penfomce, uncertain macroeconomic conditions, thememendations contained in the
Adams Report and our evaluation thereof with resfethe relative performance of our named exeeutifficers and the ongoing nature of the
SEC and IRS reviews described above, we genereltythe salary levels of the named executive affi@®nstant. The sole exception was the
senior vice president, whose salary was increageD%, to $280,000 annually. This increase was#woend part of an increase in the base
salary for the senior vice president decided aarifiscal year 2014 and planned to be effectiv®fthe end of such fiscal year or soon
thereafter. It actually took effect as of Januarg@15. We believe that for fiscal year 2015, alagy levels are sufficient to retain our existing
executive officers and hire new executive offiogten and as required.

Cash Incentive BonuseSonsistent with our emphasis on pay-for-performancentive compensation programs, our executives ar
eligible to receive annual cash incentive bonusisarily based upon their performance during tharye

For fiscal year 2013 service and performance, stasi with our emphasis on pay-foerformance incentive compensation programs
based on our financial performance, uncertain nemeomic conditions, the recommendations contaimélte Prior Year Adams Report and
our evaluation thereof with respect to the relagieeformance of our named executive officers, warded the chief executive officer a
$100,000 cash bonus and the general counsel adfB€a3h bonus. These bonuses were paid in fisaal2fd 4.

For fiscal year 2014 service and performance, basaalr financial performance, uncertain macroeogo@onditions, the
recommendations contained in the Adams Report anémluation thereof with respect to the relapeeformance of our named executive
officers and the ongoing nature of the SEC andré&ws described above, we did not award any bashses.

We are contemplating the adoption of claw backgiedi with respect to performance-based bonusesaguity grants and any other
incentive compensation with respect to which theld&rank Act requires such claw back policies. Wecgate adopting such claw back
policies when applicable Securities and Exchanga@ission rules under the Dodd-Frank Act are adopted

Equity and Equity-Based Compensatidfe believe that stock options and other forms aifitgcpr equity-based compensation are an
important long-term incentive for our executiveiogfs and other employees and generally aligneffiaterest with that of our stockholders.
They are intended to further our emphasis on payésformance.

For fiscal year 2013 service and performance watgthto our chief executive officer stock optioagtirchase under our 2012 Stock
Option Performance and Award Plan (the “2012 PI&®;p00 shares of our common stock, having a gtatet value of $325,905. In addition,
we granted to each of our general counsel and iseic® president (Ricky Stern) stock options toghase under our 2012 Plan 20,000 shares
of our common stock, having a grant date valuel@0$362. The awards to our chief executive offigeneral counsel and senior vice presi
vested in three annual installments, the first p@in December 12, 2014. For fiscal year 2014 serara performance, based on our financial
performance, uncertain macroeconomic conditioresygcommendations contained in the Adams Reporbandvaluation thereof with respt
to the relative performance of our named execuiffieers and the ongoing nature of the SEC anditR8stigations described above, we did
not award stock options or any other forms of ggaitequity-based compensation.

We do not have any formal plan or obligation tlegjuires us to grant equity or equity-based compgEmsto any executive officer on
specified dates. In recent years, we have develtiyegractice of approving equity grants (and besyat about the time our audit of the prior
fiscal year is completed to reward executives forkwin the completed year. However, we reserveitig to re-visit these matters during the
year. The authority to make equity or eg-based grants to our executive officers rests withfull Board of Directors based upon
recommendations made by the Compensation ComniltteeCommittee considers the input of our chiefcexiee officer in setting the
compensation of our other executive officers, idalg in the determination of appropriate level&qtiity or equity-based grants.
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Severance and Change-in-Control Benefithile we are currently not a party to any employtregreements, historically we have
provided our executive officers with employmenttraats. In January 2007, we entered into a three-gmployment agreement with Gary
Stern. Mr. Stern’s employment agreement expiredecember 31, 2009. This agreement was not renemga Stern is continuing in his
current roles at the discretion of the Board oflbiors until a new agreement is signed.

Share Retention

We did not have a share retention policy or guigefor executive officers until October 2009, whemadopted a guideline
recommending that each officer retain $10,000 oftgdn the Company (other than shares receiveolidin stock options and restricted stock
grants).

Director Compensation

For fiscal year 2015, based on our financial penfomce, uncertain macroeconomic conditions, themnevendations contained in the
report issued by Adams for such year and our etialuthereof with respect to the relative perforcenf our named executive officers and
ongoing nature of the SEC and IRS investigatiorssidieed above, we held retainers for directors,radtee chair positions and committee
member positions constant and did not award stptikes or any other forms of equity or equity-basethpensation.

Regulatory Considerations

We account for the equity compensation expensedoemployees under the rules of FASB Accountiran8ard Codification 718,
“Compensation — Stock Compensation,” or ASC 718.

“Sayon-Pay Advisory Vote

In determining compensation policies and decisfondiscal year 2014 and, in the case of base gafiscal year 2015, the Compensatior
Committee did not take into account the most reskateholder advisory vote with respect to exeeutmmpensation required under Dodd-
Frank. Such vote, which occurred at the annual imgef the Company’s shareholders on March 21, 28pproved the executive
compensation payable to the Company’s named execofiicers as disclosed in the Company’s proxyesteent filed with the SEC on
February 17, 2012. The Compensation Committee fvegeoriew that such a consideration was unnecgsaarthe only change in
compensation from fiscal year 2014 to fiscal yegt®was an increase in Ricky Stern’s compensatioaftect his increased responsibilities.
As required by its say on pay policy, however, @mpany will be submitting its executive compermatieterminations, as reflected in this
Compensation Discussion & Analysis, to an advisirgreholder vote at its next annual meeting ofedi@ders.

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT
ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and disdubks foregoing Compensation Discussion & Analysta management. Based
on this review and these discussions, the Compensabmmittee recommended to the Board of Dirediimas the Compensation Discussion
and Analysis be included in this report.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee:
David Slackman, Chairman

Harvey Leibowitz

Edward Celano

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTI CIPATION

The Compensation Committee currently is composddanid Slackman, Harvey Leibowitz and Ed Celanamenof whom is an employ:
or a current or former officer of the Company. Nafi®@ur executive officers serves as a memberefibmpensation Committee, or any other
committee serving an equivalent function, that draes or more executive officers who serve as memdfesar Board of Directors or our
Compensation Committee.
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table contains information about campation earned (bonus) or received (all otheigeoaies of compensation) by the
named executive officers for the fiscal year enBegtember 30, 2014.

All Other
Stock Awards Option Awards Compensatior

Fiscal Salary Bonus Total
Name and Principal Position Year $ (&) (€3] $A) (6] %)
Gary Stern 2014  $593,60: $ — % — $ — $ 69,96¢ $ 663,57:
Chairman, President & CE 201z  $577,50(C  $100,00( $ — $ 3259042) $ 46,84t  $1,050,25

201z  $577,50(  $200,000 $ 979,21(3) $ — $ 58967 $1,815,67
Robert J. Miche 2014  $275,000 % — 3 — $ — $ 30,35: $ 305,35
Chief Financial Officer and Secrete 201z  $275,000 % — 3 — $ — $ 30,60:¢ $ 305,60«

201z $275,000 $ 30,00 $ — $ 212,7144) $ 27,77¢ $ 545,49
Ricky Stern 201<¢  $176,92. % — 3 — $ — $ 491¢ $ 181,84.
Senior Vice President and Presider

GAR Disability Advocates(8

Seth Bermai 2014  $269,23. % — % — $ — $ 23,70 $ 292,93
General Counsel & Chie 201  $250,00¢ $ 30,00 % — $ 130,365) $ 22,76¢ $ 433,13:
Compliance Office 201z  $250,00¢ $ 30,000 $ — $ 170,1746) $ 19,86: $ 470,03

(1) Represents the grant date fair value of therdwelculated in accordance with FASB Accountitgn8ard Codification 718,
“Compensation — Stock Compensation,” or ASC 718ufmary of the assumptions made in the valuatighexfe awards is provided
under Note A to our financial statements includedur Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year en8egdtember 30, 2014, filed with
herewith.

(2) Includes an option to purchase 50,000 sharesmimon stock granted to Mr. Stern on DecembeR@23 but earned in the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2013. The option has an eegnice of $8.49 per share and expires on Decet#823. The option vests fully in
three equal annual installments on December 124,2D&cember 12, 2015 and December 12, :

(3) Includes a restricted stock award of 102,32dresh of common stock granted to Mr. Stern on Deeerh8, 2012 but earned in the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2012. The award had adgaprice of $9.57 per share and fully vesthne¢ equal installments «
December 18, 2013, December 18, 2014 and Decer8b2015.

(4) Includes an option to purchase 25,000 sharesminon stock granted to Mr. Michel on December28,2 but earned in the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2012. The option has an exgnice of $9.57 per share and expires on Decefihe2022. The option vests in three
equal annual installments on December 18, 2013ember 18, 2014 and December 18, 2(

(5) Includes options to purchase 20,000 shareafr@on Stock granted on December 11, 2013, but éannthe fiscal year ended
September 30, 2013 with such grant effective onebgxer 12, 2013, with an exercise price equal talbsing stock price on
December 12, 2013. The awards had a grant day @irf68.49 per share and vest in three equal ims¢égits on December 12,

2014, December 12, 2015 and December 12, 2

(6) Includes an option to purchase 20,000 sharesmimon stock granted to Mr. Berman and Ms. CunirDecember 18, 2012 but earned in
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. Theropts an exercise price of $9.57 per share andesxpn December 18, 2022. The
option vests in three equal annual installment®ecember 18, 2013, December 18, 2014 and Decerghe015.

(7) These amounts consist |
» matching Company contributions under our 401(khg
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« life insurance premiums; at
» health insurance premiums paid by the Company ée®xof no-executive contributior
The following table summarizes “All Other Compernzat:

Health
401(k) Life Insurance
Company Insurance
Premiums
Match Premium
Name Year ($) (%) (%) Total ($)
Gary Stern 201¢  $20,74¢  $37,15¢ $12,060  $69,96¢

201:  $12,29¢ $21,017 $13,53t  $46,84¢
201z  $10,00C $38,68:  $10,28¢  $58,96'

Robert J. Miche 201¢  $11,00C $ 7,287 $12,060  $30,35¢
201: $9,57¢ $ 7,49C $13,53¢  $30,60¢
201z $9.80C $ 7,694 $10,28°  $27,77¢

Ricky Stern 2014 $ 1,68¢ —  $323 $491¢
Seth Bermat 201¢ $11,63¢ — $12,06" $23,70:
201z $ 9,231 — $13,53¢ $22,76¢
2012 $ 9,577 — $10,28¢ $19,86:

(8) Ricky Stern became Senior Vice President on Ma#&2@14. Salary and benefits are for full fiscadyef 2014
GRANTS OF PLAN BASED AWARDS

The following table provides certain informationtlvrespect to stock options and restricted stoektgd to our named executive officers
during fiscal year 2014.

All Other
All Other Option
Stock Awards: Grant Date
Awards: Number
Number of of Exercise or Fair Value
Securities Base Price ¢ of Stock
Shares of Underlying and Option
Stocks or Option
Grant Units Options Awards Awards
Name Date (#) #) ($/sh) ($)
Gary Stern 12/12/1: — 50,00((1) $ 8.4¢ $325,90!
Ricky Stern 12/12/1: — 20,00((1) $  8.4¢ $130,36:
Seth Bermai 12/12/1: — 20,00((1) $ 8.4¢ $130,36:

(1) This stock option award vest in three equal instaiits on December 12, 2014, December 12, 2015 andriber 12, 201!

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Tabland Grant of Plan Based Awards Table
Employment Agreements

In January 2007, we entered into an employmenteageat (the “Employment Agreementijth Gary Stern, our Chairman, President
Chief Executive Officer, which expired on DecemBg&r 2009. This Employment Agreement was not reneameldMr. Stern is continuing in
his current roles at the discretion of the Boar®wéctors until a new agreement is signed. Wecarssidering entering into a new employment
agreement with Mr. Stern during fiscal year 2015.

We are not party to any employment agreementsamthother named executive officers.
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Consulting Agreements

On December 12, 2011, we entered into a consudtimgement (the “Consulting Agreement”) with A.Lc&ilo & Co., Inc. (“A.L.
Piccolo”), which is owned by Louis Piccolo, a dir@cof the Company. The Consulting Agreement presithat A.L. Piccolo will provide
consulting services to us, which includes analgsigroposed debt and equity transactions, dueatitig and financial analysis and managel
consulting services (the “Services”). Under the €ldting Agreement, we will pay A.L. Piccolo an aahuonsulting fee of $150,000, payable
in equal monthly installments, and a bonus of $28f@r each new transaction that we close with Riccolo’s assistance, other than any
transactions pending on the effective date of thestilting Agreement. We may pay an additional bdous.L. Piccolo in the sole discretion
our Chief Executive Officer. In addition, duringobayear of the term of the Consulting Agreementwilegrant to A.L. Piccolo an option to
purchase 30,000 shares of our Common Stock, whithrowill vest in three annual installments on finst, second, and third anniversaries of
the grant date. The Consulting Agreement expireBecember 12, 2013 . The parties are in currecudi&ons on the future of the agreement
Additional information regarding the consultingagbnship with A.L. Piccolo can be found in thetsat entitled “CERTAIN
RELATIONSHIPS and RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS” below

Incentive Compensation Plans
2012 Stock Option and Performance Award Plan

On February 7, 2012, the Board of Directors adofited2012 Plan. The 2012 Plan, which is adminigtéseour Compensation
Committee, was adopted by our stockholders on M2aigt2012. The purpose of the 2012 Plan is to pefar our success and enhance our
value by linking participants’ personal interestimvthose of our stockholders and employees, byighaog participants with an incentive for
outstanding performance, and to motivate, attradtratain the services of participants upon whomsogcess depends. The 2012 Plan is
flexible in that it provides for the grant of stooftions (“Options”), stock appreciation rights §8s”), shares of restricted stock (“Restricted
Stock”), restricted stock units (“RSUs”"), perforncarshares and performance units (“Performance Shane “Performance Units”), and cash
incentives (the “Cash Incentives”), singularly mrcombination as determined by the Compensationitige. The 2012 Plan authorizes the
grant of awards relating to 2,000,000 shares ofGammon Stock, with 1,566,279 available for awasl®f September 30, 2014 and 1,551
available for awards as of December 31, 2014.

Equity Compensation Plan

On December 1, 2005, the Board of Directors adoptedEquity Compensation Plan (the “Equity Compé&nsaPlan”), which was
approved by our stockholders on March 1, 2006. Hipgity Compensation Plan was adopted to supplemengxisting 2002 Stock Option
Plan. In addition to permitting the grant of stagkions as are permitted under the 2002 Stock @tlan, the Equity Compensation Plan
provides us with flexibility with respect to equigyvards by also providing for grants of stock awdick. restricted or unrestricted), stock
purchase rights and stock appreciation rights.

The general purpose of the Equity Compensation Blemprovide an incentive to our employees, doecand consultants, including
executive officers, employees and consultants pfsamsidiaries, by enabling them to share in theréugrowth of our business. The Board of
Directors believes that the granting of stock apiand other equity awards promotes continuity ahagement and increases incentive and
personal interest in our welfare by those who aiarily responsible for shaping and carrying out long range plans and securing our
growth and financial success.

On February 29, 2012, our board of directors adbpteamendment to the Equity Compensation Plangimythat, effective upon
receiving stockholder approval of the 2012 Planadditional awards would be granted under the Eduitmpensation Plan. On March 21,
2012, our stockholders approved the 2012 Plan.

59



Table of Contents

2002 Stock Option Plan

On March 5, 2002, our Board of Directors adoptedAta Funding, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan (th@02 Plan”), which was approved
by our stockholders on May 1, 2002. The 2002 Plas adopted in order to attract and retain qualifieelctors, officers and employees of, and
consultants to, the Company.

The 2002 Plan authorizes the granting of incergteek options (as defined in Section 422 of theej@hd norgualified stock options t
our eligible employees, including officers and diges of the Company (whether or not employees)camsultants of the Company.

On February 29, 2012, our board of directors adbpteamendment to the 2002 Plan providing thagcéffe upon receiving stockholder
approval of the 2012 Plan, no additional awardsld/be granted under the Equity Compensation PlanM@rch 21, 2012, our stockholders
approved the 2012 Plan.

Options and Restricted Stock Awards

On December 11, 2013, we determined to grant th@afimg options with such grants to be effectivech®ecember 12, 2013 (at the
December 12, 2013 closing stock price):

- Gary Stern was granted stock options to purcbf88,000 shares of our common stock to reflecfibel year 2013 performance. The
stock option grant vests in three annual instalkséeginning on the first anniversary of the awardDecember 12, 2014. The options grante
to Mr. Stern have an exercise price of $8.49 paresh

- Ricky Stern was granted stock options to purct2z&800 shares of our common stock for his fiseary2013 performance. These
options vest in three annual installments beginoinghe first anniversary of the award, on Decenif212014. The options granted to Ricky
Stern have an exercise price of $8.49 per share.

- Seth Berman was granted stock options to purck@$¥0 shares of our common stock for his fisealry2013 performance. These
options vest in three annual installments beginwinghe first anniversary of the award, on Decenif2e12014. The options granted to
Mr. Berman have an exercise price of $8.49 pereshar

Other stock awards and stock option grants arelss:

On December 18, 2012 Mr. Stern was awarded 10%Bades of restricted stock for his fiscal year 2p&&formance. These restricted
shares vest in equal installments on December@®3,2December 18, 2014 and December 18, 2015.

On December 18, 2012 Robert J. Michel was granterk ©ptions to purchase 25,000 shares of our camstaxk for his fiscal year 20:
performance. These options vest in three annutliments on December 18, 2013, December 18, 26dD&cember 18, 2015.

On December 18, 2012 Mr. Berman and Mary Curtim,tben senior vice president, were graniptions to purchase 20,000 shares o
common stock for their 2012 performance. Thesebaptiest in three annual installments on Decem®e?013, December 18, 2014 and
December 18, 2015.

On December 13, 2011, we granted to Mr. Sterm(dgtion to purchase 150,000 shares of our comnoak sit an exercise price of
$7.77 per share. The option has a term of 10 yaatwests in three equal annual installments oreDéer 13, 2014. In June 2013, 50,000 of
these options were canceled.

On December 13, 2011, we granted to each of Medlichel and Berman and Ms. Curtin options to puseh@0,000 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price of $7.77 peresfidre options have a term of 10 years and vesBeoember 13, 2014.

The foregoing awards issued to Messrs. Stern, amch&n in 2013 were issued under the 2012 Plan whilier options were granted to
Messrs. Stern and Berman were issued under our2§0iBy Compensation Plan, and the awards issustt.tdMichel and Ms. Curtin were
issued under our 2002 Stock Option Plan. Each plavides for certain benefits upon a change inrobief the Company. For instance, under
the 2012 Plan, upon the occurrence of a “corpdratesaction event”, defined as the merger of the@any with or into
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another corporation, the sale of substantiallpgtur assets, the liquidation of the Companyheracquisition by any person of our securities
the result of which such person becomes the beakfiainer, directly or indirectly, of our securiieepresenting greater than 50% of the
combined voting power of our then outstanding séesr the Board may take any number of actions.ifgiance, under the 2012 Plan, upon
the occurrence of a merger, consolidation, salubstantially all of the assets of the Companyeracquisition of more than 50% of the
Company’s voting securities, if the applicable s@actions do not provide otherwise, option awardoimee exercisable and restricted stock
awards fully vest immediately prior thereto.

Similarly, under the 2006 Equity Incentive Planpnphe occurrence of a “corporate transaction éydefined as the merger of the
Company with or into another corporation, the sdlsubstantially all of our assets, the liquidataiithe Company, or the acquisition by any
person of our securities the result of which suetspn becomes the beneficial owner, directly orr@utly, of our securities representing gre
than 50% of the combined voting power of our thatstanding securities, the Board may take any numibactions. These actions include
providing for all options outstanding under therPiia be assumed by the acquiring corporation @ettbome immediately vested and
exercisable in full. The Board may also cancel amgtanding options, stock purchase rights andksippreciation rights in effect prior to such
corporate transaction event.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

The following table provides information on exeatite and unexercisable options and unvested steakda held by the named execu
officers on September 30, 2014.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of
Securities Number of
Underlying Securities Market Value of
Unexerciset Underlying Shares or Units o
Unexercised Option Number of Shares o
Options Options Exercise Price Stock That
#) #) Option Units of Stock That Have Not Vested
Name Exercisable Unexercisabl¢ ($) Expiration Date Have Not Vested (# $)(1
Gary Stern(2) 150,00( — $ 18.22 10/28/1: 68,21411) $ 560,03
60,00( — $ 7.63 12/15/2( — —
100,00((2) $ 7.7 12/13/2: — —
50,00((3) $ 8.4¢ 12/12/2: — —
Robert J. Miche 30,00( = $ 7.65 12/15/2( — —
30,00((4) $ 1.71 12/13/2: — —
8,33t 16,66%(5) $ 9.57 12/18/2. — —
Ricky Stern 10,00( — $ 8.3¢€ 12/22/2: — —
6,66¢€ 13,33¢6) $ 957 12/18/2: — —
— 20,00(7) $  8.4¢ 12/12/2: — —
Seth Bermai 5,50( — $ 2.9t 5/5/1¢ — —
10C — $ 8.07 12/11/1¢ — —
30,00( = $ 7.65 12/15/2( — —
— 30,00((8) $ 1.71 12/13/2: — —
6,66¢ 13,3349) $ 9.57 12/18/2. — —
— 20,00(10) $  8.4¢ 12/12/2: — —

(1) Based On $8.21 per share, the closing price ofdnemon stock as reported by NASDAQ on Septembe2@D4.

(2) Represents the unvested portion of an optigrutehase 100,000 shares of common stock grant&@koember 13, 2011, which fully
vested on December 14, 20:
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(3) Represents the unvested portion of an optigrutehase 50,000 shares of common stock grant&koamber 12, 2013, which vests in
three equal installments on December 12, 2014, Dbee 12, 2015 and December 12, 2(

(4) Represents the unvested portion of an optigputahase 30,000 shares of common stock grant&ktoember 13, 2011, which fully vested
on December 13, 201

(5) Represents the unvested portion of an optigrutchase 25,000 shares of common stock grant&koember 18, 2012 which vest in three
equal installments on December 18, 2013, Decenmte214 and December 18, 20

(6) Represents the unvested portion of an optigputohase 20,000 shares of common stock grant&koember 18, 2012 which vest in three
equal installments on December 18, 2013, Decenmte2d14 and December 18, 20

(7) Represents the unvested portion of an option tohmae 20,000 shares of common stock granted omiberel2, 2013, which vest in thi
equal installments on December 12, 2014, Decenhe2d15 and December 12, 20

(8) Represents the unvested portion of an optigrutehase 30,000 shares of common stock grant&koamber 13, 2011 which fully vested
on December 13, 201

(9) Represents the unvested portion of an optigputohase 20,000 shares of common stock grant&koember 18, 2012 which vest in three
equal installments on December 18, 2013, Decenthe2d14 and December 18, 20

(10)Represents the unvested portion of an option tohase 20,000 shares of common stock granted omibeeel2, 2013 which vest in three
equal installments on December 12, 2014, Decene2d15 and December 12 20.

(11)Represents two thirds of Gary St's 102,321 shares of restricted stock granted oreber 18, 2012

STOCK OPTION EXERCISES AND VESTING OF RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS

The following table provides information on stogition exercises and vesting of restricted stockrdsvaf named executive officers
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014.

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

Stock Options Stock Awards
Number Number
of Share of Share
Value
Acquired Value Acquired Realizec
Realized
on on on on
Exercise Exercise Vesting Vesting
Name (#) ®Q) (#) (6]
Robert J. Michel 10,00( $84,20( — $ —

(1) Represents the number of shares vested multipligdebomarket value of the shares on the exercite

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Mr. Gary Stern received no compensation for sereis@ director, except that he, like all direct@ligible to be reimbursed for any
expenses incurred in attending Board and commitieetings. For fiscal year 2014, the total annued that a director, other than Mr. Gary
Stern, could have received for serving on our Badifdirectors and committees of the Board of Dioestwere set as follows:

* An annual fee of $150,000 per year for Chairman o

* An annual fee of $45,000 per year for each IndepenDirector;

* An annual fee of $10,000 for Audit Committee Ment)

» An annual fee of $35,000 for the Chairman of th&ifCommittee

» An annual fee of $15,000 for Chairman of the Conspéion Committee
» An annual fee of $7,500 for Compensation Commilleenbers;
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* An annual fee of $15,000 for Chairman of the Goaene Committee; ar
* An annual fee of $7,500 for Governance Committeenlidiers.

The following table summarizes compensation paiduiside directors in fiscal 2014:

Fees
Earned or Option
Paid in Awards
Cash
Name ($) $)1) Total ($)
Herman Badillo $ 6437%(2) $ — $ 64,37t
Edward Celant $ 75,6253) $ — $ 75,62
Harvey Leibowitz $ 95,00((4) $ — $ 95,00(
David Slackmar $ 60,00((5) $ — $ 60,00(
Louis Piccolc $ 45,00((6) $ — $ 45,00(
Arthur Stern $162,50(7) $ — $162,50(

(1) No stock option awards were granted in fiscal y&€Hr4.

(2) Includes, in addition to $45,000 independergctor retainer, $3,750 for being chairman of tlew&@nance Committee (Mr. Badillo was
chair of the Governance Committee for the firstrtgreof fiscal year 2014), $5,625 for being a mentdfehe Governance Committee (Mr.
Badillo was a member of the Governance Committegdarters two through four of fiscal year 2014)d 10,000 for being a member of
the Audit Committee. Mr. Badillo passed away on @aber 3, 2014

(3) Includes, in addition to $45,000 independergctor retainer, $10,000 for being a member of&hdit Committee, $7,500 for being a
member of the Compensation Committee, $1,875 fgbe member of the Governance Committee, and $0X@® being Chairman of tl
Governance Committee. (Mr. Celano became Chairrh#firedGovernance Committee on January 1, 2(

(4) Includes, in addition to $45,000 independen¢atdr retainer, $35,000 for being chairman ofAldit Committee, $7,500 for being a
member of the Compensation Committee, $7,500 forgoe member of the Governance Commit

(5) Includes, in addition to $45,000 independent doerttainer, $15,000 for being chairman of the Cengation Committes
(6) Mr. Piccolo is not an independent direct
(7) Mr. Arthur Stern became Chairman Emeritus in Jan@2809.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners atanagement and Related Stockholder Matte
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN BENEFI CIAL OWNERS

The following table sets forth information as oh@ul5, 2015 with respect to beneficial ownershipwofCommon Stock by (i) each
director and executive officer acting in the capaas such June 15, 2015, including any personitplthe position of CEO or CFO at any ti
during the fiscal year of 2014, (ii) each persoown by us to own beneficially more than five petogfour outstanding Common Stock, and
(iii) all directors and executive officers as agpoThis table has been prepared based on 13,@8#8es of Common Stock outstanding on
June 15, 2015. Unless otherwise indicated, theesddsf each such person is c/o Asta Funding, 24€. Sylvan Avenue, Englewood Cliffs,
New Jersey 07632. All persons listed have solengadind investment power with respect to their shargess otherwise indicate

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial
Name and Address of Beneficial Owne Ownership Percentage(1
Arthur Stern 366,68:(2) 2.8%
Gary Sterr 1,425,08(3) 10.€%
Ricky Stern 329,36:(4) 2.5%
Robert J. Miche 79,74°(5) *
Seth Bermai 85,59¢6) *
Edward Celan: 83,00(7) *
2115 Scotch Gamble Road Scotch Plains
Harvey Leibowitz 77,00((8) *
211 West 56th Street, Suite 20C New York, NY 10
David Slackmar 82,50((9) *
100 Mozart Court Eastport, NY 119
Louis A. Piccolc 127,00((10) *
350 West 50th Street New York, NY 100
Asta Group, Incorporate 842,00((11) 6.4%
Judith R. Fede 1,565,00(12) 12.(%
928 East 10th Street Brooklyn, NY 112
Stern Family Investors LL! 692,00((13) 5.2%
928 East 10th Street Brooklyn, NY 112
GMS Family Investors LL( 862,00((14) 6.6%
928 East 10th Street Brooklyn, NY 112
Mangrove Partnet 967,77((15) 7.4%
645 Madison Avenue, 14th Floor, New York, NY 10(
Tutuila Asset Manageme 800,00((16) 6.1%
130 Adelaide St. West, Toronto, Can:
Dimentional Fund Advisors, L 751,14(17) 5.8%
Building One, 6300 Bee Cave Road, Austin, TX 78
Jordan Capital AM, LLC 1,238,43(18) 9.5%
6001 River Road, Suite 100, Columbus, GA 31
All executive officers and directors as a group ff&@sons 2,655,97/(19) 19.2%

* Less than 1%
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1)

(@)

(3)

(4)

()
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)

(13)

Any shares of common stock that any person daabeve has the right to acquire within 60 daydusfe 15, 2015, are deemed to be
outstanding for purposes of calculating the owniprpercentage of such person, but are not deemiee taitstanding for purposes of
calculating the beneficial ownership percentaganyf other person not named in the table ab

Includes 35,000 shares of common stock issugide exercise of options, and 214,599 sharesmafitan stock owned by Asta Group,
Incorporated, which shares are attributable to tr8tern based on his percentage ownership of @siap. Excludes 349,460 shares
owned by Stern Family Investors LLC which sharesaitributable to Arthur Stern based on his pesgmbwnership of such LLC and
948 shares owned by GMS Family Investors LLC wisitares are attributable to Arthur Stern based spéricentage ownership of such
LLC. Arthur Stern does not have voting or investigower with respect to any of the shares helditheelLLC and disclaims beneficial
ownership of the shares owned by the LLCs. Exclij880 shares of common stock issuable upon exeo€igptions that are not
exercisable within 60 days of June 15, 2015. 704006k options expired on November 3, 2C

Includes 210,000 shares of common stock issuabn exercise of options, and 285,607 sharesrfron stock owned by Asta Group,
which shares are attributable to Gary Stern basdupercentage ownership of Asta Group. Excl@&@25945 shares owned by GMS
Family Investors LLC which shares are attributabl&ary Stern based on his percentage ownerstgpabf LLC. Gary Stern does not
have voting or investment power with respect to afhe shares held by the LLC and disclaims bera@fownership of the shares owr
by the LLC. Excludes 33,334 shares of common skemkable upon exercise of options that are notcésadsle within 60 days of June 15,
2015 Also excludes 393,312 shares of common steltklly Mr. Stern’s children who are no longer msand for which he disclaims
beneficial ownership. 70,000 stock options expMedember 3, 201

Includes 29,999 shares of common stock issugide exercise of options. Excludes 46,667 sharesromon stock issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable wiltirdays of June 15, 2015. Includes 30,220 shdresnamon stock owned by Asta
Group, which shares are attributable to Ricky Sbarsed on his percentage ownership of Asta Gi

Includes 76,666 shares of common stock issuabla apercise of options. Excludes 8,334 shares ofwomstock issuable upon exerc
of options that are not exercisable within 60 dafy3une 15, 201¢

Includes 85,599 shares of common stock issugide exercise of options. Excludes 19,999 shdresramon stock issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable witirdays of June 15, 201

Includes 68,000 shares of common stock issuabla apercise of options. Excludes 2,500 shares ofwomstock issuable upon exerc
of options that are not exercisable within 60 dafy3une 15, 2015. 25,000 stock options expired kat@8, 2014

Includes 68,000 shares of common stock issuabla agercise of options. Excludes 2,500 shares ofwomstock issuable upon exerc
of options that are not exercisable within 60 dafy3une 15, 2015. 25,000 stock options expired but@8, 201«

Includes 68,000 shares of common stock issuabla apercise of options. Excludes 2,500 shares ofwomstock issuable upon exerc
of options that are not exercisable within 60 dafy3une 15, 2015. 25,000 stock options expired kat@8, 2014

Includes 118,000 shares of common stock idsugipn exercise of options. Excludes 12,500 shafreemmon stock issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable wilirdays of June 15, 2015. 30,833 stock optionregdy October 28, 201

Asta Group, Incorporated (“Asta Group”) is edrby Arthur Stern, our Chairman Emeritus and RDaedsary Stern, our Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer, and othemiers of the Stern famil:

Includes 11,000 shares of common stock owiredtty, 692,000 shares owned by Stern Family ItorssLLC and 862,000 shares ownec
by GMS Family Investors LLC. Ms. Feder is the masragf each LLC and as such has sole voting andstment power of such shar

A limited liability company of which Judith Feder has sole voting and investment power. Barltarburger has a 24.75% beneficial
interest in the LLC, the Ricky Stern 2012 GST Truess$ a 12.375¢
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beneficial interest in the LLC, the Emily Stern 20&ST Trust has a 12.375% beneficial interesténlthC, and a trust for the benefit of
the descendants of Arthur Stern, of which Juditir&ler is trustee, has a 49.5% beneficial inténeste LLC. Barbara Marburger is the
sister of Gary Stern. Ricky Stern and Emily Stemnthe children of Gary Ster

(14) A limited liability company of which Judith FEeder has sole voting and investment power. Gamn$ias a 79.46% beneficial interest in
the LLC, trusts for the benefit of the children@éry Stern of which Judith R. Feder is the trusimee a combined 20.43% beneficial
interest (10.215% each), and Arthur Stern has % Béneficial interest in the LL(

(15) Based on information set forth on Schedule i@ with the SEC on December 31, 2014, jointfyTthe Mangrove Partners Master
Fund, Ltd.; The Mangrove Partners Fund, L.P.; Thenitove Partners Master Fund (Cayman), Ltd.; MargRartners and Mangrove
Capital. Nathaniel August has the power to vote diedose of these shar

(16) Based on information set forth on Schedule fiRg@ with the SEC on October 30, 2014, by Tutdilsset Management Inc. Mark
Gardiner has the power to vote and dispose of thleses

(17) Based on information set forth on Schedule fiR@ with the SEC on December 31, 2014, by Dirfevdl Fund Advisors LP.
Dimentional Fund Advisors, LP has the power to \and dispose of these shai

(18) Based on information set forth on Schedule fig@ with the SEC on May 19, 2015, jointly by dan Capital Partners, LP and Jodan
Capital AM, LLC. Jordan Capital Partners, LP claib®¥,465 shares. Jordan Capital Partners, LP legsativer to vote and dispose of
these shares. Jordan Capital AM, LLC claims 6508wtes. Jordan Capital AM, LLC has the power te amd dispose of these sha

(19) Includes 725,930 shares of Common Stock idsugion exercise of options that are exercisabiiinv60 days of June 15, 2015.
Excludes 104,168 shares of Common Stock issualale epercise of options that are not exercisablbinis0 days of June 15, 2015.
Excludes the shares owned in the aggregate by Btamnily Investors LLC and GMS Family Investors LL

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, aDatector Independence

On December 12, 2011, the Company and Piccolo BesiAdvisory (“Piccolo”), which is owned by Louig€lo, a director of the
Company, entered into a Consulting Agreement, @mntsto which Piccolo provided consulting servicdsol included, but was not limited to,
analysis of proposed debt and equity transactiuns diligence and financial analysis and managemrgulting services (“Services”). The
Consulting Agreement was for a period of two yeatsich ended on December 31, 2013 and Piccolovedaiompensation of $150,000 per
annum payable monthly, a bonus of $25,000 per n@wsaction closed by the Company with Piccolo’ss¢asce (if any), and 30,000 options
per year, with such options vesting in three eqmalual installments on the first, second and thindiversaries of the first grant date. The
Company paid Piccolo $25,000, $150,000, and $1250the fiscal years ended September 30, 20143 2ad 2012, respectively. This
agreement was not renewed, however, there arempgdcussions for a new agreement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service
During fiscal year 2014 and 2013 WeiserMazars Ltdvioled the following services:

2014 2013
Audit Fees: $527,51: $358,67"
Audit Related Fees $ $

Tax Fees $ — $ —
All Other Fees $ — $ —
Total Fees: $527,51: $358,67"
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Item 15.

Part IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule

(a) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport

Exhibit
Number
3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
4.1
10.1
10.2
10.3
104
10.5
10.6
10.7

10.8

10.9
10.10

10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17

10.18
21.1
23.1
31.1
31.2

32.1
32.2

Certificate of Incorporation(]

Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation|

Certificate of Designation of Series A Preferredc&(3)

Bylaws(4)

Amendments to Article IX of the E-Laws of Asta Funding, Inc.(¢

Rights Agreement, dated as of August 23, 2012, éetmAsta Funding, Inc. and American Stock Tran&férust Co., LLC(6)
Asta Funding, Inc 1995 Stock Option Plan as Ame(ibe

Asta Funding, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plar

Asta Funding, Inc. Equity Compensation Plar

Asta Funding, Inc. 2012 Stock Option and Perforneafsward Plan(8

Form of Intercreditor Agreement between Asta Fugdind IDB as lending agent(

Amended and Restated Management Agreement, datdfdlasuary 16, 2009, between Palisades ColledtianC., and [*](10)
Amended and Restated Master Servicing Agreemetedaes of January 16, 2009, between Palisadeso@iotieL.L.C., and [*]
(11)

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Masteri&egvAgreement, dated as of September 16, 200@nkblyamong
Palisades Collection, L.L.C., and [*], and [*](1

Indemnification agreement between Asta Funding@wts Family Investors LLC. (1%

Settlement Agreement and Omnibus Amendment amoteyAmding, Inc., Palisades Acquisition XVI and BND@pital
Markets dated August 7, 2013. (-

Lease agreement between the Company and ESL20@lated August 2, 2010 (1

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated December 28, 2b§hnd between Pegasus Funding, LLC and FundsBeghalL C(15;
Security Agreement, dated December 28, 2011, bybahwleen Pegasus Funding, LLC and Fund Pegasug;1B6)

Secured Revolving Credit Note, dated December @8] 2by Pegasus Funding, LLC in favor of Fund PegalsL C(17)
Operating Agreement of Pegasus Funding, LLC, dBetember 28, 2011(1!

Consulting Agreement, dated December 12, 2011 ndybatween the Company and A.L. Piccolo & Co.,(B)

Membership Interest Purchase Agreement by and ai@&) Settlement, LLC, CBC Management Services Graug, Asta
Funding, Inc. and Other Parties Hereto (22) |

Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of CBtle8emnt Funding, LLC (23) (2¢

Subsidiaries of the Registrar

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing*

Certification of Registra’'s Chief Executive Officer, Gary Stern, pursuanéztion 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002.*
Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Of#ic Robert J. Michel, pursuant to Section 302 ef$larbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

Certification of the Registra’s Chief Executive Officer, Gary Stern, pursuanbéation 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of the Registrant’s Chief Financiafficer, Robert J. Michel, pursuant to Section 906he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

* Filed herewitr
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1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
()
(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)

Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading' s Registration Statement on Form-2 (File No. 3:-97212).

Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit to Astading' s Quarterly Report on Form -QSB for the three months ended March 31, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Astadinc’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 24, 2012

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Astadinc’'s Annual Report on Form -KSB for the year ended September 30, 1!
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Astadinc’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 24, 2012

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Astadinc’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 24, 2012

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astamdin¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed March 3, 2006

Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to ABtanding’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed on Fedry 17, 2012 for the March 21, 2012
Annual Meeting of Stockholde

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Astadin¢s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to Astadin¢s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Astadin¢s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to Astadin¢ s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended September 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 5, 2010

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astamdinc¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 4, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 4, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Astmdhin¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 4, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Astadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 4, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astamdinc¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 6, 201:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2!
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astmdin¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 9, 2012

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Astadin¢’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 7, 201«

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Astamdinc¢’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 7, 201«

The schedules to Exhibits 10.17 and 10.18 navdeen filed with this registration statementtesy contain due diligence information
which the Registrant does not believe is mateoiart investment decisio
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiarfes“@€ompany”) as of
September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related ¢dataml statements of income, comprehensive incetonekholders’ equity, and cash flows
for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 20E3eT¢onsolidated financial statements are the magglity of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on aditsau

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing twiating principles used and significant estimatesle by management, as well as evalu:
the overall consolidated financial statement prizgam. We believe that our audits provide a reabtmbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial
position of the Company as of September 30, 20842813, and the consolidated results of their dfmrs.and their cash flows for the years
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 in conformity WiS. generally accepted accounting principles.

As described in Note A2 — Revision of Prior Perleidancial Statements, the Company has reviseaitsatidated financial statements
for 2013.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of September 30, 2014, based on criteria éstebl in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in21&8d our report dated June 29,
2015 expressed an adverse opinion on the effeetbgeof the Company’s internal control over finah@aorting.

/s/ WeiserMazars LLI

New York, New York
June 29, 201
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Asta Funding, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatis of operations, stockholdeesjuity, comprehensive income, land cash flow
Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Comparigi)the year ended September 30, 2012. Thesedi@mastatements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility isxjgress an opinion on these financial statemerstsdchen our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit also includes examininga ¢@st basis, evidence supporting the amounts igokbsures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well agatirgg the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providessonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the results of operations and
cash flows of Asta Funding, Inc. and subsidiar@slie year ended September 30, 2012 in conforwitty accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
January 18, 2013 (except as to Note A [2], RevisibRrior Period Financial Statements, with respec¢he impact on the year ended
September 30, 2012, which is as of June 29, 2015)
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalel

Available-for-sale investment

Restricted cas

Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation @trealizable value

Structured settlemen

Investment in personal injury claims, 1

Due from third party collection agencies and attys

Prepaid and income taxes receive

Furniture and equipment (net of accumulated deptieci of $4,499,000 at September 30, 2014 and
$4,136,000 at September 30, 20

Deferred income taxe

Goodwill

Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Non-recourse det— Bank of Montrea

Other debt — CBC (includes non-recourse notes gayahounting to $12.7 million at September 30,
2014)

Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 5,@M,3sued and outstandi— none

Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 30,000sb@0es; issued — 12,985,839 at September 30,
and 14,917,977 at September 30, 2013; and outsiqirdi12,985,839 at September 30, 2014 and
12,974,239 at September 30, 2(

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)phetcome taxe:

Treasury stock (at cost), 0 shares at Septembeé(3@, and 1,943,738 shares at September 30,

Non-controlling interest:
Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

(1) For a discussion on the adjustments, see Note AZisiRn of Prior Period Financial Stateme
See notes to accompanying consolidated financsients
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September 30
2013

2014 (As Revised)(1
$ 28,710,00 $ 35,179,00
66,799,00 58,035,00
— 968,00(
29,444,00 64,254,00
42,079,00 —
32,352,00 35,758,00
1,026,00! 1,169,00!
430,00( 1,496,00!
756,00( 1,106,00!
6,786,001 7,772,001
2,770,001 1,410,00t
5,986,001 4,383,001
$217,138,00 $211,530,00
$ — $ 35,760,00
32,295,00 —
3,587,001 2,486,001
35,882,00 38,246,00
130,00( 149,00(
63,102,00 79,104,00
118,595,00 112,694,00
142,00( (674,000
- (17,805,00)
(713,000) (184,000
181,256,00 173,284,00
$217,138,00 $211,530,00
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

Revenues:

Finance income, n¢

Personal injury claims incon

Unrealized gain on structured settleme

Interest income on structured settleme
Total revenue

Forgiveness of nc-recourse dek

Other income (includes ($143,000), ($252,000), $3:@0,000 during the years ended
September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivepc@afmulated other

comprehensive income reclassifications for unredlizet (losses) / gains on available

for sale securities

Expenses

General and administrative expen

Interest expens

Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fuidiation

Income before income t¢

Income tax expense (includes tax benefit / taxek56{000, ($100,000) and $137,000
during the years ended September 30, 2014, 2012@i3) respectively, of
accumulated other comprehensive income reclassifitafor unrealized net (losses
gains on available for sales securiti

Net income

Less: net income attributable to I-controlling interest:

Net income attributable to Asta Funding, |

Net income per share attributable to Asta Fundimgy;
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of common shares outsigr
Basic
Diluted

Year Ended September 30

2013 2012

2014 (As Revised)(1 (As Revised)(1
$19,865,00  $31,762,000  $40,803,00
7,134,001 6,438,001 1,647,00!
2,840,001 — —
2,368,00! — —
32,207,00 38,200,00 42,450,00
26,101,00 — —
1,777,001 1,611,00! 2,256,001
60,085,00 39,811,00 44,706,000
28,192,00 24,212,00 23,640,00
1,260,001 1,300,00t 2,539,001
19,591,00 10,990,00 1,771,00
49,043,00 36,502,00 27,950,00
11,042,00 3,309,001 16,756,000
4,613,001 894,00( 6,797,00i
6,429,00I 2,415,001 9,959,001
528,00( 406,00( 31,00(

$ 5,901,001 $ 2,009,001 $ 9,928,001
$ 0.4t $ 0.1€ $ 0.71
$ 0.4¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.6¢
12,981,07 12,952,15 14,077,65
13,205,93 13,216,05 14,321,38

(1) For a discussion on the adjustments, see Note AZisiRn of Prior Period Financial Stateme

See notes to accompanying consolidated financsgsients
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended September 30
2014 2013(1) 2012(1)

Comprehensive income is as follov
Net income $6,429,00 $ 2,415,00i $ 9,959,001
Net unrealized securities gain / (loss), net of(egpense) / benefit of ($599,00

$705,000 and ($495,000), during the years endeteBdyer 30, 2014, 2013 and 201:

respectively 900,00( (1,067,00i) 733,00(
Reclassification adjustments for securities soéd,af tax benefit / (expense) of $59,000,

($100,000) and $137,000, during years ended Sepgtedth 2014, 2013 and 2012,

respectively (84,000 152,00( (202,000
Other comprehensive income (lo 816,00( (915,000 531,00(
Total comprehensive incon $7,245,00! $ 1,500,00! $10,490,00

(1) For a discussion on the adjustments, see Note AZisi®n of Prior Period Financial Stateme

See notes to accompanying consolidated financsgsients
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Balance, September 30, 2011, as report
Cumulative impact of prior period revisions
Balance, September 30, 2011, as revis
Exercise of option

Stock based compensation expe
Dividends

Purchase of treasury sto

Net income, as revised(

Unrealized loss on marketable securi
Balance, September 30, 2012, as revised
Exercise of option
Stock based compensation expe
Restricted stoc
Dividends
Purchase of treasury sto

Net income, as revised(

Unrealized loss on marketable securi
Distributions to no-controlling interes
Balance, September 30, 2013, as revised
Exercise of option

Stock based compensation expe
Net income
Unrealized gain on marketable securi
Retirement of treasury stor
Distributions to no-controlling interes
Balance, September 30, 201

ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
For the years ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and .20

Common Stock Accumulated
Other Non- Total
Additional Comprehensive Controlling  Stockholders
Issued Paid-in Retained Treasury
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock(1) Interests Equity
14,639,45 $146,000 $74,793,00 $ 98,377,00 $ (290,000 $ (70,000 $ — $172,956,00
4,521,001 4,521,001
14,639,45  146,00( 74,793,00 102,898,00 (290,000 $ (70,000 — 177,477,00
139,50( 2,00( 608,00( 610,00(
1,623,00! 1,623,001
(1,111,00i) (1,111,001
(16,156,00) (16,156,00)
9,928,001 31,00( 9,959,001
531,00( 531,00(
14,778,95  148,00( 77,024,00 111,715,00 241,00( (16,226,00) 31,00( 172,933,00
36,70( 125,00( 125,00(
1,956,00! 1,956,001
102,32: 1,00( (1,000 —
(1,030,001 (1,030,001
(1,579,00) (1,579,001
2,009,001 406,00( 2,415,00
(915,001) (915,001)
(621,000 (621,001)
14,917,97 149,00( 79,104,00 112,694,00 (674,000 ($ 17,805,00) (184,000 173,284,00
11,60( 40,00( 40,00(
1,744,00 1,744,00
5,901,001 528,00( 6,429,00
816,00( 816,00(
(1,943,73) (19,000 (17,786,00) 17,805,00 —
(1,057,00i) (1,057,001
12,985,83 $130,00( $63,102,00 $118,595,00 $ 142,000 $ — $ (713,000 $ 181,256,00

(1) Treasury shares are as follows: September 30, 3)300; Purchase of treasury stock, 1,763,138;esamr 30, 2012, 1,772,0¢
30, 2012, 1,772,038; Purchase of treasury stock,70D; September 30, 2013, 1,943,738.

Septem

30, 2013, 1,943,738; Retirement of treasury st(ic®43,738); September 30, 2014, 0.

Septem

(2) For a discussion on the adjustments, see Note AZsRn of Prior Period Financial Stateme

See notes to accompanying consolidated financsients
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fpridiation
Stock based compensati
Loss (gain) on sale of availa-for-sale securitie
Structured settlemen— accrued interes
Structured settlemen— gains
Forgiveness of nc-recourse dek
Changes in
Prepaid and income tax receiva
Due from third party collection agencies and aiys
Other asset
Other liabilities
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of consumer receivables acquired fordagign
Principal collected on consumer receivables acdueliquidation
Principal collected on consume receivable accowgmesented by account sa
Purchase of availat-for-sale securitie
Proceeds from sales of availe-for-sale securitie
Purchase of certificates of depc
Proceeds from maturities of certificates of dep
Cash paid for acquisition (net of cash acqui
Investments in personal injury clai— advance:
Investments in personal injury clair— receipts
Investments in structured settleme— advance:
Investments in structured settleme— receipts
Capital expenditure
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock optir
Purchase of treasury sto
Change in restricted ca
Dividends paic
Distributions to no-controlling interes
Repayments of n-recourse del— Bank of Montreal, ne
Borrowings of other det— CBC
Repayments of other de— CBC
Net cash used in financing activiti
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivake
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye:

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for
Interest

Income taxe:

Supplemental disclosures of nc-cash investing and financing activities
Structured settlemen
Other deb— CBC
Retirement of treasury sto

(1) For a discussion on the adjustments, see Note Ad4sRn of Prior Period Financial Stateme

Year Ended September 30

2013 2012
2014 (As Revised)(1 (As Revised)(1
$ 6,429,000 $ 2,415,001 $ 9,959,001
363,00( 440,00( 380,00(
446,00( 57,00( 3,318,001
19,591,00 10,990,00 1,771,00
1,744,00 1,956,00! 1,623,001
143,00( 252,00( (339,001)
(2,282,001 — —
(2,840,001 — —
(26,101,00) — —
1,066,00! 561,00( 1,281,001
143,00( 873,00( 42,00(
(1,592,001 (631,000 (190,001)
745,00( (434,000 (247,000
(2,145,00) 16,479,00 17,598,00
(5,079,00i) (3,340,00i) (2,495,00i)
20,272,00 21,902,00 29,149,00
26,00( 433,00( 67,00(
(20,111,00) (34,171,00) (66,625,00)
12,560,00 33,076,00 22,656,00
— — (45,121,00)
— 42,682,00 11,499,00
(5,588,001 — —
(22,218,00) (30,963,00) (22,549,00)
25,624,00 13,801,00 3,953,001
(9,808,001 — —
3,287,001 — —
(13,000 (725,000 (638,001)
(1,048,001 42,695,00 (70,104,00)
40,00( 125,00( 610,00(
— (1,579,00i) (16,156,00)
968,00( 120,00( (57,000
— (1,290,00i) (1,144,00)
(1,057,001 (621,000 —
(9,659,00i) (25,703,00) (10,141,00)
9,903,001 — —
(3,471,00) — —
(3,276,00i) (28,948,00) (26,888,00)
(6,469,001 30,226,00 (79,394,00)
35,179,00 4,953,001 84,347,00
$ 28,710,00 $ 35,179,00 $ 4,953,00
$ 1,004,00! $ 1,822,001 $ 2,570,000
$ 3,100,00! $ — $ 2,002,001
$ 30,436,00 — —
$ 23,363,00 — —
$ 17,505,00 — —

See notes to accompanying consolidated financsients
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ASTA FUNDING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2014 and 2013

N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P OLICIES
[1] The Company:

Asta Funding, Inc., together with its wholly owngdnificant operating subsidiaries Palisades Ctted_LC, Palisades Acquisition XV
LLC (“Palisades XVI"), VATIV Recovery Solutions LLCVATIV”), ASFI Pegasus Holdings, LLC (“APH"), FuhPegasus, LLC (“Fund
Pegasus”), GAR Disability Advocates, LLC (“GAR Dislity Advocates”) and other subsidiaries, notwliolly owned (collectively, the
“Company”), has been engaged in the business ahpsing, managing for its own account and servidisggessed consumer receivables,
including charged-off receivables, and semi-perfagweceivables, since 1994, as well as more rdmgsihess segments discussed below. Th
primary charged-off receivables are accounts thaélbeen written-off by the originators and mayehbegen previously serviced by collection
agencies. Senperforming receivables are accounts where the déebturrently making partial or irregular montiggyments, but the accoul
may have been written-off by the originators. BEsied consumer receivables are the unpaid deindiwifluals to banks, finance companies
and other credit providers. A large portion of @@mpany’s distressed consumer receivables are , Vis&® , other credit card
accounts, and telecommunication accounts which wleeged-off by the issuers for non-payment. Then@any acquires these portfolios at
substantial discounts from their face values. Tiseadints are based on the characteristics (isaaeount size, debtor residence and age of
debt) of the underlying accounts of each portfdlitigation related receivables are semi-perfornmimgestments whereby the Company is
assigned the revenue stream from the proceedveecei

The Company owns 80% of Pegasus Funding, LLC (“B&gj3 which invests in funding personal injuryiaia and 80% of CBC
Settlement Funding, LLC (“CBC”), which invests imuctured settlements (see Note D: Acquisition BiGJ.

Pegasus provides funding for individuals in needhadrt term funds pending insurance settlementisedf personal injury claims. The
funds will be recouped when the underlying insueasettiements are paid. The long periods of tirkertdy insurance companies to settle anc
pay such claims resulting from lengthy litigatiamdathe court process is fueling the demand for $ucting.

CBC provides liquidity to consumers by purchasiegain deferred payment streams including, butindted to, structured settlements
and annuities. CBC generates business from diradteting as well as through wholesale purchases nmkers or other third parties. CBC
has its principal office in Conshohocken, PenngyilgaCBC primarily warehouses the receivablesiginates and periodically resells or
securitizes those assets on a pooled basis. Tiasted settlement marketplace is regulated byré@ad state law, requiring that each
transaction is reviewed and approved by court order

GAR Disability Advocates is a social security digipadvocacy group, which obtains and represamdg/iduals in their claims for soci
security disability and supplemental security inednenefits from the Social Security Administration.

The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generadigepted in the United States
(“U.S. GAAP”) and industry practices.

[2] Revision of Prior Period Financial Statements:

Our previously reported results for the first thggmrters in fiscal year 2014 reported finance ine®n the interest method in accordanc
with FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 310-3GdRivables — Loans and Debt Securities Acquireld Béteriorated Credit
Quality . However, due to the Company’s inability to reasday estimate the cash collections under the istenethod, the Company was
precluded from using the interest method and deteanthat the cost recovery method is the apprtgpeacounting method under the
circumstances and has made adjustments to rdflectist recovery method prospectively in the firtrim period for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2014.
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N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[2] Revision of Prior Period Financial Statement€6ntinued):

We identified pre-tax errors in prior annual pesadlated to the application of the interest metttodtonsumer receivables acquired for
liquidation and accounted for under ASC 310-30.iByithose prior annual periods, the Company haerdehed the effective yield for its
distressed consumer receivable portfolios by amadyactual cash flows versus the amount of casksflexpected to be collected over the life
of the loan as opposed to performing this analysisg the current cash flow variations (i.e., acueasus estimated cash flows within a
particular quarter). As disclosed in the detait flolows, this misstatement resulted in an incesasfinance receivables of approximately $6.4
million, with a decrease in deferred taxes of agppnately $2.7 million and a resulting increasedtamed earnings of approximately $3.7
million in this Form 10-K as of September 30, 20IBe effect on the fiscal year ended Septembe2@03 was a reduction of finance income
of approximately $2.6 million with an associated benefit of approximately $0.3 million which retad in net income attributable to Asta
Funding, Inc. of $2.0 million or $0.15 per dilutsdare from $2.7 million or $0.21 per diluted shdiee effect on the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012 was an increase of $0.2 mitidimance income with an associated tax benef#@fL million which resulted in net
income attributable to Asta Funding, Inc. of $9.@lion or $0.69 per diluted share from $10.0 millior $0.70 per diluted share. The impact of
the misstatements in the prior years’ financialesteents was not material to any of those yearsghiew the cumulative effect of correcting all
of the prior period misstatements in the curremtryeould be material to our fiscal year 2014 costéd financial statements. As such,
consistent with the guidance in ASC Topic 250, aeehaccounted for these errors as a revision of pgriod financial statements.

In evaluating whether the previously issued finahstatements were materially misstated, the Comnpaplied SEC Staff Accounting
Bulletin (SAB) No. 108Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemeviten Quantifying Misstatements in Current Yeashiial
Statements SAB No. 108 states that registrants must quatitiéyimpact of correcting all misstatements, ingigdoth the carryover (iron
curtain method) and reversing (rollover methodge§ of prior-year misstatements on the current-fieancial statements, and by evaluating
the misstatement measured under each method troligluantitative and qualitative factors.

Under SAB No. 108, prior-year misstatements whiicborrected in the current year would be maternalst be corrected by adjusting
prior year financial statements, even though sachection previously was and continues to be imnlteo the prioryear financial statemen
Correcting prior-year financial statements for stiaimaterial misstatements” does not require prasiyp filed reports to be amended. In
accordance with accounting guidance presented D 28)-10 (SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 99, Maality), the Company assessed the
materiality of the misstatements and concludedttiat were not material to any of the Company’sjanesly issued annual financial
statements.

Due to the immaterial nature of the misstatemenections, the cumulative adjustments requiretoect the misstatements in the
financial statements are reflected in the revisgedkholders’ equity as an adjustment to the begighialance of retained earnings. The
cumulative effect of those adjustments increaseglipusly reported retained earnings by approxingeiél5 million. These adjustments also
cumulatively impacted the following balance sh&s items as of September 30, 2013:
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N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[2] Revision of Prior Period Financial Statement¢Continued)
Consolidated Balance Sheet

September 30, 201!

As Reported Adjustments As Revised

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 35,179,00 $ — $ 35,179,00
Investment— availablefor-sale 58,035,00 — 58,035,00
Restricted cas 968,00t — 968,00(
Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation @trealizable value 57,900,00 6,354,001 64,254,00
Other investments, n 35,758,000 — 35,758,00
Due from third party collection agencies and attgs 1,169,001 — 1,169,00
Prepaid and income taxes receive 1,496,001 — 1,496,00
Furniture and equipment, net (net of accumulatguiestgation of $4,136,00( 1,106,001 — 1,106,00!
Deferred income taxe 10,443,00 (2,671,00i) 7,772,000
Goodwill 1,410,001 — 1,410,00
Other asset 4,383,001 — 4,383,00

Total asset $207,847,00 $ 3,683,001 $211,530,00
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Liabilities
Non-recourse dek $ 35,760,00 $ — $ 35,760,00
Other liabilities 2,486,00! — 2,486,00!

Total liabilities 38,246,00 — 38,246,00
Commitments and contingenci
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 5@, issued and outstandi— none — — —
Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 30,000sb@@es; issued, 14,917,977, and

outstanding, 12,974,2: 149,00( — 149,00(
Additional paid in capita 79,104,00 — 79,104,00
Retained earning 109,011,00 3,683,001 112,694,00
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of inctares (674,000 — (674,000
Treasury stock (at cost), 1,943,738 shi (17,805,00) — (17,805,00)
Non-controlling interes (184,000 — (184,000

Total stockholder equity 169,601,00 3,683,001 173,284,00
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $207,847,00 $ 3,683,001 $211,530,00
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N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[2] Revision of Prior Period Financial Statement¢Continued)
Consolidated Statements of Income

Revenues:

Finance income, nt

Personal injury claims incon
Total revenue:

Other income (includes $252,000 accumulated otbepcehensive income
reclassifications for unrealized net loss on awéldor sale securities

Expenses

General and administrative expen

Interest expens

Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fuidiation

Income before income t¢

Income tax expense (includes tax benefit $100,0@@cumulated other comprehensive
income reclassifications for unrealized net losseailable for sales securitie

Net income

Less: net income attributable to I-controlling interest:

Net income attributable to Asta Funding, |

Net income per share attributable to Asta Fundimgy;
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of common shares outsigr
Basic
Diluted

F-12

Year Ended September 30, 201

As Reported Adjustments As Revised
$34,363,00 $(2,601,00) $31,762,00
6,438,00 — 6,438,00!
40,801,00 (2,601,00i) 38,200,00
1,611,001 — 1,611,00
42,412,00 (2,601,00i) 39,811,00
24,212,00 — 24,212,00
1,300,001 — 1,300,00!
12,592,00 (1,602,00i) 10,990,00
38,104,00 (1,602,001 36,502,00
4,308,001 (999,000 3,309,00
1,164,001 (270,000 894,00(
3,144,00i (729,000 2,415,00(
406,00( — 406,00(

$ 2,738,000 $ (729,000 $ 2,009,00
$ 021 $ (005 % 0.1€
$ 021 $ (0.0 $ 0.1F
12,952,15 12,952,15
13,216,05 — 13,216,05
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N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[2] Revision of Prior Period Financial Statement¢Continued)
Consolidated Statements of Income

Revenues:

Finance income, nt

Personal injury claims incon
Total revenue

Other income (includes $339,000 of accumulatedratbmprehensive income
reclassifications for unrealized net gain on aldéddor sale securities

Expenses

General and administrative expen

Interest expens

Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fuidiation

Income before income t¢
Income tax expense (includes taxes $137,000 ofnaglatied other comprehensive incon
reclassifications for unrealized net gain on aldédor sales securitie
Net income
Less: net income attributable to I-controlling interest:
Net income attributable to Asta Funding, |
Net income per share attributable to Asta Fundimgy;
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of common shares outsigr
Basic
Diluted
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Year Ended September 30, 201

As Reported Adjustments As Revised
$40,599,00 $ 204,00( $40,803,00
1,647,00 — 1,647,00
42,246,00 204,00( 42,450,00
2,256,000 — 2,256,001
44,502,00 204,00( 44,706,00
23,640,00 — 23,640,00
2,539,001 — 2,539,001
1,383,001 388,00( 1,771,00
27,562,00 388,00( 27,950,00
16,940,00 (184,001 16,756,00
6,872,001 (75,000) 6,797,001
10,068,00 (209,000 9,959,00I
31,00( — 31,00(
$10,037,00 $(109,000) $ 9,928,00
$ 0.71 $ 0.0C $ 0.71
$ 0.7 $ (001 % 0.6¢
14,077,65 — 14,077,65
14,321,38 — 14,321,38
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N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[2] Revision of Prior Period Financial Statement¢Continued)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30, 201
As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigenl by operating activitie:

$ 3,144,000 $ (729,000 $ 2,415,00

Depreciation and amortizatic 440,00( — 440,00(
Deferred income taxe 326,00( (269,000 57,00(
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fuidiation 12,592,00 (1,602,001 10,990,00
Stock based compensati 1,956,00! — 1,956,00!
Loss (gain) on sale of availa-for-sale securitie 252,00( — 252,00(
Changes in —
Prepaid and income tax receiva 561,00( — 561,00(
Due from third party collection agencies and attys 873,00( — 873,00(
Other asset (631,000 — (631,000
Other liabilities (434,000 — (434,000
Net cash provided by operating activit 19,079,00 (2,600,001 16,479,00
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of consumer receivables acquired fordafign (3,340,00i) — (3,340,00)
Principal collected on consumer receivables acdue liquidation 19,302,00 2,600,001 21,902,00
Principal collected on consume receivable accowapsesented by account se 433,00( — 433,00(
Purchase of availat-for-sale securitie (34,171,00) — (34,171,00)
Proceeds from sales of availe-for-sale securitie 33,076,000 — 33,076,00
Proceeds from maturities of certificates of dep 42,682,00 — 42,682,00
Investments in personal injury clair— advance:! (30,963,00) — (30,963,00)
Investments in personal injury clair— receipts 13,801,00 — 13,801,00
Capital expenditure (725,000 — (725,000
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi 40,095,00 2,600,001 42,695,00
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 125,00( — 125,00(
Purchase of treasury sto (1,579,00i) — (1,579,001
Change in restricted ca 120,00( — 120,00(
Dividends paic (1,290,00i) — (1,290,001
Distributions to no-controlling interes (621,000 — (621,000
Repayments of nrecourse det— Bank of Montreal, ne (25,703,00) — (25,703,00)
Net cash used in financing activiti (28,948,00) — (28,948,00)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalen 30,226,00 — 30,226,00
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 4,953,00! — 4,953,001
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye: $ 35,179,00 $ — $ 35,179,00
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for
Interest $ 1,822,001 $ = $ 1,822,00!
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N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[2] Revision of Prior Period Financial Statement¢Continued)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30, 201
As Reported Adjustments As Revised

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 10,068,00 $(109,00() $ 9,959,00!
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigenl by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 380,00t — 380,00(
Deferred income taxe 3,393,00! (75,000 3,318,001
Impairments of consumer receivables acquired fuidiation 1,383,001 388,00t 1,771,001
Stock based compensati 1,623,00! — 1,623,00!
Loss (gain) on sale of availa-for-sale securitie (339,000 — (339,000
Changes in
Prepaid and income tax receiva 1,281,001 — 1,281,001
Due from third party collection agencies and attys 42,00( — 42,00(
Other asset (190,000 — (190,000)
Other liabilities (247,000 — (247,000
Net cash provided by operating activit 17,394,00 204,00( 17,598,00
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of consumer receivables acquired fordafign (2,495,000 — (2,495,00)
Principal collected on consumer receivables acdue liquidation 29,353,00 (204,000 29,149,00
Principal collected on consume receivable accowapresented by account
sales 67,00( — 67,00(
Purchase of availat-for-sale securitie (66,625,00) — (66,625,00)
Proceeds from sales of availe-for-sale securitie 22,656,00 — 22,656,00
Purchase of certificates of depc (45,121,00) — (45,121,00)
Proceeds from maturities of certificates of dep 11,499,00 — 11,499,00
Investments in personal injury clair— advance:! (22,549,00) — (22,549,00)
Investments in personal injury clai— receipts 3,953,001 — 3,953,001
Capital expenditure (638,000 — (638,000
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi (69,900,00) (204,000 (70,104,00)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 610,00( — 610,00(
Purchase of treasury sto (16,156,00) — (16,156,00)
Change in restricted ca (57,000 — (57,000
Dividends paic (1,144,00) — (1,144,00)
Repayments of n-recourse det— Bank of Montreal, ne (10,141,00) — (10,141,00)
Net cash used in financing activiti (26,888,00) — (26,888,00)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivake (79,394,00) — (79,394,00)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 84,347,00 — 84,347,00
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ye: $ 4,953,00 $ — $ 4,953,00
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for
Interest $ 2,570,00! $ = $ 2,570,00
Income taxe: $ 2,002,00 $ — $ 2,002,00
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N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[3] Liquidity:

The Company’s cash requirements have been andanitinue to be significant. In the past, we haveeteled upon external financing to
acquire consumer receivables, fund operating exgimsterest and income taxes. If approved, thenpay of dividends is also a significant |
of cash. We have depended solely on operatingft@mstto fund the acquisition of portfolios, pay apéng expenses, dividends, and taxes.

Net collections decreased $13.9 million or 25.8861$54.1 million in fiscal year 2013 to $40.2 naiiin fiscal year 2014. Although the
Company’s collections decreased from the prior yib&r Company believes its net cash collections thenext twelve months, coupled with
its current liquid cash balances, will be sufficiemcover its operating expenses.

[4] Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include tu@ants of the Company and its wholly owned subsiels. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled in consolidation.

Palisades XVI is a variable interest entity (“VIEAsta Funding, Inc. is considered the primary fiersy because it has the power to
direct the significant activities of the VIE viaibwnership and service contract. Palisades X\Wthe Great Seneca portfolio of $19.3 mil
as of September 30, 2014. See Note | — Debh-Recourse Debt — Bank of Montr&al additional details.

Blue Bell Receivables I, LLC, Blue Bells Receivablg LLC and Blue Bell Receivables Ill, LLC (th&lue Bell Entities”) are VIEs.
CBC is considered the primary beneficiary becatibas the power to direct the significant actiwtaf the VIESs via its ownership and service
contract. It also has the rights to receive beaéfim the collections that exceed the paymentsemote holders. The Blue Bell Entities held
structured settlements of $19.6 million and meoeurse notes payable of $12.7 million as of Seber 30, 2014. On November 26, 2014, C
announced the completion of its fourth private ptaent, BBR IV, LLC, backed by structured settlerrsemd fixed annuity payments (see Note
V — Subsequent Events).

[5] Concentration of Credit Risk — Cash:

The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith a maturity of three months or less at theedsdtpurchase to be cash equivale

Cash balances are maintained at various depositstifutions and are insured by the Federal Depositrance Corporation (“FDIC").
The Company had cash balances with eight bankeKtaeded the balance insured by the FDIC by appedgly $25.3 million at
September 30, 2014. The Company does not beliésexposed to any significant credit risk for cash

[6] Available-for-Sale Investments:

Investments that the Company intends to hold fandafinite period of time, but not necessarilyntaturity, are classified as available-
for-sale and are carried at fair value. Unrealigaths and losses on available-for-sale securitiesletermined using the specific-identification
method.

Declines in the fair value of individual availalfle-sale securities below their respective cosas #ne other than temporary will result in
write-downs of the individual securities to thaiirfvalue. Factors affecting the determination bfther an other-than-temporary impairment
has occurred include: a downgrading of the secubsita rating agency, a significant deterioratiotthie financial condition of the issuer, or that
management would not have the ability to hold aiscfor a period of time sufficient to allow fany anticipated recovery in fair value.
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N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[7] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjgeld adjustments:
Income Recognition

The Company accounts for its investment in consueegivables acquired for liquidation using therast method under the guidance o
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standards Codification (“ASC”) 31Beceivables — Loans and Debt Securities
Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quali, (“ASC 3107).In ASC 310 static pools of accounts are establisihbdse pools are aggregated bi
on certain common risk criteria. Each static psakicorded at cost and is accounted for as a simifiéor the recognition of income, principal
payments and loss provision.

Once a static pool is established for a quarteliyidual receivable accounts are not added to tod unless replaced by the seller) or
removed from the pool (unless sold or returnedhéoseller). ASC 310 requires that the excess ofdinéractual cash flows over expected cash
flows not be recognized as an adjustment of reven@xpense or on the balance sheet. ASC 310linifiaezes the internal rate of return
(“IRR"), estimated when the accounts receivable are purdhasehe basis for subsequent impairment tesSiggrificant increases in actual,
expected future cash flows are recognized prospgtihrough an upward adjustment of the IRR ovposdfolio’s remaining life. Any increa
to the IRR then becomes the new benchmark for impeait testing. Under ASC 310, rather than lowetirggestimated IRR if the collection
estimates are not received or projected to bevedgthe carrying value of a pool would be writtlswn to maintain the then current IRR. The
Company switched to the cost recovery method aobatiing as of October 1, 2013. See Note A(2) foranoformation.

Finance income is recognized on cost recovery qlaotf after the carrying value has been fully resred through collections or amounts
written down.

The Company accounts for its investments in peddopay claims at an agreed upon interest ratgriticipation of a future settlement.
The interest purchased by Pegasus in each claincamisist of the right to receive from such claimpart of the proceeds or recoveries which
such claimant receives by reason of a settlemedgnjent or reward with respect to such claimanéisrc Open case revenue is estimated,
recognized and accrued at a rate based on thetegpealization and underwriting guidelines andsamnd circumstances for each individual
case. These personal injury claims are non-recowben a case is closed and the cash is receivedd@dvance provided to a claimant,
revenue is recognized based upon the contractagied upon interest rate, and, if applicable,stdfufor any changes due to a settled amou
and fees charged to the claimant.

The funding of matrimonial actions is on a non-tgse basis. Revenue from matrimonial actions isgeized under the cost recovery
method.

CBC purchases periodic payments under structurtdérsents and annuity policies from individualseixchange for a lump sum paym:
The Company elected to carry structured settlenwrfer value. Unearned income on structuredesatthts is recognized as interest income
using the effective interest method over the lif¢he related settlement. Changes in fair valua@cerded in unrealized gain (loss) in
structured settlements in our statements of income.

The Company recognizes revenue for GAR Disabilithivécates when cases close and fees are collected.

Impairments and accretable yield adjustments

The Company accounts for its impairments in acamdavith ASC 310, which provides guidance on howdoount for differences
between contractual and expected cash flows fromastor’s initial investment in loans or debtseties acquired in a transfer if those
differences are attributable, at least in partreglit quality.
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N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[7] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjgeld adjustments: (Continued)

Increases in expected cash flows are recognizesppobively through an adjustment of the interntd o return while decreases in expected
cash flows are recognized as impairments. Impaitsnefinapproximately $19.5 million were recordedha fiscal year ended September 30,
2014. An impairment of approximately $11.0 millias recorded in the fiscal year ended Septembe2@®(@B and approximately $1.8 million
was recorded in fiscal year 2012. Finance incormoigecognized on cost recovery method portfaliosl the cost of the portfolio is fully
recovered. Collection projections are performedboth interest method and cost recovery method @artf. With regard to the cost recovery
portfolios, if collection projections indicate tbarrying value will not be recovered, an impairmisrequired. As the Company switched to the
cost recovery method on its current inventory ofstoner receivable portfolios, there were no acbtetgield adjustments recorded in the fi
year ended September 30, 2014. Accretable adjussmeme $0.6 million in fiscal year 2013 and notenil in fiscal year 201:

The recognition of income under ASC 310 is depehderthe Company having the ability to develop oeable expectations of both the
timing and amount of cash flows to be collectedhim event the Company cannot develop a reasopapketation as to both the timing and
amount of cash flows expected to be collected, B%Cpermits the change to the cost recovery mefhioel Company will recognize income
only after it has recovered its carrying value,

The Company’s analysis of the timing and amourtash flows to be generated by its portfolio purelsaand investments are based on
the following attributes:

 the type of receivable, the location of the deltwd the number of collection agencies previoudbnapting to collect the receivables
in the portfolio. The Company has found that thenebetter states to try to collect receivablestatedCompany factors in both better
and worse states when establishing their initiahdéow expectations

» the average balance of the receivables influengeamalysis in that lower average balance portfaiend to be more collectible in the
short-term and higher average balance portfoliesyare appropriate for the Company’s lawsuit sgpatend thus yield better results
over the longer term. As the Company has signifieaperience with both types of balances, it catofathese variables into its initial
expected cash flow:

 the age of the receivables, the number of day® siharge-off, any payments since charge-off, aadtadit guidelines of the credit
originator also represent factors taken into caersition in our estimation process. For examplesroldceivables might be more
difficult and/or require more time and effort tdleat;

» past history and performance of similar assetsisagjuAs the Company purchases portfolios of ligeads, it accumulates a significant
historical data base on the tendencies of debpayreents and factor this into its initial expectash flows

» the Compan’s ability to analyze accounts and resell accourasreet its criterie

 jobs or property of the customers found within fudivs. With our business model, this is of parkisuimportance. Customers wi
jobs or property are more likely to repay theirigation through the lawsuit strategy and, conversaistomers without jobs
property are less likely to repay their obligatidihe Company believes that customers with jobgopgrty are more likely to repay
because courts have mandated the debtor must palebt. Ultimately, the debtor with property willypto clear title o
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N oTE A — T HE C OMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING P oLICIES (C ONTINUED )
[7] Income recognition, Impairments and Accretabjgeld adjustments: (Continued)

release a lien. The Company also believes that thestomers generally might take longer to repalythat is factored into its initial
expected cash flows; ai

» credit standards of the issu

The Company acquires accounts that have experiatatedoration of credit quality between originatiand the date of its acquisition of
the accounts. The amount invested in a portfoliaamounts reflects our determination that it ishatde we will be unable to collect all amot
due according to the portfolio of accounts’ contwatterms. The Company considers the expected @atgnand estimates the amount and
timing of undiscounted expected principal, interasd other cash flows for each acquired portfotiopted with expected cash flows from
accounts available for sale. The excess of thisuataver the cost of the portfolio, representing ¢ixcess of the accounts’ cash flows expecte
to be collected over the amount paid, is accreteglincome recognized on finance receivables adeduior on the interest method over the
expected remaining life of the portfolio.

The Company believes it has significant experien@equiring certain distressed consumer receivpbidolios at a significant discount
to the amount actually owed by underlying customé&ne Company invests in these portfolios onlyrdfteth qualitative and quantitative
analyses of the underlying receivables are perfdramel a calculated purchase price is paid sothalieves its estimated cash flow offers an
adequate return on acquisition costs after senyiexpenses. Additionally, when considering largatfplio purchases of accounts, or portfo
from issuers with whom the Company has limited eigpee, it has the added benefit of solicitingtfiisd party collection agencies and
attorneys for their input on liquidation rates aatitimes, incorporates such input into the es@s#tuses for its expected cash flows.

[8] Commissions and fees:

Commissions and fees are the contractual commisgiamed by third party collection agencies armataglys, and direct costs associatec
with the collection effort- generally court costhie Company expects to continue to purchase pm$faind utilize third party collection
agencies and attorney networks.

[9] Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost. Deplieni#s provided using the straight-line methodroe estimated useful lives of the
assets (5 to 7 years). Amortization on leasehofatéwvements is provided by the straight line-metbbthe remaining life of the respective
lease. An accelerated depreciation method is ume@x purposes.

[10] Income taxes:

Deferred federal and state taxes arise from (dgaition of finance income collected for tax purpssbut not yet recognized for financial
reporting; (ii) provision for impairments/creditdses, all resulting in timing differences betweiaaricial accounting and tax reporting;
iii) amortization of leasehold improvements resigtin timing differences between financial accongtand tax reporting; iv) stock based
compensation; and v) partnership investments.
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[11] Net income per share:

Basic per share data is determined by dividingneme by the weighted average shares outstandiniggdthe period. Diluted per share
data is computed by dividing net income by the W&id average shares outstanding, assuming alivéilpbtential common shares were
issued. The assumed proceeds from the exercistut¥e options are calculated using the treastogls method based on the average market
price for the period.

The following table presents the computation ofidasd diluted per share data for the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2014, 2013 and
2012:

2013 2012
2014 (As Revised) (As Revised )
Weighted Per Weighted Per Weighted Per
Net Average Share Net Average Share Net Average Share
Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount
Basic $5,901,000 12,981,07 $ 0.4t $2,009,000 12,952,15 $0.1€ $9,928,000 14,077,655 $0.71
Dilutive effect of stock
options 22485  0.0C 263,90.  (0.0]) 243,73.  (0.02)
Diluted $5,901,000 13,205,93 $ 0.4t $2,009,000 13,216,05 $ 0.1t $9,928,000 14,321,38 $ 0.6¢

At September 30, 2014, 960,559 options at a weiljaterage exercise price of $12.12 were not includé¢he diluted earnings per share
calculation as they were anti-dilutive. At SeptemB@, 2013, 606,332 options at a weighted averagecese price of $8.01 were not included
in the diluted earnings per share calculation ag there anti-dilutive. At September 30, 2012, 1,396 options at a weighted average exercis
price of $12.23 were not included in the dilutedh@zgs per share calculation as they were anttidéu

[12] Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assasfiiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstalements and the reported amounts of revenukesxaenses during the reporting period. With
respect to income recognition the Company takesdonsideration the relative credit quality of threderlying receivables constituting the
portfolio acquired, the strategy involved to maximthe collections thereof, the time required tplement the collection strategy as well as
other factors to estimate the anticipated cashdld¥etual results could differ from those estimatetuding management’s estimates of future
cash flows and the resultant allocation of colletsi between principal and interest resulting tmeref Downward revisions to estimated cash
flows will result in impairments.

[13] Stock-based compensation:

The Company accounts for stock-based employee amsagien under FASB ASC 718ompensation — Stock Compensati¢ihSC
718"). ASC 718 requires that compensation expeasedated with stock options and vesting of reiidstock awards be recognized in the
statement of income.

[14] Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2014, the FASB issued an update to ASC 8Réyenue from Contracts with Customers,” that wilpersede virtually all existing
revenue guidance. Under this update, an entitygaired to recognize revenue upon transfer of pgechgoods or services to customers, in an
amount that reflects the entitled consideratiorirg in exchange for those goods or services. gliance also requires additional disclosure
about the
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[14] Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standar@ontinued):

nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revean@ cash flows arising from the customer contradtss update is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 20i@uding interim periods within that reportingnod. Early application is not permitted.
We are currently evaluating the impact this upddtehave on our consolidated financial statemexgsvell as the expected adoption method.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-11, “Trassd@d Servicing (Topic 860): Repurchase-to-Majuriansactions, Repurchase
Financings, and Disclosures.” The amendments ;1ABU require two accounting changes. First, theraments in this ASU change the
accounting for repurchase-to maturity transactiorsecured borrowing accounting. Second, for rdmse financing arrangements, the
amendments require separate accounting for a &naosh financial asset executed contemporaneavitiiya repurchase agreement with the
same counterparty, which will result in securedrtming accounting for the repurchase agreemens ABU also includes new disclosure
requirements. The accounting changes in this Upatateffective for public business entities for fingt interim or annual period beginning
after December 15, 2014. An entity is requiredrespnt changes in accounting for transactionsandsig on the effective date as a
cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnirgyefahe beginning of the period of adoption. Earépplication for a public business entity is
prohibited. The Company reviewed this ASU and aeteed that it did not have a material impact orcdasolidated financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, ‘€atidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the ConsdiaaAnalysis,” which
amends the consolidation requirements in ASC 8hs @ipdate is effective for public business erdifigr the first interim or annual period
beginning after December 15, 2015. We are currepthiewing this ASU to determine if it will have @npact on our consolidated financial
statements.

[15] Reclassifications:

Certain items in the years ended September 30, 20d2012 in the consolidated financial statemeat® been reclassified to conform

to the current year’s presentation, primarily retbto certain balance sheet and statement of indems.
N OTE B — A VAILABLE - FOR -SALE | NVESTMENTS
Mutual funds investments classified as availablesfde at September 30, 2014 and 2013 consisedbtlowing:

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
2014 $66,559,00 $411,00( $ (171,000 $66,799,00
2013 $59,151,00 $ 27,00( $(1,143,00i) $58,035,00

The available-for-sale investments did not have@mtractual maturities. The Company sold five staeents during the year ended
September 30, 2014, with an aggregate realizedlod$43,000. Additionally, the Company receive@&DO00 in capital gains distributions
during fiscal year 2014. The Company sold four streents in fiscal year 2013, resulting in an aggregealized loss of approximately
$252,000. The realized gains and losses are &lidad as part of other income.

At September 30, 2014, there were six investméois,of which were in an unrealized loss positidbhree of the four investments had
unrealized losses existing for more than 12 moatttsone of the four for 12 months
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or less. However, the Company was in an aggregatsalized gain position, as the unrealized gaithefremaining two investments more than
offset the unrealized loss of the four investmeAtsSeptember 30, 2013, there were six investmdintspf which were in an unrealized loss
position. All of these securities were consideebté acceptable credit risks. Based on the evaluafithe available evidence at that time,
including changes in market rates and credit ratifgrmation, management believed that any dedfirfair value for these instruments would
be temporary. In addition, management had thetailit did not believe it would be required to gbthse investment securities for a period of
time sufficient to allow for an anticipated recoyer maturity. Should the impairment of any of tac®curities become other than temporary,
the cost basis of the investment will be reducetithe resulting loss recognized in net income éghriod in which the other-than-temporary
impairment were identified.

Unrealized holding gains and losses on availahbieséibe securities are included in other comprelvenisicome within stockholders’
equity. Realized gains (losses) on available-fée-sacurities are included in other income and,mdigplicable, are reported as a
reclassification adjustment in other comprehensigceme.

N oTE C — C ONSUMER R ECEIVABLES A CQUIRED F OR L IQUIDATION

Accounts acquired for liquidation are stated airthet estimated realizable value and consist pilgnaf defaulted consumer loans to
individuals primarily throughout the United States.

The Company may account for its investments in eores receivable portfolios, using either:
* the interest method; «
 the cost recovery metha

Prior to October 1, 2013 the Company accounteddaiain of its investments in finance receivablsisg the interest method in
accordance with the guidance of ASC 310-30. Underguidance of ASC 310-30, static pools of accoargsestablished. These pools are
aggregated based on certain common risk critedah Btatic pool is recorded at cost and is accduioteas a single unit for the recognition of
income, principal payments and loss provision. &fée October 1, 2013, due to the substantial redinof portfolios reported under the
interest method, and the ability to reasonablymest2 cash collections required to account for tipasdolios under the interest method, the
Company concluded the cost recovery method ispipeopriate accounting method in the circumstances.

Although the Company has switched to the cost regomethod on its current inventory of portfolidlse Company must still analyze a
portfolio upon acquisition and once a static psatstablished for a quarter, individual receivaueounts are not added to the pool (unless
replaced by the seller) or removed from the ponlgss sold or returned to the seller). Under ther@st method , ASC 310-30 requires that the
excess of the contractual cash flows over expesasHt flows not be recognized as an adjustmentvefiee or expense or on the balance shee
ASC 31030 initially freezes the internal rate of returefarred to as IRR, estimated when the account$vedale are purchased, as the basis
subsequent impairment testing. Significant increasectual or expected future cash flows may begrized prospectively through an upw
adjustment of the IRR over a portfolio’s remainlifg. Any increase to the IRR then becomes the hemchmark for impairment testing.
Rather than lowering the estimated IRR if the el estimates are not received or projected teebeived, the carrying value of a pool
would be impaired, or written down to maintain then current IRR. Under the interest method, inc@éswecognized on the effective yield
method based on the actual cash collected dunpegiad and future estimated cash flows and timinguch collections and the portfolgotost
Material variations of cash flow estimates are rded in the quarter such variations are determimbd.estimated future cash flows are
reevaluated quarterly.
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Once a static pool is established for a quarteliyidual receivable accounts are not added to tod unless replaced by the seller) or
removed from the pool (unless sold or returnedhéosteller). ASC 310 requires that the excess ofdnéractual cash flows over expected cash
flows not be recognized as an adjustment of reven@xpense or on the balance sheet. ASC 310lipitiaezes the internal rate of return,
referred to as IRR, estimated when the accountsvalole are purchased, as the basis for subsemppairment testing. Significant increase:
actual or expected future cash flows may be reeeghprospectively through an upward adjustmenh®@fiRR over a portfoli® remaining life
Any increase to the IRR then becomes the new beadhfar impairment testing. Rather than lowering #stimated IRR if the collection
estimates are not received or projected to bevedgthe carrying value of a pool would be impaim@dwritten down to maintain the then
current IRR. Under the interest method, incomedognized on the effective yield method based eratttual cash collected during a period
and futureestimated cash flows and timing of sualections and the portfolio’s cost. Material vaigas of cash flow estimates are recorded ir
the quarter such variations are determined. Thmatd future cash flows are reevaluated quarterly.

The Company uses the cost recovery method wheectiolhs on a particular pool of accounts cannaebsonably predicted. Under the
cost recovery method, no income is recognized theilcost of the portfolio has been fully recovergool can become fully amortized (zero
carrying balance on the balance sheet) whilegitierating cash collections. In this case, all cadlections are recognized as revenue when
received.

The Company’s extensive liquidating experiencea ithe field of distressed credit card receivaldielgcommunication receivables,
consumer loan receivables, retail installment @, consumer receivables, and auto deficien@ivalbles.

The Company aggregates portfolios of receivablgsiaed sharing specific common characteristics Whiere acquired within a given
quarter. The Company considers for aggregatiorfgim$ of accounts, purchased within the same figoarter, that generally meet the
following characteristics:

» Same issuer/originatc

» Same underlying credit qualit

 similar geographic distribution of the accour

 similar age of the receivable; a

» Same type of asset class (credit cards, teleconuation, etc.)

The Company uses a variety of qualitative and qtaive factors to estimate collections and thangpthereof. This analysis includes
following variables:

» the number of collection agencies previously attiémgpto collect the receivables in the portfol

» the average balance of the receivables, as highandes might be more difficult to collect whileMdalances might not be cost
effective to collect

» the age of the receivables, as older receivablghtrbie more difficult to collect or might be lesssteffective. On the other hand, the
passage of time, in certain circumstances, mightlrén higher collections due to changing life etgeof some individual custome

 past history of performance of similar ass
 time since charc-off;
* payments made since chg-off;
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« the credit originator and its credit guidelin

» the Compan’s ability to analyze accounts and resell accounasrheet our criteria for resa

the locations of the customers, as there are tattiggs to attempt to collect in and ultimately @mmpany has better predictability of
the liquidations and the expected cash flows. Cmalg, there are also states where the liquidatites are not as favorable and that i
factored into our cash flow analys

jobs or property of the customers found within fiios. In the Compar’s business model, this is of particular importari@estomers
with jobs or property are more likely to repay thabligation and conversely, customers without jobproperty are less likely to reg

their obligation; anc
« the ability to obtain timely customer statementsrfrthe original issue

The Company obtains and utilizes, as appropriafaitj including but not limited to monthly collemti projections and liquidation rates,
from third party collection agencies and attornegsfurther evidentiary matter, to assist in evéhgeand developing collection strategies and

in evaluating and modeling the expected cash fli@mva given portfolio.

The following tables summarize the changes in @ilarite sheet account of consumer receivables acfair liquidation during the

following periods

For the Year Ended September 30, 201

Cost
Interest Recovery
Method Method Total
Balance, beginning of period $ 8,071,00! $ 49,829,00 $ 57,900,00
Balance transferred to cost recov— prior period adjustmer (1,304,001 1,304,001 —
Adjustment for misapplication of the interest methio prior
periods 6,354,00! — 6,354,00!
Balance beginning of period, as reste 13,121,00 51,133,000 64,254,00
Reclassification of interest method portfolios tsicrecovery
method (13,121,00) 13,121,00 —
Acquisition of receivable portfolic — 5,078,001 5,078,001
Net cash collections from collection of consumeereables
acquired for liquidatior — (40,048,00) (40,048,00)
Net cash collections represented by account sélesnsumel
receivables acquired for liquidatit — (114,000 (114,000
Impairment — (19,591,00) (19,591,00)
Finance income recogniz — 19,865,00 19,865,00
Balance, end of peric $ — $ 29,444,00 $ 29,444,00
Finance income as a percentage of collect 0% 49.5% 49.5%
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For the Year Ended September 30, 201

(As Revised)
Cost
Interest Recovery
Method Method Total
Balance, beginning of period $ 12,326,00 $ 74,561,000 $ 86,887,00
Balance transferred to cost recov— prior period adjustmer (2,692,000 2,692,001 —
Adjustment for misapplication of the interest methio prior
periods 5,852,001 1,500,001 7,352,001
Balance beginning of period, as revis 15,486,00 78,753,00 94,239,00
Acquisition of receivable portfolia — 3,340,001 3,340,001
Net cash collections from collection of consumeereables
acquired for liquidatior (27,860,00) (23,790,00) (51,650,00)
Net cash collections represented by account sélesnsumel
receivables acquired for liquidatis (979,001 (1,468,00i) (2,447,001
Impairment (840,00() (10,150,00) (10,990,00)
Finance income recognized| 27,314,00 4,448,001 31,762,00
Balance, end of peric $13,121,00 $ 51,133,00 $ 64,254,00
Finance income as a percentage of collect 94.71% 17.€% 58.71%

(1) Includes $25.7 million derived from fully amortizedrtfolios. Finance income recognized from accaahés amounted to $1.8 millic

Accretable yield represents the amount of inconreedbmpany can expect to generate over the remaamragtizable life of its existing
portfolios based on estimated future net cash flasvef September 30, 2014. The Company adjustscitretable yield upward when it
believes, based on available evidence, that partéalllections will exceed amounts previously estied. There were no accretable yield
adjustments in fiscal years 2014 and 2013. As thmg@any transferred the then remaining $5.5 milbbmterest method portfolios to the cost
recovery method, there is no remaining projectenleaable finance income. The accretable yield sglesdor the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Year Ended
September 30
2014
Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2013 $ 7,679,00i
Transfer to cost recove (7,679,000
Balance at end of period, September 30, 2 $ 0
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Year Ended
September 30,
2013
Balance at beginning of period, October 1, 2012 $ 13,508,00
Income recognized on finance receivables, (27,314,00)
Reclassifications from n-accretable difference(: 21,485,00
Balance at end of period, September 30, z $ 7,679,00

(1) Includes portfolios that became zero basedhdutie period, removal of zero basis portfoliosrfrine accretable yield calculation and,
other immaterial impairments and accretions baseithe extension of certain collection curv

During the year ended September 30, 2014, the Coynparchased $478.9 million in face value receigaldt a cost of $5.1 million.
During the year ended September 30, 2013, the Coynparchased $53.5 million in face value receivalalecost of $3.3 million.

The following table summarizes collections receibgdhe Company’s third-party collection agencied attorneys, less commissions
and direct costs for the years ended Septembe&03@, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

For the Years Ended September 3(

2014 2013 2012

Gross collections(1) $67,913,00 $85,512,00 $108,487,00
Less: commissions and fees 27,751,00 31,415,00 38,468,00
Net collections $40,162,00 $54,097,00 $ 70,019,00

(1) Gross collections include collections from thparty collection agencies and attorneys, colbastifrom in-house efforts and collections
represented by account sal

(2) Commissions and fees are the contractual cosimnis earned by third party collection agenciesatatneys, and direct costs associated
with the collection effort, generally court codtscludes a 3% fee charged by a servicer on grdésctions in connection with the Portfol
Purchase. Such arrangement was consummated in Dec@007. The fee is charged for asset locatidp,tskcing and ultimately suing
debtors in connection with this portfolio purche

Finance income recognized on net collections remtes! by account sales was $0.1 million, $1.8 emliind $0.1 million for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2014, 2013 and 201 2ctasly.

N oTeE D — A cquisiTioN oF CBC (A SR EVISED )

On December 31, 2013, the Company acquired 80% mivipeof CBC and its affiliate, CBC Management $egs, LLC, for
approximately $5.9 million. In addition, the Compawill provide financing to CBC of up to $5 millioThe 20% non-controlling interests are
held by two of the original owners of CBC. The faue of non-controlling interests at the acqigsitdate was determined to be immaterial.
The non-controlling interests will not be entitledany distributions from CBC until the Companye®es distributions of $2,337,190. The
non-controlling interests are entitled to two of five seats of CBC’s Board of Managers and hageitiht to approve certain material
transactions of CBC. The non-controlling intereshers are employed by CBC. If the
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employment is terminated, other than for cause, €8@d be required to purchase their membershgrést in CBC. If the employment is
terminated for any other reason, CBC has the tmpurchase their nooentrolling interests. The purchase price wouldlegrmined by a thi
party appraiser and is payable over a period of tifine fair value of the put right was determinetd¢ $0 at December 31, 2013. No re-
measurement is required at September 30, 2014sasdt probable that the put option will becomeemable. The acquisition provides the
Company with the opportunity to further diversifg portfolio.

CBC purchases periodic structured settlements andity policies from individuals in exchange foluanp sum payment. The Company
accounted for this purchase in accordance with AS@lc 805 “Business CombinationdJnder this guidance, an entity is required to redine
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed ancotimgideration given at their fair value on thewasitjon date. The following table summarizes
the fair value of the assets acquired and theliligisiassumed as of the December 31, 2013 acipuisiate:

Cash $ 351,00¢
Structured settlemen 30,436,00
Other asset 11,00(
Other liabilities (356,000
Other debt (see Note J: Other debt — CBC (includiog-recourse notes payable amounting to $13.8

million) (25,863,00)
Total identifiable net assets acquil 4,579,00
Goodwill (see Note H: Goodwil 1,360,00!
Purchase Pric $ 5,939,00

As the transaction was consummated on Decemb&03B, there were no actual operational resultswieag¢ attributable to the Compe
in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 and thenparable period of fiscal years 2013 and 2012.|Tetenues, as reported, for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2014, were $32,207,000. On faypna basis, total revenues for the fiscal yealeel September 30, 2014 would have
been $33,842,000. Net income attributable to Asireding, Inc., as reported, for the fiscal year en8eptember 30, 2014, was $5,901,000. Oi
a pro forma basis, net income attributable to Astading, Inc. for the fiscal year ended SeptemiBe2814 would have been $5,943,000. T
revenues, as reported, for the fiscal years endpteSiber 30, 2013 and 2012, were $38,200,000 a2d53,000, respectively. On a pro forma
basis, total revenues for the same prior year geneuld have been $42,544,000 and $47,098,008sctgely. Net income attributable to
Asta Funding, Inc., as reported, for the fiscalrgeanded September 30, 2013 and 2012 was $2,008@0$9,928,000, respectively. On a pro
forma basis, net income attributable to Asta Fuggdinc. would have been $2,378,000 and $11,114@8pectively, for the same prior year
period. The Company, through CBC, earned $5.2anilln settlement income during the fiscal year éneptember 30, 2014. The Company
had a net invested balance of $42.1 million incttred settlements as of September 30, 2014. Hultseof CBC yielded income attributable
non-controlling interest of $70,000 for the ninentioperiod ended September 30, 2014, the periathich CBC was part of the results of the
Company.

N OTE E — STRUCTURED S ETTLEMENTS

CBC purchases periodic payments under structurtdéraents and annuity policies from individualseixchange for a lump sum paym:
The Company elected to carry the structured sedtfésnat fair value. Unearned income on structuegitbsnents is recognized as interest
income using the effective interest method ovelliteeof the related structured settlement. Changdair value are recorded in unrealized gair
(loss) on structured settlements in the Compartgtesents of income.
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Structured settlements consist of the following@BSeptember 30, 2014:

Maturity value $ 64,852,000
Unearned incom (22,773,00)
Net carrying valut $ 42,079,00

Encumbrances on structured settlements as of Sbpte3f, 2014 are:

Notes payable secured by settlement receivabldspsiiticipal and interest outstanding payable uhiiie 202

2) $ 2,521,00
Notes payable secured by settlement receivabldspsiiicipal and interest outstanding payable uuigust

2026(1) 5,363,001
Notes payable secured by settlement receivabldspaiiticipal and interest outstanding payable ugilil 2032

@ 4,828,00!
$22,000,000 revolving line of credit( 19,583,00
Encumbered structured settleme 32,295,00
Structured settlements not encumbe 9,784,00I
Total structured settlemer $42,079,00

(1) See Note — Other Deb— CBC
At September 30, 2014, the expected cash flowsruétsired settlements based on maturity value sfelbpws:

September 30, 201 $ 4,703,00!
September 30, 201 4,989,001
September 30, 201 4,688,001
September 30, 201 3,835,001
September 30, 201 3,956,001
Thereafte! 42,681,00
Total $64,852,00

N oTE F — O THER | NVESTMENTS
Personal Injury Claims

On December 28, 2011, the Company entered intmayenture with Pegasus Legal Funding, LLC (“PLKi'the operating subsidiary
Pegasus. Pegasus purchases interests in claimgl@omants who are a party to personal injury ditign. Pegasus advances, to each claimant
funds, on a non-recourse basis at an agreed upeneshrate, in anticipation of a future settlem@ie interest in each claim purchased by
Pegasus consists of the right to receive, from staimant, part of the proceeds or recoveries whigth claimant receives by reason of a
settlement, judgment or award with respect to sl@imant’s claims. The Company, through Pegasusgdas7.1 million in interest and fees
during fiscal year 2014 compared to $6.4 million &1.6 during fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respelgtidhe Company had a net invested
balance in personal injury
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Personal Injury Claims (Continued)

claims of $32.4 million and $35.8 million on Septen 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The resulBegfasus yielded income attributable to
non-controlling interest of $458,000 for the yeaded September 30, 2014 compared to $406,000 an@kBfor the years ended

September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Pegasasds reserves for bad debts, which, at SepteBthe?014, amounted to $2.5 million, as
follows:

Year Ended
September 30
2014
Balance at beginning of period $ 2,248,00!
Provisions for losse 1,707,001
Write offs (1,481,001
Balance at end of peric $ 2,474,000

Matrimonial Claims

On May 18, 2012, the Company formed BP Case ManaggrhLC (“BPCM”), a joint venture with Californiased Balance Point
Divorce Funding, LLC (“BP Divorce Funding”). BPCMgvides non-recourse funding to a spouse in a matrial action. The Company
provided a $1.0 million revolving line of credit partially fund BPCM'’s operations, with such loaeahbing interest at the prevailing prime rate,
with an initial term of twenty-four months. In Septber 2014, the agreement was revised to extertdrimeof the loan to August 2016,
increase the credit line to $1.5 million and indwdpersonal guarantee of the principal of BP @igdfunding. The loan balance at
September 30, 2014 was approximately $1.5 millidre revolving line of credit is collateralized by Bivorce Funding’s profits share in
BPCM and other assets. As of September 30, 20&4;dmpany’s investment in cases through BPCM wpsoapmately $2.4 million. The
Company recognized no income during fiscal yeadi2@impared to $34,000 and $165,000 during fiscatg/2013 and 2012, respectively.

N oTE G — F URNITURE AND E QUIPMENT
Furniture and equipment as of September 30, 20d£26am3 consist of the following:

2014 2013

Furniture $ 323,00( $ 310,00(
Equipment 3,622,001 3,622,001
Software 1,211,001 1,211,001
Leasehold improvemen 99,00( 99,00(
5,255,001 5,242,001

Less accumulated depreciati 4,499,001 4,136,001
$ 756,00( $1,106,00!

Depreciation expense for the years ended Septedth@014, 2013 and 2012 aggregated $363,000, $2@ayad $380,000, respectively.
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N oTE H — G oobpwiLL

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase pfian acquired business over the fair value aflarts assigned to assets acquired ar
liabilities assumed. Goodwill is reviewed for impaént if events or circumstances indicate that inmpant may be present. Any excess in
carrying value over the estimated fair value i®rded as impairment loss and charged to resultpefations in the period such determination
is made. For each of the fiscal years ended Septefth 2014 and 2013, management has determinethéra was no impairment loss
required to be recognized in the carrying valugaddwill.

The goodwill balances at September 30, 2014 an8 a4 as follows:

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of period $1,410,00 $1,410,00
Goodwill from acquisition (see Note D: AcquisitiohCBC) 1,360,00! —
Balance at end of peric $2,770,00 $1,410,00!

N oTe | — N ON-R ECOURSED EBT
Non-Recourse Debt — Bank of Montreal (“BMO”)

In March 2007, Palisades XVI borrowed approxima&227 million under the Receivables Financing Agreet (“RFA”"),as amended i
July 2007, December 2007, May 2008, February 20@8ber 2010 and August 2013 from BMO, in ordefiriance a $300 million portfolio
purchase in March 2007 (the “Portfolio Purchas&he original term of the agreement was three y&dris. term was extended by each of the
Second, Third, Fourth and Fifth Amendments anchtbst recent agreement signed in August 2013.

On August 7, 2013, Palisades XVI, a 100% owned hgptky remote subsidiary, entered into a SettlerAgméement and Omnibus
Amendment (the “Settlement Agreement”) with BMOaaisamendment to the RFA. In consideration for ar@ilbon prepayment funded by
the Company, BMO agreed to significantly reduceimiim monthly collection requirements and the irgérate. If and when BMO receives
the next $15 million of collections from the PotifoPurchase or from voluntary prepayments by Astading, Inc., less certain credits for
payments made prior to the consummation of thdebedint Agreement (the “Remaining Amount”), Palisa¥&| and its affiliates would be
automatically released from liability in connectiaith the RFA (subject to customary exceptionsiofdition to the release was Palisade
XVI's agreement to grant BMO, as of the time of fsyment of the Remaining Amount, the right to ree&0% of net collections from the
Portfolio Purchase once Palisades XVI has recefiged future net collections, the sum of $15 milliplus voluntary prepayments included in
the payment of the Remaining Amount (the “Inconterest”). The Company estimated the Income Intdcelke between $0 and $1.4 million.
However, the Company believes that no amount wbalthcurred because of the continued deterioratiaollections from the Portfolio
Purchase.

On June 3, 2014, Palisades XVI paid the Remainimgpént. The final principal payment of $2,901,198liled a voluntary prepayment
of $1,866,036 provided from funds of the Compangcdrdingly, Palisades XVI will be entitled to reeei$16.9 million of future collections
from the Portfolio Purchase before BMO is entitledeceive any payments with respect to its Inctmerest.

With the payment of the Remaining Amount and upemletion of the documents granting the PalisadéklXcome Interest, including
a written confirmation from BMO that the obligatibas been paid in full, Palisades XVI has beerasgld from further debt obligations from
the RFA. The Company has recorded as other inctmgyeness of non-recourse debt, in the amouappfoximately $26.1 million, pre-tax
in the third quarter of fiscal year 2014.
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N oTE | — N oN-R ECOURSED EBT (C ONTINUED )
Bank Hapoalim B.M. (“Bank Hapoalim”) Line of Credit

On May 2, 2014, the Company obtained a $20 millioa of credit facility from Bank Hapoalim, pursuan a Loan Agreement (the
“Loan Agreement”) among the Company and its subsjdiPalisades Collection, LLC, as borrowers (‘Buogrowers”), and Bank Hapoalim, as
agent and lender. The Loan Agreement provides 2080 million committed line of credit and an aation feature providing an increase in
the line of credit of up to $30 million, at the clistion of the lenders. The facility is for a teofithree years at an interest rate of either LIBOR
plus 275 basis points or prime, at the Companyt®opThe Loan Agreement includes covenants thgaiire the Company to maintain a
minimum net worth of $150 million and pay an unubed fee. The facility is secured pursuant to ausiey Agreement (“Security Agreemeit”
among the parties to the Loan Agreement, with ptgpe the Borrowers serving as collateral. Throtigé period ended September 30, 2014,
the Company did not use this facility.

N oTe J — O THER D EBT— CBC

The Company assumed $25.9 million of debt relatettié CBC acquisition (see Note D — AcquisitiorGBC) on December 31, 2013.
On the same date, the Company paid down $2.5 mitifdhe debt. On March 27, 2014, CBC entered tiioSixth Amendment whereby it
increased its revolving line of credit from $12.8lion to $15.0 million, the interest rate floor waeduced from 5.5% to 4.75% and the
commitment was extended to February 28, 2015. Tiendment also included changes in carrier condénreatios and removal of the
personal guarantees of the general managers anrcontrolling interest partners. On July 15, 201B8QCentered into the Seventh Amendment
extending the revolving line of credit to $20 nahi. On September 29, 2014, CBC entered into thetEigmendment, further extending the
credit line to $22 million. The expiration date raims at February 28, 2015. As of September 30, ,20@4debt amounted to $32.3 million,
which consists of a $19.6 million drawdown fromireelof credit ($2.4 million available) from an iitational source and $12.7 million notes
issued by entities 100%-owned and consolidated®Bg.Ohese entities are bankruptcy-remote entitieated to issue notes secured by
structured settlements. On November 26, 2014, GB®@@anced completion of its fourth private placemént March 11, 2015, CBC entered
into the Ninth Amendment, extending the maturityedand the revolving line of credit maximum revelaenount (see Note V — Subsequent
Events for additional information). The followingltle details the other debt at September 30, 2014:

Interest Rate Balance

Notes payable with varying monthly installmer
Notes payable secured by settlement receivabldspaiiicipal and interest outstandi

payable until June 20z 8.7% $ 2,521,001
Notes payable secured by settlement receivabldspaiticipal and interest outstandi

payable until August 202 7.25% 5,363,001
Notes payable secured by settlement receivabldspsiiicipal and interest outstandi

payable until April 203: 7.12"% 4,828,001
Subtotal notes payab 12,712,00
$25,000,000 revolving line of credit expiring on iMda 1, 2017 4.7% 19,583,00
Total debt— CBC $32,295,00
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N oTE K — O THER L IABILITIES
Other liabilities as of September 30, 2014 and 2&&3as follows:

2014 2013
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $3,126,00! $2,274,00
Other 461,00( 212,00(

Total other liabilities $3,587,00! $2,486,00!

N oTe L — | NCOME T AXES

The components of the provision for income taxegte years ended September 30, 2014, 2013 andat@1s follows:
2013 2012
2014 (As Revised (As Revised)
Current:

Federa $ 4,148,001 $561,00( $3,437,00
Federal true u 18,00( — 42,00(
4,166,00! 561,00( 3,479,001

Deferred:
Federa (1,620,001 212,00t 1,738,001
State 2,067,001 121,00( 1,580,001
447,00( 333,00t 3,318,001
Provision for income taxe $ 4,613,001 $ 894,00( $6,797,00

The difference between the statutory federal inctareate on the Company'’s pre-tax income and traany’s effective income tax

rate is summarized for the years ended Septemh&03d@d, 2013 and 2012 as follows:

2013
2014 (As Revised
Statutory federal income tax rate 34.(% 34.(%
State income tax, net of federal ben 4.5 6.1
State tax rate chany 8.4 —
Permanent difference in municipal inter 3.3 (7.5
Permanent difference oth 0.2 (0.7)
Federal prior year provision to return differel 0.2 (2.2)
Other 22 (2.8)
Effective income tax rat A41.8% 27.(%
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The Company recognized a net deferred tax as$8,386,000 and $7,772,000 as of September 30, 20d 2013, respectively. The
components are as follows:

September 30 September 30
2014 2013

Deferred and accrued revenue $ 7,00( $ (414,000
Impairments/bad debt reserves/Prior period adjusts 915,00( 2,570,001
State tax net operating loss carryforw 9,958,001 9,524,001
Stock based compensati 2,814,00i 2,133,001
Unrealized gain on structured settleme (930,001 —
Depreciation, amortization and ott (249,000 (312,000
Deferred income taxe 12,515,00 13,501,00
Deferred tax valuation allowan: (5,729,000 (5,729,00i)
Deferred income taxe $ 6,786,001 $ 7,772,001

The Company files consolidated Federal and statanie tax returns. Substantially all of the Comparsgibsidiaries are single member
limited liability companies and, therefore, do file separate tax returns. Majority and minorityr@d subsidiaries file separate partnership ta
returns. The expiration date for state net opegdtins (“NOL”") carryforwards (from September 30020 is September 30, 2029. The New
Jersey NOL carryforward balance as of Septembe2@D4 is approximately $110.6 million. There arefeeral NOL carryforwards.

The Company accounts for income taxes using thet assl liability method which requires the recoigmitof deferred tax assets and, if
applicable, deferred tax liabilities, for the exggetfuture tax consequences of temporary differehedween the carrying amounts and the tax
bases of assets and, if applicable, liabilitiesdifidnally, the Company would adjust deferred tateeseflect estimated tax rate changes, if
applicable. The Company conducts periodic evalnatio determine whether it is more likely than thait some or all of its deferred tax assets
will not be realized. Among the factors considerethis evaluation are estimates of future earnitiys future reversal of temporary differen
and the impact of tax planning strategies that areimplement if warranted. The Company is requiceprovide a valuation allowance for any
portion of our deferred tax assets that, moreyikiehn not, will not be realized at September 1,2 Based on this evaluation, the Company
has a deferred tax asset valuation allowance abappately $5.7 million as of September 30, 2014e Teferred tax valuation allowance
remained the same as that reported on Septemb26038, Although the carryforward period for statedme tax purposes is up to twenty
years, given the economic conditions, such econemironment could limit growth over a reasonabieetperiod to realize the deferred
asset. The Company determined the time period atoe for carryforward is outside a reasonable gaandorecast full realization of the
deferred tax asset, therefore recognized the defeax asset valuation allowance. The Company rmoally monitors forecast information to
ensure the valuation allowance is at the apprapxiatue. As required by FASB ASC 740, Income Taites Company recognizes the financial
statement benefit of a tax position only after dataing that the relevant tax authority would mékely than not sustain the position followi
an audit. For tax positions meeting the more-likiblgn-not threshold, the amount recognized in itentcial statements is the largest benefit
that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood ofdoeealized upon ultimate settlement with the valg tax authority. Interest and penalties
arising from uncertain tax positions will be presehas a component of income taxes. No amountgerfest or penalties were recognized in
the Company'’s consolidated financial statement2®i4 and 2013.
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N oTE L — I NcoME T AXES (C ONTINUED )

The corporate federal income tax returns of the @amy for 2008 through 2013 are subject to exanonatly the Internal Revenue
Service (“IRS”) generally for three years aftentlae filed. The state income tax returns and aitege filings of the Company are subject to
examination by the state taxing authorities, faiouss periods, generally up to four years aftey thee filed.

In April 2010, the Company received natificationrr the IRS that the Company’s federal income taxrns would be audited. The
current IRS audit period is 2008 through 2012. Huidit is currently in progress. Additional taxbliities, penalties and interest thereon when
determined could have a material impact on the Gayg financial statements.

N oTE M — C OMMITMENTS AND C ONTINGENCIES

Leases

The Company leases its facilities in (i) Englewdidfs, New Jersey, (ii) Houston, Texas, (iii) Néfork, New York and
(iv) Conshohocken, Pennsylvania. The leases anatipg leases, and the Company incurred relateiesgrense in the amounts of $617,000,
$554,000 and $413,000 during the years ended Sbpte3, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Thedéutinimum lease payments are as
follows:

Year

Ending

September 30

2015 $ 739,00(
2016 705,00(
2017 425,00(
2018 180,00(
2019 185,00(
Thereaftel 63,00(

$2,297,001

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compsairywolved in numerous legal proceedings. The gamy regularly initiates collection
lawsuits, using its network of third party law fistragainst consumers. Also, consumers occasianéiBte litigation against the Company, in
which they allege that the Company has violategiderfal or state law in the process of collectirggrtaccount. The Company does not believe
that these matters are material to its businesgiaacial condition. The Company is not involvedany material litigation in which it was a
defendant.

The Company is fully cooperating with several stgencies in connection with subpoenas seekingnve#tion and/or documentation
regarding business practices. The Company has adé mny provision with respect to these matteterfinancial statements because the
Company does not believe that they are materids tousiness and financial condition.
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N oTE N — C ONCENTRATIONS

At September 30, 2014, approximately 37% of the gamy’s portfolio face value was serviced by fivélextion organizations. The
Company has servicing agreements in place wittetfies collection organizations, as well as altled Company’s other third party collection
agencies and attorneys that cover standard contiygdees and servicing of the accounts.

N oTe O — ST1ock O PTION P LANS
2012 Stock Option and Performance Award Plan

On February 7, 2012, the Board of Directors adofitedCompany’s 2012 Stock Option and Performancardwlan (the “2012 Plan”),
which was approved by the stockholders of the Capma March 21, 2012. The 2012 Plan replaces thatf Gompensation Plan (as defined
below).

The 2012 Plan provides the Company with flexibilitith respect to equity awards by also providingdants of stock awards (i.e.,
restricted or unrestricted), stock purchase rights stock appreciation rights, in addition to thenging of stock options.

The Company authorized 2,000,000 shares of Comrtark $or issuance under the 2012 Plan. As of SelpéerB0, 2014, the Company
has granted 371,700 options and 102,321 sharesiofcted stock since inception of the 2012 Plasidifionally, 40,300 options have been
cancelled during that time period, leaving 1,566,8f@ares available as of September 30, 2014. Sepfember 30, 2014, approximately 53 of
the Company’s employees were eligible to parti@patthe 2012 Plan.

Equity Compensation Plan

On December 1, 2005, the board of directors adape€ompany’s Equity Compensation Plan (the “BgGidmpensation Plan”), which
was approved by the stockholders of the Companyanrh 1, 2006. The Equity Compensation Plan wagtgdbto supplement the Compasy’
2002 Stock Option Plan (as defined below).

In addition to permitting the grant of stock optsces are permitted under the 2002 Stock Option, FiarEquity Compensation Plan
allows the Company flexibility with respect to etyuawards by also providing for grants of stock edgd(i.e., restricted or unrestricted), stock
purchase rights and stock appreciation rights.

The Company authorized 1,000,000 shares of Comrtaok $or issuance under the Equity Compensation.Pa of March 21, 2012, no
more awards could be issued under this plan.
2002 Stock Option Plan

On March 5, 2002, the board of directors adopteddbmpany’s 2002 Stock Option Plan (the “2002 Blanhich was approved by the
Companys stockholders on May 1, 2002. The 2002 Plan waptad in order to attract and retain qualified clioes, officers and employees
and consultants to, the Company.

The 2002 Plan authorizes the granting of incergieek options (as defined in Section 422 of therimtl Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (“the “Code”)) and non-qualified stock ops to eligible employees of the Company, includiffgcers and directors of the Company
(whether or not employees) and consultants of thagany.

The Company authorized 1,000,000 shares of Comrtmrk $or issuance under the 2002 Plan. As of M&cP012, no more awards
could be issued under this plan.
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Stock Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based employee awsafien under ASC 71&ompensation — Stock CompensafigxsC 718).
ASC 718 requires that compensation expense assdaiath stock options and other stock based awagdgcognized in the income statement
rather than a disclosure in the notes to the Cogipaonsolidated financial statements.

In February 2014, the Compensation Committee oBibard of Directors of the Company (“Compensatiamtnittee”) granted 5,000
stock options to a consultant of the Company. texa@se price of these was at the market pricéhahdate. The options vested immediately.
The weighted average assumptions used in the optioimg model were as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.0€%
Expected term (year: 5.6

Expected volatility 35.2%
Dividend yield 0.0(%

In December 2013, the Compensation Committee oBtieed of Directors of the Company (“Compensatiamnittee”) granted
156,700 stock options, of which 70,000 options waewarded to the Officers of the Company and theaieimg 86,700 stock options were
awarded to nomfficer employees of the Company. The exercisegpoicthese options, issued on December 12, 2018 atvne market price
that date. The options vest in three equal anmgghliments and accounted for as one graded vestvagd. The weighted average assumption
used in the option pricing model were as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.0&%
Expected term (year: 6.5

Expected volatility 98.2%
Dividend yield 0.0(%

In June 2013, through a previous action of the Gamsption Committee of the board of directors ofGoenpany (the “Compensation
Committee”) authorizing the Chief Executive Offiadrthe Company the discretion to grant stock eptwards to non-officer employees, the
Chief Executive Officer awarded 50,000 stock opitmnon-officer employees. The exercise pricde$é options, issued on June 13, 2013,
was at the market price on that date. The optiess im three equal installments, accounted fomasgraded vesting award, starting on the firs
anniversary of the grant. The assumptions uselgemption pricing model were as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.1(%
Expected term (year: 6.2

Expected volatility 99.7%
Dividend yield 0.92%

In December 2012, the Compensation Committee guiaki®,000 stock options, of which 65,000 optionsensvarded to three officers
of the Company and 20,000 options were awarded tngloyee of the Company. The remaining 75,000eshaere issued to six non-
employee directors of the Company. The exerciseepf these options, issued on December 18, 2042 aivthe market price on that date. The
options vest in
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N oTE O — ST1ock O PTION P LANS (C ONTINUED )
Stock Based Compensation (Continued)

three equal installments, accounted for as oneegradsting award, starting on the first anniversdrhe grant. The assumptions used in the
option pricing model were as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.1€%
Expected term (year: 6.C

Expected volatility 101.(%
Dividend yield 1.67%

In addition, the Company granted 102,321 restristeates to the Chief Executive Officer of the Conmyp& he shares vest in three equal
installments, starting on the first anniversaryha grant.

In December 2011, the Compensation Committee gile868,000 stock options, of which 150,000 optioeserawarded to the Chief
Executive Officer, and 30,000 stock options wekgareled to both the Chief Financial Officer and 8emior Vice President. An aggregate of
60,000 shares were issued to five non-employeetdi®of the Company. The exercise price of thggm®mws, issued December 13, 2011, was
at the market price on that date. The weightedamesassumptions used in the option pricing modet e follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.08%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 103.9%
Dividend yield 1.02%

On December 22, 2011, the remaining 90,000 stotkmgpwere granted to selected non-officer emplsyadahe Company. The exercise

price of all stock options was at the market panehe date of the grant. The weighted averagengssons used in the option pricing model
were as follows:

Risk-free interest rat 0.0&%
Expected term (year: 10.C

Expected volatility 95.7%
Dividend yield 1.05%

The following table summarizes stock option tratisas under the plans:

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013 2012

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding options at the beginning of year 1,622,77. $11.31 1,49947. $11.27 1,294,227, $11.4]
Options grante: 161,70( 8.4¢ 210,00( 9.3¢€ 360,00( 7.87
Options cancelle (369,619 12.3: (50,000 7.7 (15,300 6.0C
Options exercise (11,600 3.4¢ (36,700 3.41 (139,500 4.3¢€
Outstanding options at the end of y 1,403,25! $10.7¢ 1,622,77. $11.3] 1,499,47. $11.2%
Exercisable options at the end of y 888,58 $12.1°F 1,108,27. $12.6- 1,000,90. $12.9:
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Stock Based Compensation (Continued)

The Company recognized $1,418,000 of compensaftiparese related to stock options, for fiscal yedrl2a@he Company recognized
$1,683,000 and $1,538,000 of compensation expetsied to stock options in the fiscal years endspt&Snber 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. As of September 30, 2014, there Wa485,000 of unrecognized compensation cost retatedvested stock options. The
weighted average remaining period over which sudtscare expected to be recognized is 1.6 years.

The intrinsic value of the outstanding and exeldisaptions as of September 30, 2014 was approzlyn&829,000 and $241,000,
respectively. The intrinsic value of the optiongexsed during fiscal years 2014 and 2013 was appedely $57,000 and $213,000,
respectively. The fair value of the options exexdigluring the fiscal years ended September 30, 20d42013 was approximately $97,000 anc
$339,000, respectively. The proceeds from the ésef stock options during the fiscal years enflegtember 30, 2014 and 2013 were
approximately $40,000 and $125,000, respectivehg Weighted average remaining contractual lifexefreisable options as of September 30,
2014 is 3.8 years. The fair value of the stockatithat vested during the 2014 and 2013 fiscakywas approximately $740,000 and
$1,254,000, respectively. The fair value of optigrented during the fiscal years ended Septemhe2@®! and 2013 was approximately
$1,372,000 and $1,966,000, respectively.

The following table summarizes information abow tans’ outstanding options as of September 30420

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average
Remaining Average Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Price Outstanding Life (In Years) Price Exercisable Price
$ 2.8751-% 5.7500 7,20( 4.€ $ 2.9t 7,20( $ 2.9t
$ 5.7501- $ 8.625( 869,90( 6.€ 7.94 471,90( 7.7¢€
$ 8.6251- $17.250( 175,00( 8.2 9.4C 58,32¢ 9.3¢
$17.2501- $20.125( 336,15¢ 0.1 18.2: 336,15¢ 18.2:
$25.8751- $28.750( 15,00( 2.2 28.7¢ 15,00( 28.7¢
1,403,25! 54 $10.7¢ 888,58 $12.1¢

The following table summarizes information abowstrieted stock transactions:

Weighted Weighted

Year Ended Average Year Ended Average

September 30, 201 Grant Date September 30, 201 Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Unvested at the beginning of period 102,32: $ 957 10,92: $ 7.68
Awards grantet — 0.0C 102,32: 9.57
Vested (34,10 9.57 (10,92 7.6¢
Forfeited — 0.0C — 0.0C
Unvested at the end of peri 68,21« $ 9.57 102,32: $ 9.57
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Stock Based Compensation (Continued)

The Company recognized $326,000, $273,000 and 88®0Dcompensation expense during the fiscal yeladged September 30, 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively, for restricted stéckof September 30, 2014, there was a total of $8@rof unrecognized compensation cost
related to unvested restricted stock. The weightestage remaining period over which such costsem@gnized is 1.2 years. There were no
restricted stock awards granted during fiscal Y€d. The fair value of the restricted stock awaydsted during the first quarter of fiscal y
2013 was approximately $979,000.The fair valuénefrestricted stock awards vested during the figeats ended September 30, 2014 and
2013 was approximately $326,000 and $83,000, réispsc

The Company recognized an aggregate total of $10084$1,956,000 and $1,623,000 in compensatioaresefor the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivalyhéostock options and restricted stock grantsoffSeptember 30, 2014, there was a total
of $1,843,000 of unrecognized compensation coateélto unvested stock options and restricted gjcehts. The method used to calculate
stock based compensation is the straight line aredrmethod.

N OoTE P — STOCKHOLDERS ' E QuITY

In December 2012, the Board of Directors of the §any approved the payment of a special acceleeatedal dividend of $0.08 per
share to stockholders of record on December 242.2DHe aggregate dividend of $1,030,000 was paiDexember 28, 2012. No additional
dividends were declared during fiscal year 2013.

During the year ended September 30, 2012, the Coyngleclared quarterly cash dividends aggregating181000, which includes $0.02
per share, per quarter, of which $260,000 was adcas of September 30, 2012 and paid Novemberl®, 20

Dividends are at the discretion of the board oéctiors and will depend upon the Company’s finarmdaldition, operating results, capital
requirements and any other factors the board ettirs deems relevant. In addition, agreementstiv@lfCompany’s lenders may, from time to
time, restrict the ability to pay dividends. As®#ptember 30, 2014, there were no such restrictdoslividends were declared for fiscal year
2014.

On March 9, 2012, the Company adopted a Rule 10BE in conjunction with its share repurchase @y The Board of Directors
approved the purchase of up to $20 million of tlenPany’s common stock, which was effective throltgrch 11, 2013. This share
repurchase authorization superseded the autharizetirepurchase shares in June 2011, pursuarttithhwhe Company repurchased
approximately 59,000 shares at an aggregate cegtprbximately $457,000. The Company purchasedappately 885,000 shares at an
aggregate cost of approximately $7.9 million untterRule 10b5-1 Plan. Additionally, in June 201# €ompany repurchased 1.0 million
shares of its common stock for $9.4 million in av@tely negotiated transaction outside of the Rullb5-1 Plan. No shares were repurchased i
fiscal year 2014.

N oTE Q — RETIREMENT P LAN

The Company maintains a 401(k) Retirement Planriogell of its eligible employees. Matching cobtitions made by the employee:
the plan are made at the discretion of the boadirettors each plan year. Contributions for thergeended September 30, 2014, 2013 and
2012 were $119,000, $88,000 and $108,000, respdgtiv
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2014 and 2013

N oTE R — FAIR V ALUE OF F INANCIAL M EASUREMENTS AND D ISCLOSURES
Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instrumes

FASB ASC 825Financial Instruments (“ASC 825"), requires disclosure of fair valuédrmation about financial instruments, whether
or not recognized on the balance sheet, for whithpracticable to estimate that value. Becauseethre a limited number of market
participants for certain of the Company’s assetklabilities, fair value estimates are based upolgments regarding credit risk, investor
expectation of economic conditions, normal cosdrhinistration and other risk characteristics,udahg interest rate and prepayment risk.
These estimates are subjective in nature and ieuaheertainties and matters of judgment, whichiBaamtly affect the estimates.

The estimated fair value of the Company’s finantiatruments is summarized as follows:

September 30, 201 September 30, 201
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assei
Available-for-sale investments (Level $66,799,00 $66,799,00 $58,035,000 $58,035,00
Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation (LLe)¢ 29,444,00 50,962,00 64,254,00 70,875,00
Structured settlements (Level 42,079,00 42,079,00 — —

Financial liabilities
Non-Recourse Debt (Level . — — 35,760,00 27,000,00
Other deb— CBC, revolving line of credit (Level : 19,583,00 19,583,00 — —

Other debt — CBC, non-recourse notes payable vetiing
installments (Level 3 12,712,00 12,712,00 — —

Disclosure of the estimated fair values of finahiriatruments often requires the use of estimates. Company uses the following
methods and assumptions to estimate the fair \aléisancial instruments:

Available-for-sale investments — The available-$afe securities consist of mutual funds that aleedhbased on quoted prices in active
markets.

Consumer receivables acquired for liquidation — Tlnenpany computed the fair value of the consummazivables acquired for
liquidation using its proprietary forecasting madihe Company’s forecasting model utilizes a disted cash flow analysis. The Company’s
cash flows are an estimate of collections for camesureceivables based on variables fully describétbte C: Consumer Receivables Acqu
for Liquidation. These cash flows are discounteddtermine the fair value.

Structured settlements — The Company determineéaihgalue based on the discounted forecasteddutallections of the structured
settlements.

Non-Recourse Debt — carries a variable rate. Thevédue at September 30, 2013 was determinedrasudt of the forecasted future
collections of the Portfolio Purchase.

Other debt CBC, revolving line of credit — The Caany determined the fair value based on similarimsénts in the market.
Other debt CBC, notes payable with varying instetits — The fair value at September 30, 2014 wasdas the discounted forecasted
future collections of the structured settlements.
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N OoTE R — FAIR V ALUE OF F INANCIAL M EASUREMENTS AND D ISCLOSURES (C ONTINUED )
Fair Value Hierarchy

The Company recorded its available-for-sale invesiis at estimated fair value on a recurring bdsis.accompanying consolidated
financial statements include estimated fair vahfermation regarding its available-for-sale investits as of September 30, 2014, as required
by FASB ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosu(&sSC 8207). ASC 820 defines fair value as the prtbat would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (ait price) in an orderly transaction between mageticipants on the measurement date. ASC
also establishes a fair value hierarchy which neguan entity to maximize the use of observablat&ypnd minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. A financial instient’s level within the fair value hierarchy isskbd on the lowest level of input significant
to the fair value measurement.

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active rateior identical assets or liabilities that therany has the ability to assess at the
measurement date.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1ewjsuch as quoted prices for similar assets lailifias in active markets; quoted
prices in markets that are not active for identaradimilar assets or liabilities; or other inpthat are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the triirt of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supportetitthyy or no market activity and significant toetlfair value of the assets or liabilities
that are developed using the reporting entitieireges and assumptions, which reflect those ttaaket participants would use.

The Company’s available-for-sale investments amesified as Level 1 financial instruments basetherclassifications described above.
The Company did not have any transfers into (opte¥el 1 investments during the fiscal year en8egdtember 30, 2014. The Company had
no Level 2 or Level 3 available-for-sale investnsethtiring the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014.

The following table sets forth the Compasigiuantitative information about its Level 3 failwe measurements as of September 30, :

Unobservable
Valuation
Fair Value Technigue Input Rate
Discounte:
Discoun
Structured settlements at fair va $42,079,00 cash flov rate 5.5%

The changes in structured settlements at fair viadirgg significant unobservable inputs (Level )iy the year ended September 30,
2014 were as follows:

Balance at September 30, 2( $ 0
Acquisition of CBC (see Note! 30,436,00
Total gains included in earnin 2,840,00!
Purchase 9,808,00!
Sales —
Interest accrete 2,282,001
Payments receive (3,287,001
Total $42,079,00
The amount of total gains for the year includedannings attributable to the change in unrealizdsgy(losses

relating to assets held at September 30, : $ 2,840,001
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N OoTE R — FAIR V ALUE OF F INANCIAL M EASUREMENTS AND D ISCLOSURES (C ONTINUED )
Fair Value Hierarchy (Continued)

Realized and unrealized gains and losses includedrnings in the accompanying consolidated statesye# income for the year ended
September 30, 2014 are reported in the followirvgmee categories:

Total gains (losses) included in earnings in figear 201< $2,840,00!
Change in unrealized gains (losses) relating tetasdill held at September 30, 2( $2,840,00!

N OoTE S — RELATED P ARTY T RANSACTIONS

On December 12, 2011, the Company and Piccolo BasiAdvisory (“Piccolo”), which is owned by Louigc®olo, a director of the
Company, entered into a Consulting Agreement, amnisto which Piccolo provided consulting servicdsol included, but was not limited to,
analysis of proposed debt and equity transactiuns diligence and financial analysis and managemrgulting services (“Services”). The
Consulting Agreement was for a period of two yeatsich ended on December 31, 2013 and Piccolovedaiompensation of $150,000 per
annum payable monthly, a bonus of $25,000 per newsaction closed by the Company with Piccolo’sstersce (if any), and 30,000 options
per year, with such options vesting in three equmalual installments on the first, second and thimdiversaries of the first grant date. The
Company paid Piccolo $25,000, $150,000, and $1250the fiscal years ended September 30, 20143 2ad 2012, respectively. This
agreement was not renewed, however, there arempgdcussions for a new agreement.

N OTE T — SUMMARIZED Q UARTERLY D ATA ( UNAUDITED )

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2014 (As Restated)(1
Total revenus $7,427,00 $7,771,001 $ 8,259,001 $8,750,00! $32,207,00
Income before income tax 2,194,001 126,00( 7,680,001 1,042,001 11,042,00
Net income attributable to Asta Funding, | 947,00( 75,00( 4,687,00 192,00( 5,901,001
Basic net income per share attributable to Astadi;
Inc. $ 0.07 $ 0.01 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.01 $ 0.4¢
Diluted net income per share attributable to Asta
Funding, Inc. $ 0.07 $ 0.01 $ 0.3t $ 0.01 $ 0.4¢
2013 (As Revised
Total revenus $9,672,00 $9,030,00! $11,259,00 $8,239,00 $38,200,00
Income (loss) before income tax 4,224,001 2,725,001 (5,612,00) 1,972,001 3,309,001
Net income (loss) attributable to Asta Funding, 2,488,001 1,599,001 (3,369,001 1,291,001 2,009,001
Basic net income (loss) per share attributablesta A
Funding, Inc. $ 0.1¢ $ 0.12 $ (0.2¢) $ 0.1c $ 0.1¢€
Diluted net income (loss) per share attributablésta
Funding, Inc. $ 0.1¢ $ 0.12 $ (0.2¢) $ 0.1c $ 0.1¢

*  Due to rounding the sum of quarterly totals foméags per share may not add to the yearly t
(1) The first three quarters of fiscal year 2014 hagerbrestatec
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N oTE U — SEGMENT R EPORTING

The Company operates through strategic busine$s thiait are aggregated into four reportable segsn@unsumer receivables, Personal
injury claims, structured settlements and disabdivocacy. The four reportable segments consisteofollowing:

« Consumer receivables segment is engaged in the business of purchasiagagmng for its own account and servicing distrésse
consumer receivables, including charged off reddes semi-performing receivables and performirngireables. The primary
charged-off receivables are accounts that have Wweten-off by the originators and may have beesvipusly serviced by collection
agencies. Semi-performing receivables are accaulmése the debtor is currently making partial oegular monthly payments, but the
accounts may have been writtefi-by the originators. Performing receivables aceounts where the debtor is making regular mot
payments that may or may not have been delinquethti past. Distressed consumer receivables atnbesd debts of individuals to
banks, finance companies and other credit providetarge portion of our distressed consumer reddizs are MasterCafd , Visa
and other credit card accounts which were chardlyahe issuers or providers for non-payment. &quire these and other
consumer receivable portfolios at substantial dist®to their face values. The discounts are basdte characteristics (issuer,
account size, debtor location and age of debth@tinderlying accounts of each portfolio. Litigati@lated receivables are semi-
performing investments whereby the Company is assighe revenue stream from the proceeds recéivedbusiness conducts its
activities primarily under the name Palisades Citilba, LLC.

» Personal injury claim— Pegasus Funding, LLC , an 80% owned subsidiamghases interests in personal injury claims from
claimants who are a party to personal injury litiga. Pegasus advances to each claimant fundson-aecourse basis at an agreed
upon interest rate, in anticipation of a futurdleatent. The interest in each claim purchased lga&es consists of the right to receive
from such claimant, part of the proceeds or redesaxhich such claimant receives by reason oftesstnt, judgment or award with
respect to such claimés claim.

» Structured settlementOn December 31, 2013, the Company purchased%nr@@rest in CBC Settlement Funding, LLC. CBC
purchases periodic structured settlements and gnpalicies from individuals in exchange for a lusym payment

* GAR Disability Advocateis a non-attorney advocacy group, which obtainsrapdesents individuals nationwide in their claiims
social security disability and supplemental segurnitome benefits from the Social Security Admirasion.

Certain non-allocated administrative costs, inteireme, interest expense and various other n@matipg income and expenses are
reflected in Corporate. Corporate assets inclugh ead cash equivalents, available-for-sale séesyrproperty and equipment, goodwill,
deferred taxes and other assets.
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N oTE U — SEGMENT R EPORTING (C ONTINUED )

Persona
GAR
Fiscal Consumer Injury Structured Disability Total
(Dollars in millions) Year Receivable Claims Settlement: Advocates Corporate Company
Revenues 2014 $ 19¢ $ 7.2 $ 52 $ — $ — $ 32.2
201z 31.¢ 6.4 — — — 38.2
201z 40.¢ 1.6 — — — 42.4
Other income 201¢ 26.1 — — 0.4 14 27.¢
201z — — — — 1.6 1.€
201z — — — — 2.3 2.2
Income before income tax 201¢ 18.¢ 2.3 0.4 (2.7) (7.9 11.C
201z 10.1 2.C — (1.2) (7.6) 3.2
201z 23.1 0.1 — — (6.4 16.€
Total asset 2014 30.5 34.C 38.t 1.C 113.1 217.1
201z 65.4 36.¢ — 0.2 109.1 211¢%
201z 96.< 21t — — 119.¢ 237.¢
Capital expenditure 201¢ — — — — — —
201z — — — — 0.7 0.7
201z — — — — 0.€ 0.€
Depreciatior 201¢ — — — — 0.4 0.4
201z — — — — 0.4 0.4
201z — — — — 0.4 0.4

The Company does not have any intersegment reuesmgaction.

N oTE V — S UBSEQUENT E VENTS

On October 9, 2014, the Company purchased $5.mibf shares in the Topaz MP Fixed Income Furghexialized fund that will
invest in portfolios of small non-performing consemtoans originated in Italy.

On November 26, 2014, CBC announced the complefidts fourth private placement, backed by struetusettlement and fixed annuity
payments. CBC issued, through its subsidiary, BBRLLC, approximately $20.8 million of fixed ratesset-backed notes with a yield of 5.4%
(see Note J — Other Debt — CBC).

On March 11, 2015, CBC entered into the Ninth Amrmadt. This amendment, effective March 1, 2015, reded the maturity date from
February 28, 2015 to March 1, 2017. Additionalhe tredit line was increased from $22.0 millior$#%.0 million and the interest rate floor
was decreased from 4.75% to 4.1%. Other terms anditions are materially unchanged (see Note J heDebt — CBC).

F-44



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Exchange Act, the Registrant caused tlpisrt¢o be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ASTA FUNDING, INC.

By: /s/ Gary Stern
Gary Sterr
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

Dated: June 29, 2015

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange RAistréport has been signed below by the followiagspns on behalf of the Registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title. Date
/s| Gary Stern Chairman of the Board, President, and June 29, 2015
Gary Sterr Chief Executive Officer
/s/ Robert J. Michel Chief Financial Officer June 29, 2015
Robert J. Michel (Principal Financial Officer and

Accounting Officer)

/s/ Arthur Stern Chairman Emeritus and Director June 29, 2015
Arthur Stern

/s/ Edward Celano Director June 29, 2015
Edward Celant

/s/ Harvey Leibowitz Director June 29, 2015
Harvey Leibowitz

/s/ David Slackman Director June 29, 2105
David Slackmar

/sl Louis A. Piccolo Director June 29, 2015
Louis A. Piccolc




Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiary Companies

Jurisdiction
Under Percentagt
Which

Name Organized Owned
Asta Funding, Inc. Delawart

Asta Funding Acquisition I, LLC Delaware 10C%
Asta Funding Acquisition I, LLC Delawar¢ 10C%
Asta Commercial, LLC Delawar¢ 10C%
Asta Funding.com, LL( Delawar¢ 10C%
Palisades Acquisition I, LL( Delawar¢ 10C%
Palisades Acquisition Il, LL( Delawarte 10C%
Palisades Acquisition IV, LL( Delaware 10C%
CBC Settlement Funding, LL Delawart 80%
Computer Finance, LL! Delaware 10C%
Palisades Collection, LL! Delawar¢ 10C%
Palisades Acquisition VIII, LLC Delawar¢ 10C%
Option Card, LLC Coloradc 10C%
Palisades Acquisition IX, LL( Delawar¢ 10C%
VATIV Recovery Solutions LLC Texas 10C%
Palisades Acquisition X, LL( Delaware 10C%
Cliffs Portfolio Acquisition I, LLC Delawart 10C%
Sylvan Acquisition I. LLC Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XI LL( Delawar¢ 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XII LL( Delawar¢ 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XIII LLC Delawar¢ 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XIV LL( Delawar¢ 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XV LL( Delawart 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XVI LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XVII LLC Delawart 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XVIII LLC Delaware 10C%
LBLINY, LLC Delawar¢ 10C%
Prestiga Funding, LL( Delawar¢ 10C%
ASFI Litigation Holdings LLC Delawar¢ 10C%
ASFI Pegasus Holdings, LL Delawar¢ 10C%
Pegasus Funding, LL Delawart 80%
GAR Disability Advocates, LL(C Delaware 10C%
EMIRIC LLC Delawart 10C%
Snappy Rent, LL( Delaware 10C%
Palisades Acquisition XIX, LL( Delawar¢ 10C%

Palisades Acquisition XXII, LLC Delawar¢ 10C%



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtiee Registration Statements on Forms S-8 (file333-185175, effective
November 28, 2012, File No. 3-142201, effective April 18, 2007, File No. 333-999 effective September 20, 2002, and File No. 33336,
effective June 8, 2000) of our reports dated JheQ15 on (i) the consolidated financial statemaftAsta Funding, Inc. and subsidiaries ¢
and for the year ended September 30, 2014 antth¢iinternal control over financial reporting asSefptember 30, 2014, all of which appear in
the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Asta Funding.. ioc the year ended September 30, 2014.

/s] WeiserMazars LLP

New York, New York
June 29, 201




Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our report dated January 18, 26&2jeas to Note A [2], Revision of Prior Perioa&ticial Statements, with respect to
the impact on the year ended September 30, 20li2hwhas of June 29, 2015), with respect to thesobidated financial statements include
the Annual Report of Asta Funding, Inc. on FormKL@r the year ended September 30, 2014. We harebgent to the incorporation by
reference of said reports in the Registration $tatds of Asta Funding, Inc. on Forms S-8 (File B83-142201, effective April 18, 2007; File
No. 33399911, effective September 20, 2002; and File388-38836, effective June 8, 2000).

/s Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
June 29, 201




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Gary Stern, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKsta Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgar caused such disclosure controls and proesdorbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control oveatriitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntlis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuadm® that has materially affected, ol
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal obotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have ais@ntifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/sl Gary Stern

Gary Sterr

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeubfficel
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: June 29, 2015

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 302 has been provided to the Compadwall be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff per request.




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Robert J. Michel, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKsta Funding, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortémnstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control oveariitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntlis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabirg that has materially affected, ol
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have aisatifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Robert J. Michel

Robert J. Miche

Chief Financial Officer and Secrete

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal AccourdiOfficer

Date: June 29, 2015

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 302 has been provided to the Compadwll be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff per request.




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furgdimc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded September 30, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisstbe (Report”), |, Gary Stern, Chief Executive O#fcof the Company, certify, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Seafiéof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to mgvidedge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirermeenf Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ad934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the consailfihancial condition of the
company as of the dates presented and the consalidzsult of operations of the Company for theéqusr presented.

/sl Gary Stern

Gary Sterr

President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

Dated: June 29, 2015

This certification has been furnished solely punsda Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280@ is not being filed as part of the
10-K as a separate disclosure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyé| be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff per request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Asta Furgdimc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded September 30, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisstbe (Report”), I, Robert J. Michel, Chief Financiafficer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adopted purtu&ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@t to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirermmeenf Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Ad934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the consailfihancial condition of the
Company as of the dates presented and the consalidzsult of operations of the Company for thequks presented.

/s Robert J. Michel

Robert J. Miche

Chief Financial Officer and Secrete

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal AccourdiOfficer

Dated: June 29, 2015

This certification has been furnished solely punsda Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 280@ is not being filed as part of the
10-K as a separate disclosure statement.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyé| be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff per reque



